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INTRODUCTION

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the
results of the Group for the nine months ended 31 December
2013 (the “Period under Review”).

During the Period under Review, the Group acquired Sinbo
Investment Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively as “Sinbo
Group”) at a consideration of HK$1,500 million (the
“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 2 August
2018. Pursuant to a resolution duly passed in annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 August 2013, together with
the approval of the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands
on 4 September 2013 and the approval of Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong on 25 September 2013, the name of
the Company has been changed from “Mongolia Investment
Group Limited (R &1 & &£ B BR A F)” to “Peace Map Holding
Limited (X T B #E % A R A &))" with effect from 4 September
2013.

Meanwhile, the Group has completed the Acquisition and the
disposal of its waterworks business, and formally become an
enterprise engaged in the geographical information system (the
“GlIS”). The GIS is widely used in various sectors including
business, healthcare, security, government, trade, media,
transportation and tourism industries in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The principal business of the Sinbo Group
includes the entire geographic information industry chain, with
geographical information data extraction, data collection, data
processing and software applications. It also has an integrated
system of geographical information extraction. Besides, Sinbo
Group is also engaged in business related to the manufacture
and sale of cameras and unmanned aircrafts. It is anticipated
that the GIS business with huge development potential will
generate diverse revenue and profit for the Group in the future.

The Group completed the disposal of its waterworks business
on 20 December 2013 (the “Disposal”). The Group considers
that the Disposal will enable the Group to realise the relevant
assets of Rich Path Holdings Limited (“Rich Path”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) and reallocate its resources
for and direct its focus to concentrate on its core activities in
which the Group has competitive advantage and core
competencies. The Disposal can also improve the financial
performance of the Group as a whole. The settlement of the
consideration of the Disposal by way of offset in full against the
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outstanding principal amount of the promissory note (together
with any interest accrued thereon), which is due for settlement
on 17 June 2014, will also enhance the financial position as a
result of reducing the gearing level of the Group and the interest
expenses to be incurred on the unpaid balance of the promissory
note from 17 September 2013.

During the Period under Review, the Group continued to dedicate
efforts in the mining and exploration operations in Mongolia.

Financial Summary
Continuing Operations
Revenue

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
generated revenue from continuing operations of approximately
HK$210.1 million. The continuing operations consist of software
application, data processing and sales of cameras and
unmanned aerial vehicles, contributing 8.87%, 68.78% and
22.35% of the revenue for the period respectively. Revenue from
continuing operations are generated from Sinbo Group since 2
August 2013 (the date of acquisition). Management anticipates
that Sinbo Group will bring diverse sources of income for the
Group.

Cost of Revenue

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, cost of revenue
from continuing operations was approximately HK$111.0 million.
The cost of revenue was mainly for Sinbo Group, including aerials
cost, training cost, rental of machines and softwares, data
processing cost and amortisation of the other intangible assets.

Gross Profit

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$99.1 million and
gross profit margin was 47.17% for the continuing operations.

Other Income and Gain

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
generated other income and gain of approximately HK$36.0
million from the continuing operations, which mainly included
gain arising from extension of promissory note and government
grants.
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Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded administrative and other operating expenses of
approximately HK$85.0 million from the continuing operations,
which mainly included staff salaries, directors’ remuneration, legal
and professional fee, exchange difference, depreciation expenses
and amortisation expenses.

Finance Costs

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded finance cost of approximately HK$89.7 million from
the continuing operations, which mainly included the bank loan
interests and the imputed interests on the promissory note, the
convertible notes and other unsecured loans.

Impairment Loss of Property, Plant and Equipment

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded impairment loss of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$3.0 million from continuing operations,
representing an increase of 5.17% as compared to the year
ended 31 March 2013, mainly related to the exploration and
mining business.

Impairment Loss of Other Intangible Assets

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded impairment loss of other intangible assets of
approximately HK$10.1 million from continuing operations,
mainly related to the development cost of other intangible assets
of Sinbo Group.

Impairment Loss of Mining Licences

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded impairment loss of mining licences of approximately
HK$173.4 million from continuing operations, representing an
increase of 13.42% as compared to the year ended 31 March
2013. The impairment loss was due to revision of expected selling
price of coal according to market condition and the additional
risk resulting from the recent developments in law and regulations
in Mongolia.
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Impairment Loss of Exploration and Evaluation Assets

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded impairment loss of exploration and evaluation assets
of approximately HK$3.7 million from continuing operations,
representing a decrease of 84.96% as compared to the year
ended 31 March 2013. The impairment loss had been provided
as the exploration and evaluation activities had not yet led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of minerals and there
has been no further plan for substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the area.

Impairment Loss of Trade and Other Receivables

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded impairment loss of trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$15.7 million from continuing operations,
mainly related to the long aged trade receivables of Sinbo Group
which the management considered not recoverable.

Fair Value Loss on the Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded fair value loss on the financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$61.5 million from
continuing operations, mainly related to change in fair value of
the contingent consideration of the Acquisition on 2 August 2013.

Loss for the Period from Continuing Operations

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded loss of approximately HK$254.1 million for
the nine months ended 31 December 2013, as compared with
the loss of approximately HK$290.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2013.

Discontinued Operations

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, revenue
attributable to the Group’s waterworks business amounted
approximately to HK$545.6 million and this business segment
recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$3.1 million.
The management decided to discontinue the waterworks
business with effect from 20 December 2013 so that the Group
could focus on the business development of the GIS industry.
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Loss for the Period Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded an attributable loss of approximately HK$264.5 million
for the nine months ended 31 December 2013, as compared
with the attributable loss of approximately HK$300.0 million for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

Liquidity & Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2013, bank balances and cash and pledged
bank deposits were approximately HK$86.5 million (as at 31
March 2013: HK$311.5 million). During the Period under Review,
total borrowings, including convertible notes issued in 2010 and
2013, borrowings and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders were approximately HK$843.6 million (as at 31
March 2013: HK$961.9 million). The Group’s current ratio, being
the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was 1.7 times (as
of 31 March 2013: 1.3 times), and its gearing ratio, in terms of
total borrowings net of bank balances and cash and pledged
bank deposits to total equity, stood at 96% (as at 31 March
2013: 1,994 %).

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013 became to 96% was
primarily driven by increased in equity from approximately
HK$32.6 million (as at 31 March 2013) to HK$785.1 million (as
at 31 December 2013) while total borrowings net of bank
balances and cash and pledged bank deposits increased from
approximately HK$650.4 million (as at 31 March 2013) to
HK$757.1 million (as at 31 December 2013).

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s transactions are primarily denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars, Mongolian Tughrik and
Macau Patacas. The Group has not implemented any formal
hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign exchange
exposure continuously and, when it considers appropriate and
necessary, will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure by way of forward foreign exchange contracts where
appropriate.
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Human Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 380
employees (for the year ended 31 March 2013: 508 employees)
all of which were holding permanent positions. Total staff costs,
including Directors’ emoluments during the Period under Review,
amounted to approximately HK$108.7 million (for the year ended
31 March 2013: HK$138.2 million).

The Group’s remuneration policies are primarily based on
prevailing market salary levels and the performance of the Group
and of the individuals concerned. In addition to salary payments,
other staff benefits include performance bonuses, education
subsidies, provident fund, medical insurance and the use of share
option scheme to recognise and acknowledge contributions
made or may be made to the business development of the Group
by its employees.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing Business
Geographical Information Business

With the continuing economic growth of the PRC, the geographic
information industry as an emerging industry in the 21st century
will experience a phase with rapid growth, and the areas of its
applications will expand steadily.

As one of the leaders in the geographic information industry in
the PRC, Sinbo Group holds various types of aerial photographic
equipment and relevant technology to capture imagery data with
different resolutions through manned and unmanned aircrafts.
By utilising the self-developed unmanned aircrafts, street view
data collection vehicle system and emergency monitoring
vehicles related equipment together with the lease of large
aircrafts and imagery equipment from suppliers, Sinbo Group
can capture raw geographic imagery data in the format of photos
and numeric data in the urban and rural area of the PRC. For the
nearly five months ended 31 December 2013 following the
completion of the Acquisition on 2 August 2013, turnover from
geographical information business amounted to approximately
HK$210.1 million.
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Sinbo Group holds a sophisticated Pixel Factory imagery data
processing system, which is capable of processing the raw
geographic imagery data into numerous user-friendly products
including three dimensional and 4D data. Based on these
processed data, Sinbo Group has developed a number of GIS
softwares, which are widely used by state-owned enterprises,
government departments, government supported institutions and
privately owned enterprises in many fields such as land
resources, water, urban planning and surveying and mapping
sectors.

Sinbo Group owns its production base and facilities located in
Beijing to develop and manufacture specialised unmanned
aircrafts, street view data collection vehicle system, emergency
monitoring vehicles and related equipment. The production
facilities occupy a total gross floor area of approximately 4,000
sg.m. Apart from being used for its own geographic imagery
data collection, the products manufactured are sold to
customers. For the nearly five months ended 31 December 2013
following the completion of the Acquisition on 2 August 2013,
the annual production rate of unmanned aerial vehicles in the
production base in Beijing raised up to 33 unmanned aerials
vehicles. As a result, revenue from sales of cameras and
unmanned aerial vehicles was approximately HK$47.0 million.

Currently, Sinbo Group has been equipped with most cutting-
edge technologies for automated remote sensing image
processing. Meanwhile, by introducing French Pixel Factory
software and equipment, Sinbo Group has established the
automated processing center for Pixel Factory data, and
independently developed and owns automated remote sensing
image processing software with indigenous intellectual property
rights. In addition, Sinbo Group has a premier research and
development team specialized in professional technologies. With
continued investment in the scientific research and development,
Sinbo Group has developed its core cloud-computing geographic
information platform software, including UGlobe, UShare, and
UManager. Capitalising on the experiences in implementing the
GIS application system, Sinbo Group also provides a series of
GIS application solutions to industries that require the GIS
application system. During the Period under Review, Sinbo Group
had a total of 114 research and development personnel mainly
responsible for the aerial photography route design, unmanned
aircraft design, two and three dimensional software development,
development of GIS projects, etc.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EIERE

In addition, Sinbo Group’s automated remote sensing image
processing software has the same function and performance as
those automated remote sensing image data processing software
available in the overseas market, and strengthens its function
based on the 3 dimensional automated remote sensing image
processing as demanded by the 3 dimensional geographic
information application in the domestic market. As a result, Sinbo
Group has the capability to produce 3 dimensional data for mega-
size cities. Currently, Sinbo Group is an active industry player in
terms of its automated geographic information processing,
management and application.

Mining Business in Mongolia

The Group currently holds four coal mining licences covering a
1,114 hectares coal mine at Tugrug Valley (the “TNE Mine”).
Based on a report from an independent technical advisor in 2010,
the TNE Mine has approximately 64.0 million tonnes of measured
and indicated resources and an additional 27.9 million tonnes of
inferred resources. For the Period under Review, there was no
material change in the amount of the resources in the TNE Mine,
compared with that of last year. Besides, the Group also holds
three exploration licences in respect of coal deposits in DundGobi
(14,087 hectares) located in Mongolia.

According to the announcement of the Company dated
4 November 2013, the Group has considered a report prepared
by an independent mining expert. Based on the report, it is
recommended that a further review be conducted within the
license area in order to prepare a plan for improving the
production of the TNE Mine, and therefore to future delay the
production schedule by one year.

As a result of the market selling price and the additional risk
resulting from the recent developments in laws and regulations
in Mongolia relating to the mining industry, an impairment loss
amounting to approximately HK$173.4 million on the mining
license was made by the Group for the nine months ended
31 December 2013.

Discontinued Business
Waterworks Business in Hong Kong

During the Period under Review, the Group disposed of its
waterworks business by disposing the entire issued share capital
of Rich Path and the shareholder’s loan. Details of the Disposal
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 25 November
2013. Upon the Disposal, the waterworks business became
discontinued.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the China government sets the growth target of
GDP at 7.5%. It is expected that the PRC economy will maintain a
steady growth. With continuing urbanization, the projects such as
city planning and the development of infrastructures will be still on
the rise. The geographic information industry will play an important
role in the future development of the PRC’s economy and society
to coordinate the fast development of ecommerce, internet and
mobile network. Therefore, it is expected that the entire geographic
information industry will maintain a high-speed growth.

The Outline of the Twelfth Five-Year Plan for Mapping and
Geoinformation Development which was issued by the National
Administration of Surveying, Mapping and Geoinformation in 2011
provides that, by 2015, the PRC will complete the construction of
a digital framework of the country’s geographic information and
the information-based mapping system; greatly improve the level
of mapping and geoinformation public services, preliminarily form
standardized public service products and systems, and launch
basic geographic information online. According to the Report of
Prospect and Investment Strategy Planning on China Geographical
Information Industry (2013-2017) published by Qianzhan Industry
Institute (12 & 2 035 P7), the market size of the geographic
information industry will reach RMB1.1 trillion by 2020. Therefore,
we are of the view that the prospects of the geographic information
industry is promising.

By integration into all sectors, the geographic information industry
will create more innovative applications. Smart cities will integrate
the geographical information source through establishing the GIS,
geo-based information frame, communication network and other
platforms to provide citizens with geographical location service.
China Government is also vigorously broadening and deepening
the application of geographical information. The geographical
information technologies can be widely used by government in
the fields such as fine-grained management, high-efficient
approval and scientific decision-making, and will gradually
expand into the applications by enterprises and the society.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to the management and staffs for their
diligence and dedication over the past year. Along the line, we
will continue to consolidate our existing operations while ramping
up development of new business ventures, with an aim of
enhancing shareholders’ value in the long run.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Dong, aged 40, is an executive Director and the acting
chairman of the Board. Mr. ZHU holds a Master’s degree and a
Bachelor’s degree in Management Accounting and is a senior
accountant. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting,
corporate finance and advisory. Mr. ZHU served AVIC International
Holding (HK) Limited (“AVIC Int’l”) (stock code: 232) as a deputy
chief financial officer, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and is the deputy
chief financial officer of AVIC International (HK) Group Limited
(“AVIC Int’l Group”), as at 31 December 2013 which was
deemed to be interested in 1,709,980,000 shares of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”). Mr. ZHU was appointed as an executive Director
and the acting chairman of the Board on 12 December 2012
and 1 March 2014 respectively.

Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun, aged 43, is an executive Director.
Mr. ZHANG holds a Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree in
Management Accounting and is a senior accountant. He has
over 21 years of experience in accounting and finance.
Mr. ZHANG is an executive director and the chief financial officer
of AVIC Int’l and an executive director and a vice president of
China Environmental Investment Holdings Limited (stock code:
260), both being listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a
deputy chief financial officer of AVIC International Holding
Corporation and is the chief financial officer of AVIC Int’l Group.
As at 31 December 2013, China Environmental Investment
Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested in 576,980,000
shares of the Company under Part XV of the SFO. As at 31
December 2013, each of AVIC International Holding Corporation
and AVIC Int’l Group was deemed to be interested in
1,709,980,000 shares of the Company under Part XV of the SFO.
Mr. ZHANG was appointed as an executive Director on 12
December 2012.

Mr. ZHANG, Jack Jiyei, aged 49, is an executive Director. Mr.
ZHANG graduated from Qinghua University with a Bachelor
degree in Applied Mathematics in 1987 and obtained a Master
degree in Statistics from the University of Manitoba in 1991 and a
Master of Business Administration degree from the Ilvey School of
Business, the University of Western Ontario in 1996. Mr. ZHANG
has extensive experience in corporate finance and corporate
management. Mr. ZHANG was a senior manager of BOCI Asia
Limited between 1997 and 1999 responsible for direct investments
and financial advisory services, and was a director of Beijing Long
Shine Technology Co. Ltd. (1t EAFTEHE B R 2 7)) between 1999
and 20083 with involvement in its management buy-out,
introduction of institutional investors and subsequent divestment.
Mr. ZHANG was an executive director and the investment officer
of Interchina Holdings Company Limited (B 7/ #5 i% A BR A 7))
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT

between 2000 and 2004 and was the executive deputy general
manager of General Water of China Limited (FERRKFEHRE A
7)) between 2004 and 2008 responsible for its investment, finance
and strategic planning. From 2008 to 2012, Mr. ZHANG was the
president and director of Interchina Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (B
K% 15 B R 2 7)), the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600187). Mr. ZHANG was
appointed as an executive Director on 25 July 2013.

Mr. FENG Tao, aged 39, is an executive Director and chief
financial officer. Mr. FENG has extensive experience in corporate
finance and data technology. Mr. FENG was an invest manager
of China National Aero-Technology Import & Export Corporation
(Fh B fin Ze B fiT 3 H D 422 &) from September 2003 to
December 2003. Mr. FENG was a finance manager of Navinfo
Co., Limited (At 7 8 4 B 3 £HEZ IR (0 B IR A 7)) (formerly known
as “Navinfo Co., Limited 1t = U4k B ¥ E M5 SR B R AR
(“Navinfo”) from 2004 to 2007, and the chief financial officer of
Navinfo from 2008 to 2013. Mr. FENG has been the chief financial
officer of the Company and Beijing Peace Map Information and
Technology Limited (Jt R KT BE BT BB A a]) since
September 2013. Mr. FENG graduated from Central University
of Finance and Economics (7 & 81 ¢ K ) with a Bachelor
degree in Accountings in 1997 and obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from Peking University (1t 2 A ) in
2010. Mr. FENG also obtained a Middle Level of Professional
Qualification in Business Administration and Economics (L7
EIRLE (P AR) EERME ). Mr. FENG was appointed as an
executive Director on 16 December 2013.

Mr. YUEN Chow Ming (Resigned on 16 January 2014), aged
77, was a former executive Director, the former chairman of the
Board and the founder of the Company and the Group. Mr. YUEN
and three other partners found Ming Hing Engineering Company
(the “Partnership”) in 1967. In January 1987, Mr. YUEN, together
with Mr. SO Yiu Cheung and two other partners, established
Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering Company Limited and he
was one of the founding directors. Mr. YUEN studied engineering
science at “EHRE E &R AE” in the early 1960s and has
over 48 years’ experience in waterworks engineering, most time
of which were devoted to developing and managing the Group’s
waterworks projects. Mr. YUEN has been since the inception of
the business responsible for the marketing, formulation of
corporate strategies, business planning and overall management
of the Group. Mr. YUEN is the father of Mr. YUEN Wai Keung.
Mr. Yuen was appointed as an executive Director on 29 October
2004.
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EERSREBABHE

Mr. YUEN Wai Keung (Resigned on 1 March 2014), aged 46,
was a former executive Director, deputy chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group and was responsible for the overall
business management and corporate development of the Group.
Mr. YUEN graduated from the Imperial College of Science,
Technology and Medicine, University of London with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in 1990. Mr. YUEN also holds
a master’s degree in business administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2000. Mr. YUEN is a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a member
of Institution of Mechanical Engineers (UK). Mr. YUEN joined the
Group in 1991 and has since then been heavily involved in all
aspects relating to the waterworks business of the Group. He is
a member of The Hunan Provincial Committee of the 11th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. YUEN
became a director of Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering
Company Limited in 1996. Mr. YUEN is the son of Mr. YUEN
Chow Ming. Mr. YUEN was appointed as an executive Director
on 2 June 2004.

Mr. SO Yiu Cheung (Resigned on 1 January 2014), aged 62,
was a former executive Director and deputy chairman of the
Group and was responsible for the overall project management
of the Group. Mr. SO was also involved in the formulation of
corporate plans and strategies of the Group. Mr. SO obtained
his certificate in structural engineering from Hong Kong
Polytechnic in July 1973. Mr. SO is also an associate member of
the Institute of Plumbing in the UK. Mr. SO has over 37 years’
experience in waterworks engineering. Mr. SO joined the Group
in 1985 as a partner to the Partnership and became one of the
founding partners of Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering
Company Limited in 1987. Mr. So was appointed as an executive
Director on 29 October 2004.
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Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis (Resigned on 1 January 2014),
aged 46, was a former executive Director and existing Company
Secretary. Mr. CHEUNG has over 19 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. He has been an
independent non-executive director of Powerwell Pacific
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange since 27 September 2010. Prior
to taking up the above-mentioned posts of the Company, he
has been the chief financial officer of the China division of Midland
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
CHEUNG holds a Master’s degree in Commerce from the
University of New South Wales, Australia. Mr. CHEUNG is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. CHEUNG was appointed as an executive Director on 15
October 2008.

Mr. LEUNG, Chung Tak Barry (Resigned on 2 April 2013), aged
51, was a former executive Director. Mr. LEUNG obtained his
master degree of business administration, majoring in finance
and banking from McLaren School of Business, the University
of San Francisco in the United States of America in 1997. Mr.
LEUNG has over 10 years’ experience in holding management
role for a Hong Kong listed redchip company, managing the
transactions for mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance
activities and working closely with various provincial governments
in the People’'s Republic of China. From 20 January 2006 to 4
June 2007, Mr. LEUNG was a non-executive director of China
Best Group Holding Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange; stock code: 370), which has coal and coke
manufacturing related businesses. Mr. LEUNG was also
appointed as a non-executive director of Thunder Sky Battery
Limited (now known as Sinopoly Battery Limited and the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange; stock code: 729) on
20 October 2006, re-designated as an executive director on 22
November 2006 and then re-designated as a non-executive
director on 1 June 2009. Mr. LEUNG has resigned as a non-
executive director of Thunder Sky Battery Limited (now known
as Sinopoly Battery Limited) on 1 July 2010. Mr. LEUNG was
appointed as an executive Director on 14 March 2011.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Kwok Kee (Resigned on 16 December 2013), aged
54, was a former non-executive Director. Mr. WONG is a
practising solicitor admitted to practise in Hong Kong since July
1990. Mr. WONG holds a Bachelor of Laws degree and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong
Kong in 1987 and 1988 respectively. Mr. WONG has been a
member of the Criminal Law & Procedure Committee of The
Law Society of Hong Kong since 2008. Mr. WONG has been a
partner of Messrs. Tang, Lai & Leung, Solicitors since May 1995
and is a China Appointed Attesting Officer. Mr. WONG was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 10 August 2012.

Mr. NG Wing Keung (Resigned on 15 October 2013), aged 44,
was a former non-executive Director. Mr. NG is a practising
certified public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has
previously worked in Messrs Li, Tang, Chen & Co. from August
1993 to March 2001 and started his own audit firm in June 2001.
Mr. NG has been practising as certified public accountant in
Hong Kong for over 10 years and is currently a managing director
of KTO CPA Limited. Mr. NG was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 10 August 2012.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. HUI Yat On, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. HUI holds a Master of Professional Accounting
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. HUI is a member of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. HUI had served as executive director, company
secretary and senior executive in companies listed in Hong Kong.
Currently, Mr. HUI is a director and/or chief investment officer of
private investment companies. Mr. HUI was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 August 2012.

Mr. TAM Sun Wing, aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. TAM is a professional accountant having more than
31 years of audit and business advisory experience of which 8
years were with an international accounting firm. He has also
been in private practice since 1992. Mr. TAM is a director of
FTW & Partners CPA Limited. He has extensive experience in
providing business advisory service and conducting audits of
companies in the businesses of toy manufacturing and trading,
electronics, property development and holding, securities,
insurance and retailing. Mr. TAM is a fellow member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and also registered as a Certified Tax Advisor.
Mr. TAM was admitted to the Master Degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Directorship from Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. TAM has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited on 14 December
2001. Mr. TAM was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREBABHE

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, aged 48, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. ZHANG holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
from the School of Finance of the Renmin University of China.
Mr. ZHANG joined China Digital Library Corporation Limited in
2005 and is now its vice president. He is a member of the Beijing
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. ZHANG was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 11
March 2013.

Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen (Resigned on 1 February 2014),
aged 52, was a former independent non-executive Director. Mr.
LIAO has over 28 years’ experience in the trade and commerce
industry. Mr. LIAO is currently the general manager of the
corporate development division of Sky Holdings Group Limited.
Mr. LIAO holds a Joint-honors degree in Chemistry with
Management Studies from the University of London. Mr. LIAO
returned back to Hong Kong in 1985 and had held senior
management positions in both international and local listed and
private companies since then. Mr. LIAO also serves in various
non-profit organizations and is the member of Guangxi Qinzhou
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Vice-
President of Guangxi Youth Entrepreneur Association, the Vice-
Chairman of Guangxi Guilin Youth Federation, the Executive
Member of Guangxi Qinzhou Overseas Friendship Association
and the Committee Member of Guangxi Youth Federation. Mr.
LIAO was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 20 February 2009.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the nine months ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of each member of the Group are set
forth in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group is principally engaged in geographical information business
(“GIS”) in Mainland China and mining and exploration of mineral
resources in Mongolia.

The Group disposed of its waterworks business, which was
completed on 20 December 2013.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group'’s results for the nine months ended 31 December
2013 and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 54 to 255. No dividend has been recommended by the
Board for the nine months ended 31 December 2013.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial period/years is set out on page
256.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the nine months ended 31 December 2013
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SHARE CAPITAL

On 15 May 2013, 360,000,000 shares of HK$0.25 each of the
Company (the “Shares”) were successfully placed to not less
than six independent places at the placing price of HK$0.25 per
share. The Directors consider that the placing is the preferred
means of raising funds for the Group and believed that the placing
represents an opportunity to raise capital for the Group while
broadening its shareholder and capital base. The net price per
share was approximately HK$0.245. The net proceeds from the
placing of approximately HK$88.2 million were used for the
general working capital of the Group.

On 2 August 2013, the Company issued convertible notes as
part of the consideration for acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Sinbo Investment Limited to the following parties:

0] in respect of Broadlink Enterprises Limited, as to: (i)
HK$551,493,000 by way of issue of the Tranche A
Convertible Notes; (i) HK$190,170,000 by way of issue
of the Tranche B Convertible Notes;

(i) in respect of Kingspot Investment Limited, as to: (i)
HK$197,142,000 by way of issue of the Tranche A
Convertible Notes; (i) HK$67,980,000 by way of issue of
the Tranche B Convertible Notes;

(iif) in respect of Alliance Elegant Limited, as to: (i)
HK$66,033,000 by way of issue of the Tranche A
Convertible Notes; (i) HK$22,770,000 by way of issue of
the Tranche B Convertible Notes;

(iv) in respect of Bidfast Investment Limited, as to: (i)
HK$39,237,000 by way of issue of the Tranche A
Convertible Notes; (i) HK$13,530,000 by way of issue of
the Tranche B Convertible Notes; and

(v) in respect of Grandest International Limited, as to: (i)
HK$16,095,000 by way of issue of the Tranche A
Convertible Notes; (i) HK$5,550,000 by way of issue of
the Tranche B Convertible Notes.
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the nine months ended 31 December 2013, are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATIONS

On 23 March 2011, two of the Company'’s former directors and
others (the “Plaintiffs”) commenced legal proceedings to claim
against the Company and other Directors for various relief
including an injunction preventing the Company from proceeding
with the placing of shares pursuant to the resolution passed by
the Board on 21 March 2011. The placing of shares was
completed on 13 April 2011. The Plaintiffs have made an
application for an interlocutory injunction on 4 April 2011 (the
“Application”) which has been heard on 27 November 2012,
The Application was dismissed by the court with costs awarded
against the Plaintiffs in favour of the Company and the
defendants, such costs to be paid and taxed forthwith, if not
agreed. Separately, the Plaintiffs’ application to amend the related
summons was also dismissed by the court with cost awarded
against the Plaintiffs in favour of the Company and the
defendants, such costs to be paid and taxed forthwith, if not
agreed. At a case management conference hearing held on 24
March 2014 (the “CMC”) the court ordered that, with the
exception of the claims of Mr. Tan Kah Hock (“Mr. Tan”), all of
the Plaintiffs’ claims be provisionally struck out with costs to the
Defendants due to the failure of the Plaintiffs (except Mr. Tan), or
their solicitors, to attend the CMC. The claims by the Plaintiffs
(excluding Mr. Tan) will be permanently struck out on 24 June
2014 if the Plaintiffs (excluding Mr. Tan) do not apply to the Court
to explain their absence at the CMC and obtain leave of the
court to continue the action. In the meantime, on 2 April 2014,
Mr. Tan and the defendants entered into a consent summons
under which they agreed to discontinue the action as between
the Mr. Tan and the defendants with no order as to costs.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the pledge of assets of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 33(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the nine
months ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the nine months ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares of the Company on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the nine months and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Dong (Acting Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun
Mr. ZHANG Jack Jiyei (Appointed on 25 July 2013)

Mr. FENG Tao (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on 16 December 2013)
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming (Resigned on 16 January 2014)
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung (Resigned on 1 March 2014)
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung (Resigned on 1 January 2014)
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis (Resigned on 1 January 2014)
Mr. LEUNG, Chung Tak Barry (Resigned on 2 April 2013)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Kwok Kee (Resigned on 16 December 2013)
Mr. NG Wing Keung (Resigned on 15 October 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUI Yat On

Mr. TAM Sun Wing

Mr. ZHANG Songlin

Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen (Resigned on 1 February 2014)

In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. ZHANG Jack
Jiyei, Mr. HUI Yat On and Mr. TAM Sun Wing will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles, Mr. FENG Tao
being appointed as Director by the Board during the period, will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Director, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of Mr. ZHU Dong and Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 12 December 2012. Either the Company
or the executive Director may, terminate the appointment of the
executive Director by giving to the other party not less than one
month’s written notice of termination or by payment in lieu of
such notice.

Mr. ZHANG Jack Jiyei has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 25 July
2013. Either party may terminate the appointment by giving to
the other party not less than one month’s written notice of
termination or by payment in lieu of such notice.

Mr. FENG Tao has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 16 December
2013. Either party may terminate the appointment by giving to
the other party not less than one month’s written notice of
termination or by payment in lieu of such notice.

Mr. HUI Yat On, an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 10 August 2013 which may
be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice.

Mr. TAM Sun Wing, an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 12 December 2013 which may
be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice.

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 11 March 2014 which may be
terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract
of service with the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries not determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS
(Continued)

The Company’s policies concerning emoluments of the Directors
are:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on the basis
of the relevant Directors’ experience, responsibilities,
workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(i) non-cash benefits may be provided to the Directors under
their remuneration package; and

(ifi) the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the
Board, options pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted by the Company, as part of their remuneration
package.

DIRECTORS’ AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions which also constitute related party transactions for
the nine months are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Connected Transactions

On 2 September 2013, the Company as vendor and Sino Access
Holdings Limited (“Sino Access”) as purchaser entered into a
sales and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal of the
entire issued share capital of Rich Path and the shareholder’s
loan for a total consideration of HK$354,350,000 (“Disposal”).
The consideration shall be payable by Sino Access to the
Company upon completion by way of set-off in full against the
outstanding principal amount of the promissory note (as defined
in the announcement issued by the Company dated 16
September 2013) together with interest accrued thereunder as
at completion. Mr. Yuen Wai Keung, being then an executive
Director, was granted an option to acquire 25% of the issued
share capital of Sino Access from the date of completion to the
date falling on the first anniversary of the date of completion,
and therefore was regarded as having a material interest in the
Disposal. The Directors considered that the Disposal will enable
the Group to realize the relevant assets of the Disposal Group
and reallocate its resources for and direct its focus to other core
activities in which the Group has competitive advantage and core
competencies and improve the financial performance of the
Group as a whole. The Disposal constitutes a very substantial
disposal for the Company as well as a connected transaction
which is subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the
announcement and circular issued by the Company dated 16
September and 25 November 2013 respectively for details of
the Disposal.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 16 November 2005, Ming Hing Waterworks Engineering
Company Limited, as Lessee, and Grand Media Limited, as
Lessor, entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”)
regarding the premises of Units 1809-1812, 18th Floor, Telford
House, No. 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Lease
Agreement was renewed on 9 May 2011 with identical terms
and conditions except for a lease term from 1 April 2011 to 31
March 2014 at a monthly rental of HK$82,000. Mr. Yuen Chow
Ming, Mr. Yuen Wai Keung and Mr. So Yiu Cheung, all then being
executive Directors of the Company, have equity interest of 34%,
33% and 33% respectively in Grand Media Limited. Therefore,
Grand Media Limited was an associate of the three former
Directors of the Company and the renewed Lease Agreement
amounted to a continuing connected transaction exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, such
transaction was entered into by the Group:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to/from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(¢) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the nine months.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgRE

BEXSZREERERS ©®)

RIEZERF+—A+8 > BEKBERT
BRAERARGEREAA) BEBPERAT (HEA)
RN EBEBNEERABI6ERANE18HE
1809-1812EM M EFZ:IHEW = ([A&H
) - HEWERN_ET——FHANBESR -
IRHFE IR - AT ——FWA—
AE-_ZT—ME=F=+—Hit AflA
82,0008 7T ° RFKBASL A - [RIE 98 5 4 R B
HEEHRARBERZHNITES REWRE
[RAAD B HEA34% « 33% K 33% 7 I&HE - A
It - EHBERRARIARNARZZAIEE2HE
A HEBB2ERRER " ERFEBHER
5 WA ERE EMRAEERE - 2H KB
TBRERAEZRE °

BUFRTEERRAERSIRALE :

(8 R—MREABERKBREFRIL

b) E-REEGERITBERAEER,H
(FEE) B E =T PTIR 2 RFRET
AVAREY4

© HREBEBRXDZWMHEIERKETL - KK
BRAYEE NEAXAARBRRERZAH

o

Bk

EENGHzER

Bar e S MR 44BN SERHE
BARA QB SEEEN B L SR uE A BN
AVERASEXBEMBE EAANZEHE
HEEE A B

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
ths ended 31 December 2013)

Frho Lt M A s R Y




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEens

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BEERBESTHAEREAQATRE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BB EE RG>  HERORES
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND ZHEBRRE

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors and the chief executve W -_ZT—=F+_-_A=+—H E=L&Eo17T
had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares and LA BRA R E) R EBBSEE (T B EH L
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations — E1{&0 ([F& 5 R EEEH ) EXVEL) 2 %D ~ 18
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures B MESEF - BERBEES NP EEHE
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and ~ XVEBEE7 &85 S /B A1& A A &) I B 22 Fr 2 4
Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the  z% * Wad8 R AR RIBIEE 5 MBI E (5515352
SFO and which were recorded in the register required to be kept ~ §EEF 2 & fft © SURE E TR AIFTE L™
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as  BE{TAEEFETELAX FHZETH| ([EESF
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange  BI]) ZBAN& AN A M A 2 2S00
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the

Listing Rules:
(a) Long position in the ordinary shares of (@) RAEXATEBRHEE2EBTZE
HK$0.25 each of the Company (“Shares”) BR (RGO ZRE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
Capacity/ Number of the Company
Note Nature of interest Shares held AR R #E
Name of Director EENR ik 5/ RmtE BERGEE BAEA
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming JRIKEA S & Personal 24,001,200 0.42%
AR
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung [RIEREAE 1 Interest of controlled 18,777,600 0.32%
corporation
XEHEE R
Personal 25,140,800 0.43%
BAER
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung BEERAE Personal 16,600,000 0.29%
AR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(@) Long position in the ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each of the Company (“Shares”)
(Continued)

Note:

(1) The 18,777,600 Shares are registered in the name of
Success Token Holdings Limited (“Success Token”),
of which Mr. YUEN Wai Keung is entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, forth-fifths of the voting power
at general meetings of Success Token. Hence Success
Token is a controlled corporation (within the meaning of
the SFO) of Mr. YUEN Wai Keung, who is therefore
deemed to be interested in these Shares under the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EENEBRSTHAERARTRHE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BB EE RG>  HERORES
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND CHEZRRE ®)

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares and (b) REATEBEROREHFZRRE
debentures of the Company

Share Options AR

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the BREARTR_ZEZNF_A=-+HH
Company on 25 February 2006 (details are set out in note %Wm%hﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁé
38 to the consolidated financial statements), certain HEREKMIFE3S) - BT ESERRER
Directors were granted share options to subscribe for MEERE  MR_T—=F+-HA=
Shares. Details of share options outstanding and T— B R RITERA FITEAERER
exercisable as at 31 December 2013 were as follows: BT

Number of underlying
shares comprised in

the share options Exercise
Date of grant Capacity BRESR Exercisable period  price per share
Name of Director Y3 RAAS 56 HEBRAHE ik BRITEE
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming ~ RikHA % & 9 October 2012 Beneficial owner 12,000,000 9 October 2012 to HK$0.25
“Z-Z%+ANA ERBEEA 8 October 2022 02637

“E-ZETANBE

ZE-ZETANR
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung ~ RERAE 25 October 2010 Beneficial owner 17,000,000 25 April 2011 to HK$0.855
“E-TE+A-TEA EREEA 24 October 2020 0.8557 7T

“E——fNA-THAZR
ZEZTE+ACZFRA

Mr. SO Yiu Cheung BIEEEE 9 Qctober 2012 Beneficial owner 8,000,000 9 October 2012 to HK$0.25
“E-Z%+ANA EREEA 8 October 2022 02637
Z2-£+tANRZE
ZE-ZETANR
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man,  R&EX A4 9 October 2012 Beneficial owner 3,200,000 9 October 2012 to HK$0.25
Dennis —E-Z#+ANA EREEA 8 October 2022 0.25% 7
Z2-£+tANRZE
ZE-ZETANR
Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, ~ BERR%E 25 October 2010 Beneficial owner 1,000,000 25 April 2011 to HK$0.855
Stephen ZZ-Z§TAZ1HA ERBEA 24 October 2020 085557

“E-—-fMA-THAZ
—Z-TE+AC+RA

9 October 2012 Beneficial owner 5,600,000 9 October 2012 to HK$0.25
ZZ-Z5TANA EnBEA 8 October 2022 025570
“E-ZFTRNAZE
:2::¢+HAE
Mr. HUI Yat On R/t 9 Qctober 2012 Beneficial owner 1,000,000 9 October 2012 to HK$0.25
“E-—F+ANA EREBA 8 October 2022 0.25% T
“E-ZFTRNAZE
:2::¢+HAE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (Continued)

Share Options (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none
of the Directors or chief executive, had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above and note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the Period under Review
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or minor children to acquire
such benefits.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2013, so far as the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company are aware, the following persons or corporations (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company of 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital:

FERRRAQRRRS - HEKRND

RES2HBRKRE

BARREZENERITHRAEBMAM - RIBEES

N EAEIRFI EXVEIEI36IEBETFTHEEZ T EMR
HEGMER R-E—=F+—-"A=+—H

THALSEE (AR A EBRBETHA SR
SRARTZ I « AR RS A
AR FEBTRAE%H I FHER R AR

Number of
Shares held and
underlying shares

Approximate
percentage
of the Company’s

34

Name of of the Company issued share capital
Substantial Shareholder Capacity Notes BERGOR FOAFERTREZ
TERFEER 14 liks3 RATEEARGEAE BABED T
Aviation Industry Corporation Interest in controlled 1 1,850,980,000 32.01%
of China corporation
PR ETIEEE QA XEHEEER
AVIC International Holding Interest in controlled 1,6 1,850,980,000 32.01%
Corporation corporation
PEMERMERZERAERA R XEGEEES
AVIC International (HK) Interest in controlled 1,6 1,850,980,000 32.01%
Group Limited corporation
FHEER (B8 EEERAR X ERER
Tacko International Limited Interest in controlled 1 1,296,900,000 22.43%
corporation
XEHEEER
AVIC International Holding Interest in controlled 1,6 1,296,900,000 22.43%

(HK) Limited corporation
B ZE TS B R R SR HEE S
(BB)BRRAT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ETERS

FERRRAQRRY - HEAKRND

RESFEBZERKXE

B (#E)

Number of
Shares held and
underlying shares

Approximate
percentage
of the Company’s

Name of of the Company issued share capital
Substantial Shareholder Capacity Notes BEROMR ERARNBRITRAEAZ
TERREE 237 B 5% ARAREBARGHE BMOBE DT
Kingspot Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1,6 1,268,000,000 21.93%
EREEA
China Environmental Investment Interest in controlled 1,6 554,080,000 9.58%
Holdings Limited corporation
TERRREKRO AR QA REREEE R
Light Pearl Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 1 554,080,000 9.58%
corporation
REREEE R
Tongda Information Technology Interest in controlled 1 554,080,000 9.58%
Limited corporation
BEFRRMARRAR e PNE
Smarty Capital Investments Beneficial owner 1,6 554,080,000 9.58%
Limited EREA A
Mr. Zhang Yang Beneficial owner 1,000,000,000 17.29%
RIBEE EREEA
Mr. Guan Hongliang Interest in controlled 2 553,500,000 9.57%

st

corporation
SR HEE M

(For the nine
B

AR E R S
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

FERRAKRQATRS - HERKR G
FESCEBZRAE &)

underlying shares

Approximate
percentage
of the Company’s

Number of
Shares held and

Name of of the Company issued share capital
Substantial Shareholder Capacity Notes BERAR ARATCBITREZ
FTERRER 517 i3 AAREBEROEA BABDH
Broadlink Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 3 558,500,000 9.57%
EmEA
Mr. Chen Zechao Beneficial owner 396,000,000 6.85%
BR=E %L & EmEEA
Mr. Town Man Chung David Interest in controlled 4 319,500,000 5.53%
X A corporation
SEHIEE R
Alliance Elegant Limited Beneficial owner 5 319,500,000 5.53%

EmEAA

Notes:

1.

36

Aviation Industry Corporation of China (“AVIC”) is interested in
1,850,980,000 Shares and underlying shares under convertible
notes indirectly through Smarty Capital Investments Limited
(“SCIL”), Billirich Investment Limited and Kingspot Investment
Limited (“KIL”).

AVIC holds 76.83% interest in AVIC International Holding
Corporation which in turn holds 100% interest in AVIC
International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC Group”) which in turn
holds 11.49% in China Environmental Investment Holdings
Limited (“CEIHL").

AVIC Group also holds 100% interest in Tacko International
Limited which in turn holds 41.03% interest in AVIC International
Holding (HK) Limited (“AVIC Holding”) which in turn holds 100%
interest in Billirich Investment Limited which in turn holds 23.53%
interest in CEIHL.

CEIHL holds 100% interest in Light Pearl Holdings Limited which
in turn holds 100% interest in Tongda Information Technology
Limited which in turn holds 100% interest in SCIL which holds
554,080,000 Shares.

AVIC Holding holds 100% interest in KIL which is interested in
convertible notes that may be converted into 1,268,000,000
Shares.

I PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T [E#2% 4& [R A 7
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. Broadlink Enterprises Limited is beneficially and wholly owned
by Mr. Guan Hongliang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Guan Hongliang
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Broadlink
Enterprises Limited.

3. Broadlink Enterprises Limited is interested in (i) 350,652,000
Shares and (i) convertible notes that may be converted into
202,848,000 Shares.

4. Alliance Elegant Limited is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr.
Town Man Chung David. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Town Man
Chung David is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Alliance Elegant Limited.

5. Alliance Elegant Limited is interested in convertible notes that
may be converted into 319,500,000 Shares.

6. Mr. Zhang Chuanjun is a director of AVIC Int’l, KIL, Billirich
Investment Limited, CEIHL and SCIL; the chief financial officer
of AVIC Int’l Group and AVIC Int’l; and the deputy chief financial
officer of AVIC International Holding Corporation. Mr. Zhu Dong
is the deputy chief financial officer of AVIC Int’l Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the nine months, none of the Directors has any competing
interests in any business or has any interest in any business that
may constitute direct or indirect competition with the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of total revenue, total sub-contracting costs
and purchases of materials for the nine months attributable to
the Group’s major customers, sub-contractors and suppliers are
as follows:

Revenue

— the largest customer 27.72%
— five largest customers combined 64.73%
Sub-contracting costs

— the largest sub-contractor 10.14%
— five largest sub-contractors combined 34.32%
Purchases of materials

- the largest supplier 25.29%
- five largest suppliers combined 63.30%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers, sub-
contractors or suppliers noted above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out on pages 41 to 50 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at 31 March 2014.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Period under Review, the Group made charitable
donations amounted to approximately HK$76,000.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. TAM Sun Wing, Mr. HUI Yat On
and Mr. ZHANG Songlin. Mr. TAM Sun Wing, who possesses
professional accounting qualifications and relevant accounting
experience, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the main role and functions of the
Audit Committee are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, and to maintain relationship with the auditors of the
Company.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group during the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the
interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2013
and last year’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2013,
and has reviewed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing,
financial reporting matters and risk management systems of the
Group.

The Group’s final results for the nine months ended 31 December
2013 have been reviewed by the members of the Audit
Committee before submission to the Board for approval.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the significant events after the reporting date of the
Group are set out in note 52 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

BDO Limited resigned as the auditor of the Company effective
from 23 December 2013. The Company has appointed
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”) as the auditor
of the Company effective from 23 December 2013.
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A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general R ARAZ EERRBEFAES FHiRE —HR
meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING as the auditor ~ :#ZE * WEFHEZTEKFPMARR A 2 ZH

of the Company. fm o
On behalf of the Board RREFE
Peace Map Holding Limited ATEEZERERAFR
ZHU Dong REELE
Acting Chairman K%
Hong Kong, 31 March 2014 B —E-—WNM&F=ZA=+—H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance is essential
for enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to
the potential investors and the shareholders. Therefore, the Board
is committed to maintaining high standard corporate governance
practices. The Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the nine months ended
31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The role of the Board includes overseeing the strategic
development, business planning, risk management, annual and
interim results, and other significant operational and financial
matters of the Group. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim financial statements to be
approved by the Board before public reporting, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and ensuring compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. In discharging
its responsibilities, the Board meets regularly and acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care.

The Board currently is composed of seven Directors, of which
four are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The executive Directors are responsible for
the Group’s day-to-day operations and management. All
Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and
important matters of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHE

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance
in the regular full Board meetings, committee meetings and
general meetings for the nine months ended 31 December 2013

BE_ZT—=F+"_A=+—BIENER &
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are as follows:
EE R VRGNS |
No. of meetings attended/held
EZe ENZEEES RAZEGES FWZEgel

2EEHER Audit ~ Nomination ~Remuneration BRAE

Regular Full Committee Committee Committee General

Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meetings
Executive Directors YHES
Mr. ZHU Dong RERHE (RELE)

(Acting Chairman) 14/14 - - - 3/3
Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun REFLA 9/14 - - - 13
Mr. ZHANG Jack Jiyei REBELE 0/6 - - - 112
Mr. FENG Tao BEEE (HHEE)

(Chief Financial Officer) 17 - - - NAER)
Mr. YUEN Chow Ming RikeEE

(Resigned on 16 January 2014) (RZZ-mE—-AT~BFET) 114 - - - 0/3
Mr. YUEN Wai Keung REREE

(Resigned on 1 March 2014) (W_Z-mE=A-HET) 11/14 - 2/3 1/2 13
Mr. SO Yiu Cheung HREELE

(Resigned on 1 January 2014) (RZZ-mE-A—-HEL) 1114 - - - 0/3
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Man, Dennis FEEE

(Resigned on 1 January 2014) (RZZ-mE-A—-HEL) 14/14 - - - 3/3
Mr. LEUNG, Chung Tak Barry 2hERE

(Resigned on 2 April 2013) (R=E-=EmAZHEH) 0/0 - - - NAER)
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. WONG Kwok Kee ERERE

(Resigned on (RZZ-=F+ZA+7BEE)

16 December 2013) 712 - - - 0/3
Mr. NG Wing Keung ki ks

(Resigned on 15 October 2013) (R=Z-=F+A+RHEE) 7/9 - - - 0/2
Independent Non-Executive BUKHTES

Directors
Mr. HUI Yat On FoRRE 13/14 44 - - 23
Mr. TAM Sun Wing BEMREE 12/14 44 313 22 113
Mr. ZHANG Songlin RIMHEAE 12/14 4/4 3/3 2/2 0/3
Mr. LIAO Cheung Tin, Stephen BRA%E

(Resigned on 1 February 2014) (RZZ-WE-A—-HEL) 10/14 2/4 - - 0/3
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Rule 3.10A requires at least one third of the directors of a listed
company to be independent non-executive directors. In July
2013, the number of the independent non-executive Directors
has fallen below one third of the Directors as required. The
Company has taken remedial steps by progressively reducing
the size of the Board and by 31 December 2013, the Board
being comprised of 12 Directors, of which 4 were independent
non-executive Directors, complies with the requirement under
Rule 3.10A.

The Board has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. HUI Yat On, an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 10 August 2013 which may
be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice.
Mr. TAM Sun Wing, an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 12 December 2013 which may
be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice.
Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of one year commencing on 11 March 2014 which may be
terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, 14 full Board
meetings and 3 general meetings were held. Minutes of the Board
meetings and general meetings are being kept by the Company
Secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by
the Directors and auditors of the Company.

The Directors are the senior management of the Company. Details
of their remuneration for the nine months ended 31 December
2013 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHE

THE ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Period under Review, the positions of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer were held by two different persons
and each of them plays a distinctive role to ensure a balance of
power and authority. Mr. YUEN Chow Ming, being the then
Chairman, was responsible for the leadership and formulation
of corporate strategies of the Group. Mr. YUEN Wai Keung, being
the then Chief Executive Officer, was responsible for the overall
business management and corporate development of the Group.
The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other save for that Mr. YUEN Chow Ming
is the father of Mr. YUEN Wai Keung.

Further details on the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 20
under the section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. The obligations to comply with
the Listing Rules are set out in the service contract of each
executive Director and non-executive Director and the letter of
appointment of each independent non-executive Director. The
Company has made specific enquiries with the Directors, and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements set out under the Model Code for the nine months
ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

During the Period under Review, all Directors were provided with
regular updates on applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
Individual Directors also participated in courses relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or
enhanced their professional development by way of reading the
relevant materials. The training record of each Director for the
Period under Review is set out below :
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EERERCEXELAEBER
Director’s duties and
corporate governance related

Executive Directors
ZHU Dong

ZHANG Chuanjun
ZHANG, Jack Jiyei
FENG Tao

Independent Non-Executive Director
Hui Yat On

Tam Sun Wing

Zhang Songlin

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in D.3.1 of the CG Code. The corporate
governance duties performed by the Board for the nine months
ended 31 December 2013 were summarized below:-

(i) reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

(if) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iif) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and other related rules and disclosures in this Corporate
Governance Report; and

(iv) reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHE

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has set up three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee to implement internal supervision and control on
relevant aspects of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. TAM Sun Wing, Mr. HUI Yat On
and Mr. ZHANG Songlin. Mr. TAM Sun Wing, who possesses
professional accounting qualifications and relevant accounting
experience, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the main role and functions of the
Audit Committee are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, and to maintain relationship with the auditors of the
Company.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group during the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the
interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2013
and last year’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2013,
and has reviewed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing,
financial reporting matters and risk management systems of the
Group.

The Group’s final results for the nine months ended 31 December
2013 have been reviewed by the members of the Audit
Committee before submission to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. ZHU Dong, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. TAM Sun Wing and Mr. ZHANG Songlin.
Mr. TAM Sun Wing is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is to assist and

make recommendations to the Board to ensure that all the
nominations are fair and transparent.
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During the Period under Review, the work of the Nomination
Committee includes reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, making recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed change and determining the policy for the nomination
of Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
Mr. ZHU Dong, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. TAM Sun Wing and Mr. ZHANG Songlin. Mr. TAM
Sun Wing is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The key responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management and determine the remuneration package of the
Directors and the senior management.

During the Period under Review, the Remuneration Committee
has considered and reviewed the existing terms of remuneration
of all the Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee considered that the existing terms of
remuneration of the Directors and the senior management were
fair and reasonable. In forming its view, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy in relation to that of comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the
senior management, desirability of performance-based
remuneration and the Corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 February
2006. Its purpose is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the eligible participants (including the Directors)
have made or may make to the business development of the
Group. Please refer to note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements for the principal terms of the share option scheme.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis has been appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 15 October 2008 and
is involved in the day-to-day corporate affairs of the Company.
Mr. Cheung reports to the Board and is responsible for advising
the Board on governance matters. In compliance with the Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Cheung has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Period under
Review.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company places great importance on internal control and
risk management to achieve the established corporate objectives,
safeguard the assets of the Group and the interests of the
shareholders. The Board has the overall responsibility for the
internal control system and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system, covering its financial operational,
compliance control and risk management functions.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company recognizes the importance of communication with
the shareholders of the Company, both individual and institutional
as well as potential investors. The Company has adopted a
Shareholders Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring
shareholders are provided with timely information about the
Company and enabling them to engage actively with the
Company and to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

The Company has policy for promoting investor relations and
communications by maintaining regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media. Meetings
and conference calls were held with investors and analysts in
order for the Company to understand their views and to keep
them abreast of the latest developments. Inquires on the
Company were also dealt with in an informative and timely
manner according to established practices of the Company.

The Company’s website www.peacemap.com.hk also facilitates
communication with shareholders and investors. Corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information of the Company are made electronically and in a
timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist himself may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist
by the Company.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to Company Secretary of the
Company and his contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Peace Map Holding Limited

Room AQ02, 35th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway

Hong Kong

Email info@peacemap.com.hk
Tel. No. (852) 3759 5300

Fax No. (852) 3759 5366

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group, and of results and cash flows for the period.
The Directors shall ensure that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 51 to 53 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
(“SHINEWING”), has been employed to provide audit services
to the Group since 23 December 2013. The remuneration paid
or payable to SHINEWING in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the nine months ended 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately HK$1,175,000 and HK$1,570,000
respectively. The non-audit services were mainly related to the
following services:

0] the review of interim financial information of Sinbo Group;

(i) the review of the indebtedness statement of Sinbo Group
for the major transaction of the Company; and

(iif) being the reporting accountant in relation to the acquisition
of Sinbo Group.

BDO Limited, the former auditor of the Company, has been
employed to provide audit services to the Group. The
remuneration paid or payable to BDO Limited in respect of audit
service and non-audit services for the nine months ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately HK$600,000 and
HK$1,153,000 respectively. The non-audit services were mainly
related to the following services: (i) the review of interim financial
information of the Group; (i) the review of financial information
of acquisition of Sinbo Group; (iii) the review of financial
information of disposal of Rich Path; and (iv) the professional
services for taxation.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Period under Review, there is no change in the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43[F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

(ERe

Shc‘newinﬁ

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS MONGOLIA INVESTMENT GROUP
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Peace
Map Holding Limited (formerly known as Mongolia Investment
Group Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 255, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
period from 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013, and a significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the period from
1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements, which describes the
material uncertainty in respect of the implementation of relevant
laws and regulations in Mongolia which may have a significant
impact on the position and carrying value of the Group’s mining
licences.

OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unqgualified opinion on those statements on 3 July
2013.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
31 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRER

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HIt @A

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—=F ®BE_ZT—=F
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
IE A8 B EFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T
(Restated)
(E5)
Continuing operations BHEREEL
Revenue g 6 210,089 -
Cost of revenue W g A 7R (110,978) -
Gross profit EF 99,111 -
Other income and gain = PN & 8 36,001 770
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MRS (2,187) -
Administrative and other TR REMEERSY
operating expenses (84,965) (49,555)
Impairment loss of property, Y - HE
plant and equipment REREEE 16 (2,950) (2,805)
Impairment loss of other HihmEEERE
intangible assets &5 21 (10,086) -
Impairment loss of mining licences IR RREESE 22 (173,440) (152,919)
Impairment loss of exploration BR R h B E
and evaluation assets B EE 23 (3,747) (24,617)
Impairment loss of trade B 5 I H fth & W RUIR
and other receivables B 28 (15,720) -
Fair value gain (loss) on the Derivative AR ZEIFIZITET A
Component of Convertible Note | B AnEkKE (B1E)  34(a) 6,045 (5,979)
Fair value loss on the financial liabilities & @128 1E A £ EHFRH
at fair value through profit or loss MBBEZAREEE  34(b) (61,514) -
Operating loss K EE (213,452) (235,105)
Finance costs A& B AR 9 (89,731) (93,033)
Loss before taxation HER P55 A& B 10 (303,183) (328,138)
Income tax credit FristiiE e 11 49,123 38,205
Loss for the period/year from BELLSEB RN
continuing operations FAEE (254,060) (289,933)
Discontinued operations ERILEEER
Loss for the period/year from BRIMEEEK AN
discontinued operations FANEE 12 (17,102) (10,061)
Loss for the period/year BN, F N EIE (271,162) (299,994)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

mEBREX

T—=F+_A=+—HIN@EA

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-_Z—=% %i?::%—_i
+=—A=+—8H =A=+-
IEA@A iif;
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FTHExT FET
(Restated)
(E%5))
Loss for the period/year attributable KRAREE AEMG
to owners of the Company: B/ FREE -
— from continuing operations —REFERKEER (247,379) (289,774)
— from discontinued operations —KREERIEEER (17,073) (10,038)
Loss for the period/year attributable KRAREE AEG
to owners of the Company R,/ FREER (264,452) (299,812)
Loss for the period/year attributable PR = RS
to non-controlling interests: HNFREE
— from continuing operations —RERBEKEET (6,681) (1569)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEREETS (29) (23)
Loss for the period/year attributable FEPE AR R =S R AL
to non-controlling interests R,/ FREER (6,710) (182)
(271,162) (299,994)
Loss per share (HK cents) BREE (BA)
From continuing and discontinued REFERERIE
operations BT
— Basic and diluted —EARE#E 14 (7.01) (16.30)
From continuing operations REFELE XS
- Basic and diluted —ERKREE 14 (6.56) (15.75)

[Furthe nine
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREmRkEMEZERER

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HIt @A

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—= HE-_ZT—=
+t=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
IER@A IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT 5 FHET FHET
Loss for the period/year BN/ FREIE (271,162) (299,994)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEWBA )
(expense)
ltems that may be reclassified BERR A EF RS
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEE
Exchange difference arising from BREBINEBFIEEZ
translation of overseas operations lEH =% 6,768 (12,565)
Release of translation reserve upon S E A AR E D
disposal of subsidiaries BE 41 (1,188) -
Other comprehensive income (expense)  HIRA,F R E b 2 WA
for the period/year, net of income tax (M%) - Mk
of nil Fristi A 5,580 (12,565)
Total comprehensive expense R,/ FREEMR AR
for the period/year (265,582) (312,559)
Total comprehensive expense LUTHIEEGEEZAE
attributable to: F Sz 48R
Owners of the Company KARHEE A (260,389) (312,404)
Non-controlling interests eI (5,193) (155)
(265,582) (312,559)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B IR R

As at 31 December 2013 R-_ZE—=%+_H=+—H

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—F-= —T=F
+=ZA=+-—8 =A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ig=2 FHET T T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 16 66,391 68,704
Deposit paid for acquisition TWEMESI 2
of properties 17 492 -
Prepaid land lease payments TE T E R 18 - 167
Goodwill EES 20 669,287 -
Mining licences R R 22 148,888 364,269
Exploration and evaluation assets BHERFHEE 23 - 3,834
Prepayments and deposits FENRERES 24 = -
Other intangible assets EMEREE 21 632,705 -
Deferred tax assets RETIEE = 36 4,010 -
Financial asset at fair value through BRARERIERSER
profit or loss LG EE 25 - 4,940
Derivative financial asset — Derivative ~ $74 81 7§ & & — A[ 32 0%
Component ERIZITE
of the Convertible Note | T AEEH 34 60,851 57,755
1,582,624 499,669
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BB 26 17,087 94,167
Amounts due from customers EUREFEH
of contract works TIRMIE 27 201,748 126,612
Trade and other receivables B 5 KA M E W FRIE 28 150,911 185,838
Loan receivable JEUE R 29 10,921 -
Amounts due from non-controlling JE W FE 15 AR A% 3R FIR
shareholders 19 3,820 -
Tax recoverable AT Uy [B] % T8 6 783
Pledged bank deposits B RITFER 30 11,336 20,057
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 31 75,120 291,454
470,949 718,911
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables g5 REMENFKIEA 32 187,446 123,125
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A JEFE AR A SR FIR
shareholders 19 39,092 -
Tax payables JE 1 738 5,381 392
Borrowings BE 33 37,669 447 676
269,588 571,193
Net current assets RBEEFE 201,361 147,718
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERREBERGE 1,783,985 647,387




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBERR R

As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—= —E—=%F
+=B=+—8H =A=+—8
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
M=E FHET FABT
Non-current liabilities kABEE
Borrowings BE 33 54,277 -
Convertible notes Al MR R 34 712,566 514,179
Financial liabilities at fair value BARBERERIE
through profit or loss LU BBEE 34 109,773 -
Deferred income AU A 35 7,014 6,631
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 36 115,254 93,960
998,884 614,770
Net assets EEFE 785,101 32,617
Equity v
Share capital % 37 1,445,575 459,899
Reserves & 39 (786,329) (426,576)
Equity attributable to owners RRREB A
of the Company FEAGHE = 659,246 33,323
Non-controlling interests IEVE RS 125,855 (706)
Total equity R 785,101 32,617

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 255 were ~ $£54E255H Fisl 2 i3 A B HRERN — T — 4

approved and authorised for issuance by the board of directors =A=+—BRKEE S ENFETIE - I H
on 31 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: NTEERKREE -
ZHU Dong FENG Tao
K& B
Director Director
EFE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERZEHR

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-"ZT—=%F+_-F=+—HIt (@A

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KRIREARGEE
Capital Convertible Non-
Share - redemption note equity controlling
Share Share ~ Merger  option  reserve  Statutory Translation  reserve Accumulated interests Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve 5 reseve  reseve THBEE  losses Tota  FER  equity

Ba  RHRE AKEE BRERE HEEE IERE ERRE  EEEE  EHEE ai Bs 4B
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000
TR TEr  fRr TR TEr TR TEn  TEr TR TEn T TEx
(note 37) (note 3%(@) (note 39b) (note 39(d) (note 3%(e)) (note 3 (note 3%(g)  (note 3
(hitan) (htsop) (Wirao) (Witsol) (Wifo)  (Mifsef)) (Wtsog)  (Mifsd)

At 1 Apr 2012 R-%--#RA-A 459,899 1,066,066 13,805 21,009 6,629 - 107075 348595 (1,671603) 341475 (5o1) 30924
Loss fr the yer BEEEE - - - - - - - - pmsY pssY) (%) (%89%)
Exchange difference arising from BEBNERHEL ER RS
iranslation of overseas operations REFEENZERS ME)

and ofher comprehensive expense

[mcome)f heyea - - - - - - (1259 - - (1259) A (12569)
Total comprehensive expense for the year KEERERRLR - - - - - - (1259 - [09812)  [312404) (155)  (312,559)
Recognion of equiy-seted share based payments  EZEZEERRG BER 27 - - - LR - - - - - - R
Vested share options forfaied FUBEE ERE - - - (16%) - - - - 1,636 - - -
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013

459,809 1,066,066 13,805 23,675 6,629 - 94483 348595 (1969820 33,328 (06) 32617
Loss for the eriog HRER - - - - - - - - ) ORR) BTI0) QLR
Exchange diference arising from BESNSRAELELZE

translafion of overseas operations - - - - - - 5,261 - - 5,261 1617 6,768
Release of translaton reserve Upon lisposal HENBAIRARAEER

of subsidiaries - - - - - - (1,188) - - (1,188) - (1,188)
Other comprehensive income for the period EnEp2ENE - - - - - - 4063 - - 4,063 1517 5560
Tota comprehensive income (expense) for the period M2 TN (R0 £8 - - - - - - 4,063 - [264452)  (60,389) (5,193 (265,582
Acquiston of subsidiares WEHELT - - - - - - - - - - 131808 131,808
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRAT - - - - - - - - - - (54) (]
Issue of Placing Shares (note 37(0) BAIRERR (H3k370) 90,000 - - - - - - - - 90000 - 9000
Share issue expenses (note 37(0) OESIESGRRID) - (1800) - - - - - - - (1800) - (1800)
Shares issued upon exercise of share options TR0 (H3E7(0)

(note 37(c)) 15,39 2755 - (2,795 - - - - - 15,3% - 15,395
Appropriations to stafutory reserve funds BEiTHE ﬁ - - - - - 101 - - (14 - - -
Issue of Convertble Note I {note 34(o)) (3 - - - - - - - 199,869 - 199,869 - 199,869
Conversion of Convertible Note | (note 37(c]) 1224 56,662 - - - - - 801 - 4099 - 4099
Conversion of Convertiole Note Il (note 37 867,007 (178,783) - - - - - (148278) - 540,93 - 540,03
Recognition of equity-settled share based payments - - - 983 - - - - - 983 - 983
At 31 December 2013 WoE-ZF+-f=1-A 1445575 934,900 13,806 21,903 6,629 11401 9546 372169 (22456820) 659246 125805 785,101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_-_F=+—HI- @A

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE—Z—=F ®BE-ZT—=F
+=A=+—-~ =RA=t—H
IEA{E B IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Loss before income tax bR PTG B A ES 18
- Continuing operations — R EET (303,183) (328,138)
- Discontinued operations —ERIEEEET (16,013) (12,190)
Adjustments for: FHE
Finance costs BE RN 91,445 95,879
Gain on extension of non-interest EREFEETN KT
bearing loans (4,365) -
Fair value loss on the financial BRBHEEANE
liabilities at fair value through VIR A E
profit or loss ZANEEE 61,514 -
Amortisation of prepaid land TEN T b 1 & IR HE 5
lease payments 150 229
Amortisation of other H A
intangible assets 34,626 -
Fair value (gain) loss on the AR ERIZITE
Derivative Component TEXH»RARE
of the Convertible Note | (W &) B8 (6,045) 5,979
Equity-settled share-based e 8 H R 1 A E T
payment expense 2R AX 983 4,252
Depreciation of property, WME - BREREE
plant and equipment ZHE 11,147 14,388
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BER
plant and equipment iz BB 288 3,994
Impairment loss of property, W - BB N
plant and equipment 2 REEE 2,950 2,805
Impairment loss of mining licences KRR EEE 173,440 152,919
Impairment loss of exploration BRRTHEE
and evaluation assets A EE 3,747 24,617
Impairment loss of trade Z 5 Kk H M EWGRIE
and other receivables ZOREEE 15,720 -
Impairment loss of other Hihm & ERERER
intangible assets 10,086 -
Exchange loss bE 3 E5 18 22,679 7,246
Interest income F B WA (615) (1,160)
Government grant income R 48 B A (13,150) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBARZEE 20,187 -
Gain arising from extension TERAREBREE 2 W=
of Promissory Note (17,819) -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

T-=ZF+-_A=+—HIENMEA

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BEz=-2—= HE-_Z—=
+=—A=+—8H =A=+—H
IE R {8 A LFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FET
Operating profit (loss) before working %@ﬁéﬁ@mu
capital changes A& A (B518) 87,772 (29,180)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERY (i'jJD) 3,536 (40,828)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due EYE P& TIRNIE
from customers of contract works (380 3 > (155,265) 100,704
Decrease (increase) in trade B 5 REMEWFKIE
and other receivables R (g ) 51,072 (83,721)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 I E th & < ZRIB G N 57,617 24,959
Cash generated from (used in) LEELE(BA)CER
operations 44,732 (28,066)
Interest paid on bank loans RITERRBEL REMER
and overdraft and other loans ZBRFE (6,063) (2,846)
Interest received EFE 615 1,160
Income tax (paid) refunded (B BRI (681) 773
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REeZBREE (BA)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEEFHE 38,603 (28,979)

(BE=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-—Z—=F #HE-ZT—=
+t=—A=+—8 =A=+—H
IER@A IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
(Increase) decrease in pledged BHEIRITE R (L)
bank deposits NogAs (235) 4,360
Increase in loan receivable JiE U B SR N (2,215) -
Payments to acquire property, BEME  BEX
plant and equipment B PN (8,179) (15,945)
Net cash outflow on acquisition W B BT B8 2 B
of subsidiaries LB e 40 (210,757) -
Payment to acquire other WEEMmEREE
intangible assets pANE:N (58,317) -
Deposit paid for acquisition RWEMESZ 2 LE
of properties 17 (492) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial PERAREAERAEBRE
assets at fair value through IR HBEE S
profit or loss P1S3RIE 15,060 -
Net cash outflow on disposal HERBAAZ
of subsidiaries IR &7 F R 41 (93,182) -
Addition to exploration ANEBEBERTEEE
and evaluation assets (246) (1,005)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE  BEK
plant and equipment FAEPTIS B 3,364 4,081
Advance to non-controlling A SE4E AR IR SR 1E HE B K
shareholders (1,523) -
Payment of deposits for potential NG
acquisition of a subsidiary BEWES iR - (40,000)
Refund of deposits for potential MBRAIZ
acquisition of a subsidiary EBERERERS - 40,000
Payment for the financial assets MIERA R ER BRI
at fair value through profit or loss 2 EENMNR - (4,940)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZDFFARSFR
ACTIVITIES (356,722) (13,449)

62 I PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T [E#2% 4& [R A 7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

T-=ZF+-_A=+—HIENMEA

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-—Z2—= HE-_ZT—=
+=—A=+—8H =A=+—8H
IE R {8 A IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{hx=3 FERT FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RESER
Proceeds from issuance FHBEEEITRMD 2
of shares through placing Fr1S 318 37(b) 90,000 -
Share issue expenses A& h B 1TR S 37(b) (1,800) -
Proceeds from issuance of share FHBITE IR EET
through exercise of share option %T"Zﬁﬁ@fﬂ 37(c) 15,395 -
Advance from non-controlling FEE IR AR R A
shareholders 29,273 -
Government grant received B YBUT fh Bh 12,320 -
New bank borrowings raised MERITEE - 144,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (44,112) (121,666)
Capital element of finance leases BMEMRE 2 BRI, - (13)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RETBEMELEZ
ACTIVITIES HEFEE 101,076 22,321
NET DECREASE IN CASH ReRRAEZEYRD
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B (217,043) (20,107)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS il £ z2B&Rk
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE Re%EY
PERIOD/YEAR 31 291,454 311,000
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes & R & &) » 522 709 561
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT iR "ERz2BEER
THE END OF THE PERIOD/YEAR, ReZEEY
represented by bank balances BIRITTEB LIRS
and cash 31 75,120 291,454
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HIt @A

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

Peace Map Holding Limited (formerly know as Mongolia
Investment Group Limited) (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 May 2004 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of its principal place of business is Room A02, 35th Floor,
United Centre, 95 Queensway, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed in annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 August 2013,
together with the approval of the Registrar of Companies
in the Cayman Islands on 4 September 2013 and the
approval of Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 25
September 2013, the name of the Company has been
changed from “Mongolia Investment Group Limited (5 &
RELEE AR AR to “Peace Map Holding Limited (X
T B A R A 7)) with effect from 4 September 2013.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in geographical
information business in People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) including aerial photography, aviation and
aerospace remote sensing image data processing and
data extraction (the “data processing”), provision of
geographic information system (“GIS”) software and
solutions (the “software application”), and sales of
cameras and manufacture and sales of unmanned aerial
vehicles (the “sales of cameras and unmanned aerial
vehicles”), as well as mining and exploration of mineral
resources in Mongolia. The Group discontinued its
operations in the provision of maintenance and
construction works on civil engineering contracts in
respect of waterworks engineering, road works and
drainage and slope upgrading for the public sector in Hong
Kong, the provision of water supply services in Mainland
China and the provision of renovation services in Macau
during the nine months ended 31 December 2013
following the completion of the disposal of Rich Path
Holdings Limited (“Rich Path”) on 20 December 2013 (the
“Disposal”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

BASIS OF PREPARATION

During the current financial period, the reporting period
end date of the Group was changed from 31 March to 31
December because the directors of the Company
determined to bring the annual reporting period end date
of the Group in line with most of its operating subsidiaries
in the PRC. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements for the current period cover the nine months
period ended 31 December 2013. The corresponding
comparative amounts shown for the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement
of cash flows and related notes cover twelve months
period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and therefore
may not be comparable with amounts shown for the
current period.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. Other than those subsidiaries
established in PRC, Macau, Singapore and Mongolia
whose functional currency are Renminbi (“RMB”), Macau
Pataca (“MOP”), Singapore Dollars (“SGD”) and Mongolian
Tugrik (“MNT”) respectively, the functional currency of the
Company and other subsidiaries is HKS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EAFHTRLETTBUER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER ((BFBMBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) all)

RAHHE - ARREEATIHELES
AR Rg (BRI AE]) BMHFH
AR ARIERT R - BRI K2R ([RE])
(N [#a] REERT BB M B WmE
R ZBETA -

In the current period, the Company has applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation (“Int”) (herein collectively
referred to as “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

66

(“HKICPA").
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements BV BRE “EENEFE
2009 - 2011 Cycle ZERHERT AR —T——FAHN
mFE o
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting BB BHRE BT S
Financial Assets and AERIZE 7SR BEHMHAE
Financial Liabilities (EEN
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BV BRE AV BHRE
Statements AEBII 1058
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements BBV B®RE BETH
AEBIE1158
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in BEBMGRE BEREMELR
Other Entities B 125% 71 2
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BABMERE NABEFE
AR ZE135%

Amendments to Consolidated Financial BT B®RE RE IS EHRE
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Statements, Joint AR FE 1055 BETHEREE
and HKFRS 12 Arrangements and BEMBRE O H Ath B B HY

Disclosure of Interests in EBIFE1158 K = BE
Other Entities: Transition BV B®RE 53l
Guidance AEBI| 1258

(EEIP:N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Presentation of ltems of

FE 3T R] R RIS ET BB BT 35 3
SEA((FEEUBREE

all) @

G R

2 HEMEmE

Other Comprehensive F1RIEFT AR W8 B
Income

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount BEEFTEA M BEEN
Disclosures for Non- E 36 IS ET A A E S REREE
Financial Assets

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits BB LR B E =X
(as revised in 2011) FE195%

(R-—T——%F
&ET)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial BB G 2R CERVRUR

(as revised in 2011) Statements F275E
R=F——%F
&ET)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates BB EA REEE R A R

(as revised in 2011) and Joint Ventures F285%% EEMENRE
(R=—ZT——F
(D)

Hong Kong Stripping Costs in the 5 (BRME BRBESEEMRR
(International Production Phase WERE B ) B A R
Financial Reporting of a Surface Mine ZE®) (&8
Interpretation Committee (BB S s
(“HK(IFRIC)”) = Int 20 ZEZE®])) -

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised amendments to HKFRSs in the current period
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
position and performance for the current period and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2EE 20 57

BT XA EIN - RAHRE - BREE
MR E LR REEFTAH A EHE
RAHIRE KB EFER M BN RRER
R/ SR EGRAVBERRAEBEADIL

BEATE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current period. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to
both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g.
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group
has not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS
13 for the March 2013 comparative period. Other than
the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13
has not had any material impact on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a
‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a
‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a
‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements.

However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
existing option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments
have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has
been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on
profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS
11 Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the
Group as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set
out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor
has control over an investee when a) it has power over
the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control
over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Additional guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to
explain when an investor has control over an investee.
Some guidance included in HKFRS 10 that deals with
whether or not an investor that owns less than 50% of
the voting rights in an investee has control over the
investee is relevant to the Group.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10
(Continued)

As a result of the initial application of HKFRS 10, the
directors of the Company made an assessment whether
the Group has control over its investee at the date of initial
application and concluded that the application of HKFRS
10 does not result in any change in control conclusions.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the application of HKFRS
12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Further details are
disclosed in notes 49 and 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit
(“*CGU”) to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the
related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used
when the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was
determined based on its fair value less costs to sell.

The Group has early adopted these amendments to HKAS
36. The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Disclosures about
the Group’s impaired non-financial assets are included in
notes 16, 20, 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EAFHTRLETTBUER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA ((BEBMBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) all) @&
New and revised standards, amendments EEMEERERZ IR R
and interpretations in issue but not yet RTER - BRI AR RE
effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and NEEIWEIZAER T3 2 B/ME R K
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet ERZFTRIREET BB BRELE
effective. Al o
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BAEMBRE BB R E LR
HKFRSs 2010-2012 ZERIZERT AR —E-TFZF
Cycle? ZE-ZFHEE
B S D2
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BB B®RE BB R 2R
HKFRSs 2011-2013 R ZAEFT A —ET——FZF
Cycle? —E - =FEH
Y 4F 2 B
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BBV B®RE SRt T A
AR 5
Amendments to HKFRS 9  Mandatory Effective BEATB®RE B RS 2R
and HKFRS 7 Date of HKFRS 9 and ZERIFE IR & 55955 2 58
Transition Disclosures? BV BRE =R PSS
HERIZE T EME R
el W
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities’
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral
Accounts®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

4 Available for application - the mandatory effective date

will be determined when the outstanding phases of
HKFRS 9 are finalised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition’ which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to
HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July
2014,

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a
financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS
39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS
3 are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to
disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments,
including a description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have ‘similar
economic characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’
assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided if
the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item of
property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is
revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with
the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and
that accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as
related party transactions the amounts incurred for the
service paid or payable to the management entity for the
provision of key management personnel services.
However, disclosure of the components of such
compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard
does not apply to the accounting for the formation of all
types of joint arrangement in the financial statements of
the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of
the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of,
and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or
HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the
definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities within
HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of
both standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

I PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T [E#2% 4& [R A 7

FE A #73] R &RA& 7] & 78 BT S 3R
HER ([FEAMBEREE
all) @

C 8 {8 [ R A Rz #7T R AR S
TRl BRI AR RE (8

BEMBREEN T ——FF

—E-—FRBMNFENCE

BEEVBREEAN _T——FF
—FRAYNFERERREYE %Hﬂ‘ﬂ#ﬁ
SEAMZIRERT - AfmT o

FEMIBEMEEREIR 2 EFTAEBZ
FAN NERRERNGEER 2
BERPRLIBRE 2B ER 2 &5
me e

FRYHEREERNFISR ZETAES
KREMEAZBE (RIFRELETE—H
MBEENVBREZAABIRIN B
FrERBE BT ERE3RAB BB
BEERNESRBBABREARZEX -
BEZEANTNEB B G ERIFE32
AL BEEXTHABIERE

BB ERFBA0R 2 BT AEBTEE
SR EREA0F R B BRI RE LR E
BRI I EHER - Al REZARII B X

WIE/%E'J At - WEREMEZER
AR

//\

@ “ZVERETABLGENS
AL BEMELTERE + K

b)) BRRXRHIREENEBBMBHMEE
E'J%Ssﬁ%ﬁ‘%éfﬁZm%

RARESTHEHEAR S BREER
TE——FE T -=—FRPANFENR
ERRECBRBEI AT EHAREE
HRENBEHRREEAETEATE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designed as at fair value through profit or
loss, HKFRS 9 requires that amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previous, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of
an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries
but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements
for investment entities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities (Continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
investment entities amendments will have any effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Company is not an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of
service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number of
years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered, or to
attribute them to the employees’ periods of service using
the projected unit credit method; whereas for contributions
that are dependent on the number of years of service,
the entity is required to attribute them to the employees’
periods of service.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions (Continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 19 will have
any effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any defined
benefit plans.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and
settlement”.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 will have
any effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any financial
assets and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

(For the nine months ended 31 December 2013)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for disclosed above, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of other new HKFRSs
will have material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

— the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

= rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

- any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the
time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

4.

BEREFTHER @)

REEE (B

B8 2 R A AN R B ER 1S R4 Y /B 2 ) 0 2
HIERARE AR YR ARBRREZ
B A B IEHIER AR LR A Al - B
BME BASRERGEGEEHLER
EXAEEIBEHINEARER  RF
U B 3K H & B I B & RIS I ET AAR

BERER -

BRlkEMEEBAZIERFBAAR]
BB AN ES - B ARNEH
WABRBRBEARA R ARIFEK
R BB RS G BRI
B i i B

WERE - eHIEATNREHRE
HEE  EA R RERAEENR
SR — B o

SERARENEERRE  BA K
A FAXREREERERBIRRHE
AR RENGFEREREZEEE -

AEBRIREWE R R EBERE

Dz ZE%
75 Ky

AEERREEMB AR EREERNE
BN @G BN B S H BRI
HERIAER 5 A Bk » A& B H)fEah
RS M REER TAE - LR
i AR AR EE) - AT
ZRER S REMSARPERRENR
St B 2 P A (E A 2 B B i 70 IS i
RAFEBRARBEEA °

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
ths ended 31 December 2013)

Frho Lt M A s R Y




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs (or groups of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract.
The stage of completion of the contract is determined as
follows:

- installation fees are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the installation, determined
as the proportion of the total time expected to install
that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period;

- servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the service;
and

- revenue from time and material contracts is
recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours
and direct expenses are incurred.

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting policy
for construction contracts below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a civil engineering contracts,
software application and data processing service contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
measured based on the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs, except where this would
not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of civil engineering contracts, software
application and data processing service contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for
contract work. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position, as a
liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position under
trade and other receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

- exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks;
and

- exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Upon the transfer from “exploration and evaluation
assets”, all subsequent development cost and capital
expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities of mine site is capitalised within
“mine development assets”. Mine development assets
including stripping costs and other development
expenditure are carried at cost and are subject to
depreciation/amortisation upon commissioning of the
mine for production.

Stripping costs incurred in the development phase of a
mine before production commences are capitalised as
part of the cost of constructing the mine and subsequently
depreciated over the life of the mine using the unit-of-
production method based on total proven and probable
reserves of the mine.

Other development expenditure, net of proceeds from
incidental sale of mineral extracted during the
development phase, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and are amortised using the unit-of-
production method based on the total proven and
probable reserves of the mine, except in the case of the
assets whose useful life is shorter than the life of the mine,
in which case straight-line method is applied.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets include costs of
obtaining and maintaining exploration and mining rights,
as well as expenditures such as exploratory drilling,
geological studies and sampling in relation to evaluating
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
mineral resources.

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment and
no amortisation charge is recognised. Cost expensed
during the exploration and evaluation phase including
expenditure incurred before obtaining the legal rights to
explore specific area are included in exploration and
evaluation expenditure in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets acquired in a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impairment.

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 6 “Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources” and HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the following
events or changes in facts and circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list
is not exhaustive):

(i) the period for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed;

(if) substantive expenditure on further exploration for

and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

(ifi) exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources
and the Group has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area; and

(iv) sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration
and evaluation asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and their value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, the exploration and evaluation assets subject
to testing are grouped into each area of interest for which
exploration activities are undertaken.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting mineral resources become demonstrable,
previously recognised exploration and evaluation assets
are transferred to “Property, plant and equipment” and
“Mining licences”. These assets are tested for impairment
before their reclassification.

Mining licences

Upon the transfer from “exploration and evaluation
assets”, mining licences are carried at cost and are subject
to amortisation upon commissioning of the mine for
production. Mining licences and concessions are depleted
on the unit-of-production basis over the total proven and
probable reserves of the mine concerned. Mining licences
are subject for impairment testing whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

= the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

= how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

= the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods whilst an impairment loss on other
assets is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment loss recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAES:EE #®)
(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEESEEY

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances and
cash, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

ReLAcEEMERBERTEFTRIR
& RTEPRFERAMRIEBAE=E
AT RAERERSENHEER S
BEEEZFHRRR N ZEHSE R ME
E  RASHMERZEINME F Re

changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of &fﬁ(ﬁ%fﬁi% BIEAREREELEK
cash flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents REERSBEENAHEEMD 2 RITE
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand X o

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

Taxation HIE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mongolia are required to participate in the social
insurance scheme operated by the local government.
According to the “Social Insurance Law of Mongolia”,
these subsidiaries have a duty to withhold 10% from
employees’ salary or similar income and 13% as
employers’ contribution. Employers’ contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the social insurance scheme.

Payments to the MPF Scheme, central pension schemes
and the social insurance scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised when they
accrue to employees. In particular, a provision is made
for the estimated liability for unused annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date. Non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale
financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXREF B @)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMIA #®)
Financial assets (Continued) MEEE (&)
Effective interest method BERAEZX

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, of which
interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial asset is either held for trading
or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
loan receivable, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders and amounts due from customers of
contract works) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXREF B @)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMIA #®)
Financial assets (Continued) MEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets HBEERE

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

= significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation ; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAES:EE #®)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMIA #®)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through
profit or loss when the financial liabilities are either held
for trading or those designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

= it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities and is included in
the other gains and losses line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 46(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAE:EE @)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMIA #®)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders and promissory notes are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis other than those
financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes contains liability component
and conversion option derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
liability component, conversion option and extension
option (which is not closely related to the host liability
component) are classified separately into respective item
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
At the date of issue, both the liability and extension option
components are measured at fair value. The fair value of
the liability component on initial recognition is determined
using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the
fair values assigned to the liability and extension option
components respectively, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the convertible notes into
equity, is included in equity as convertible note equity
reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
effective interest method. The extension option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in the convertible note equity reserve
until the embedded conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in the convertible note
equity reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the conversion option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible note equity reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes contains liability component
and conversion option derivative (Continued)

When the convertible note is converted, the carrying
amounts of the liability component and the extension
option at the time of conversion are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. When the convertible note is redeemed, the
difference between the redemption amount and the
carrying amounts of both components is recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity and extension
option components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the extension option are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

- the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXEFBEXK @

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) Cof - =)

Derecognition (Continued) HUB MR (&)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its BREEBUE#ERIN - REUEBRMBE

entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of recognising and acknowledging the
contributions that the eligible participants have made to
the Group. Eligible participants including employees
(including directors), customers, suppliers, agents,
partners, consultants, advisers or shareholders of or
contractors to the Group or any affiliate, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based compensation,
whereby eligible participants render services as
consideration for equity instrument (i.e. equity-settled
transactions).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date the
options are granted excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions. The cost of equity-settled
transactions with parties other than employees is
measured by reference to the fair value of the goods or
services provided.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
using straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is indication that the number
of share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. Any adjustment to the fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss in the year
of the review with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting that relate to market condition (which is
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied).

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAXE:BEE #)
(Continued)
Government grants BT 7 B

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Control over a subsidiary

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in 1t =%
T B U F T B IR A 7] (‘Peace Map”), the Group is able
to exercise control over Peace Map and its subsidiaries
(“Peace Map Group”) through a series of agreements with
its shareholders (the “Structural Agreements”).

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not
the Group has control over Peace Map based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Peace Map unilaterally. In making their
judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
Group’s rights through the Structural Agreements, and
concluded that the Group has sufficiently dominant voting
interest to direct the relevant activities of Peace Map and
therefore the Group has control over Peace Map. Further
details are set out in note 49(iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of laws
and regulations affecting the position of the
mining licences

As mentioned in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, currently there are certain laws and
regulations in Mongolia which impose restrictions on
mineral exploration and mining activities around water
areas in Mongolia. Although the Group’s four mining
licences and two of its exploration licences ostensibly fall
within the ambit of law and regulations, the directors of
the Company believe the impact to the Group will be
minimal. In determining the recoverable amount of the
mining business for impairment assessment purpose, the
directors of the Company have factored the risk the Group
is exposed to these laws and regulations into the
discounted cash flow analysis of the mining operation by
adjusting the discount rate as mentioned in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying value of the mining licences is
approximately HK$148,888,000 (31 March 2013:
HK$364,269,000).

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made. As at 31 December 2013, the
carrying value of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are approximately HK$4,010,000 (31 March
2013: nil) and HK$115,254,000 (31 March 2013:
HK$93,960,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The application of the Group’s accounting policy for
exploration and evaluation expenditure requires judgement
in determining whether it is likely that future economic
benefits are likely either from future exploitation or sale or
where activities have not reached a stage which permits
a reasonable assessment of the existence of reserves. In
this connection, the management makes certain estimates
and assumptions about future events or circumstances,
in particular whether an economically viable extraction
operation can be established. Estimates and assumptions
made may change if new information becomes available.
If, after expenditure is capitalised, information becomes
available suggesting that the recovery of expenditure is
unlikely, the amount capitalised is written off in profit or
loss in the period when the new information becomes
available. For the nine months ended 31 December 2013,
approximately HK$246,000 is capitalised as exploration
and evaluation assets (for the year ended 31 March 2013:
HK$1,005,000). As at 31 March 2013, the carrying value
of the exploration and evaluation assets is approximately
HK$3,834,000 (31 December 2013: nil).

Revenue recognition

The Group recognised project revenue and profit of civil
engineering contracts, application software and data
processing service contracts according to the
management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
project as well as the percentage of completion of contract
works. Notwithstanding that the management reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and costs
for the contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and this
will affect the revenue and profit recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is determined
by management based on the credit history of its
customers and the current market condition. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in the financial
position of the customers. Management would re-assess
the amount of impairment for trade and other receivables,
if any, at each reporting date. For the nine months ended
31 December 2013, approximately HK$15,720,000 is
recognised as impairment loss of trade and other
receivables (for the year ended 31 March 2013: nil). As at
31 December 2013, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables is approximately HK$150,911,000 (31
March 2013: HK$185,838,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill, mining licences and
exploration and evaluation assets

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. Other
assets including mining licences and exploration and
evaluation assets are assessed annually to determine for
any indication of impairment. Where an indicator of
impairment exists, a formal estimate of the recoverable
amount is made, which is the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. These assessments
require the use of estimates and assumptions such as
long-term selling prices, discount rates, future capital
requirements and operating performance. Fair value is
determined as the amount that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Fair value for mineral assets is
generally determined as the present value of estimated
future cash flows arising from the continued use of the
asset, which includes estimates such as the cost of future
expansion plans and eventual disposal, using assumptions
that an independent market participant may take into
account. Cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Management has assessed its CGUs
as being an individual mine site, or individual water plant,
which is the lowest level for which cash flows are largely
independent of those of other assets. For the nine months
ended 31 December 2013, approximately
HK$173,440,000 and HK$3,747,000 are recognised as
impairment loss of mining licences and exploration and
evaluation assets respectively (for the year ended 31
March 2013: approximately HK$152,919,000 and
HK$24,617,000 respectively).
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets

The Group performs annual assessments on whether there
is impairment of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets. The recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions
made by management on the future operation of the
businesses, pre-tax discount rates and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations. For any instance
where this evaluation process indicates impairment, the
relevant property, plant and equipment and other intangible
asset’s carrying amount is written down to the recoverable
amount and the amount of the write-down is charged
against the consolidated statement of profit or loss. For
the nine months ended 31 December 2013, approximately
HK$2,950,000 and HK$10,086,000 are recognised as
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets respectively (for the year ended 31 March
2013: approximately HK$2,805,000 and nil respectively).
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying value of the
property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
are approximately HK$66,391,000 and HK$632,705,000
(31 March 2013: HK$68,704,000 and nil) respectively.

Impairment assessment on goodwill

For the impairment assessment on goodwill, the
management of the Group has taken steps in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, by considering
whether the carrying amount of CGUs exceed the
recoverable amount of respective CGUs. The recoverable
amount of the CGUs which goodwill attributable to is
determined based on fair value less cost of disposal.
Further details, including the key assumptions used, are
given in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying value of the
goodwill is approximately HK$669,287,000 (31 March
2013: nil).

EESHE R TIBEES
HNEERIR @

EEFTREENERRIR (&)

ME - BEMRBREGELE
EZRE

REFEHME - BB M&FEA R E &
WEEREGAERBEETFENG - B
SELBEMNMAIKRESETIREERE
Bt ERETERT - 2ETHEEREE
BYER 2 RRLE - BiATAEE R R HE
FREBENEEB EMmBREELD G
MK - EMAFTHBREERREZ
EHmMmE  BEAYME - BEREKEAR
Hihmp & E 2 REESERRZERT K
Cl¢% c BMRESBNGEABaRTH
B NEBE_E—=F+-A=+—8
WENEA - W% - BEREEAREM
BREENNRERASEREBENA
2,950,0005% 7T % 10,086,000/ 7T (i =
—E—=ZF=ZA=Z+—HLEFE : 55l
B#92,805,0008 TR E) c RZF—=
F+_A=+—H D% BELXE
MEEEEREMEFLEENERERES 5
#9./566,391,0007% 7T X% 632,705,000/8 7T
T E-ZF£=ZA=Z+—H : %
68,704,000 L K E) -

R E A

AEBREFEMS  AEEETEEDR
BRIEEB ST ERE365 [EERE] K
BEE s FAAEESEHEEELESBM
MEEMEBERGTBAETKE £ - UG
BAENRESESABEMAMTIKE SRR
BAABEREERANET - #—PF1B
(BIEFAZ EERK) SRERE R
KMEF20 - R E—=F+-_A=+—
B BHENKEEY A669,287,000/ T
(ZE—=F=A=+—H: %)«

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
ths ended 31 December 2013)

Frho Lt M A s R Y




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Resources estimates

The Group makes estimate on the amount of coal that
can be extracted from the Group’s mining properties. The
estimate is determined based on information compiled
by appropriately qualified persons relating to the geological
data on the size, depth and the deposit type of the coal
and requires complex geological judgements to interpret
the data. The estimation of the resource is based upon
factors such as estimates of foreign exchange rates, coal
price, future capital requirements and production costs
along with geological assumptions and judgements made
in estimating the size and quality of the coal. Changes in
the resource estimates may impact upon the carrying
value of mine properties, property, plant and equipment,
goodwill and recognition of deferred tax. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying value of the mining licences,
property, plant and equipment of mining and exploration
business and deferred tax liabilities of mining and
exploration business are approximately HK$148,888,000,
HK$17,282,000 and HK$37,114,000 respectively (31
March 2013: approximately HK$364,269,000,
HK$21,632,000 and HK$90,906,000 respectively).

Provision for reclamation and closure costs

Provision for reclamation and closure cost is estimated
based on the management’s interpretation of current
regulatory requirements and their past experiences.
Provision set up, if any, is reviewed regularly by
management to ensure it properly reflects the obligation
arising from the mining and exploration activities. As at
31 December 2013, no provision for reclamation and
closure cost is recognised as the production of the coal
mine site has not yet commenced (31 March 2013: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimation useful life of other intangible assets

Determining whether licences of other intangible assets
is indefinite requires an estimation of ability to renew the
licences, cost of renewal in the future and the expected
life of the licences to generate net cash flows for the
Group. Any changes in these assumptions can
significantly affect the useful life of the licences. For other
intangible assets expect for licences, the management of
the Group determines the estimated useful lives and
consequently the related amortisation charges for its other
intangible assets. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of intangible
assets. Management will increase the amortisation
charges when useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a
change in amortisable lives and therefore amortisation
expenses in future years. As at 31 December 2013, the
carrying value of other intangible assets is approximately
HK$632,705,000 (31 March 2013: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The directors of the Company work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
directors of the Company regularly assess the impact and
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and
liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments,
including the convertible notes and contingent
consideration. Note 46(e) to the consolidated financial
statements provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various assets
and liabilities.

Deferred development costs

Deferred development costs included in other intangible
assets are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for research and development expenditure as set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make significant assumptions and
estimates regarding the expected future cash generation
of the assets and the expected period of benefits. As at
31 December 2013, the carrying value of the deferred
development costs capitalised in other intangible assets
is approximately HK$44,294,000 (31 March 2013: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the period/year
from continuing operations is as follows:

Wy ==

AEERAEE FEIHECEEY

s 2 DT

Nine months Year

ended ended

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

BZE BHE

—E-=F —F—=

+=ZA=+—H —A=+—H

L@ A IEFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

(Restated)

()

Software application I EA 18,633 -

Data processing HIR R IR 144,494 -
Sales of cameras and unmanned S R R A TR

aerial vehicles 46,962 -

210,089 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

132

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s reportable and operating segments, based
on information reported to the chairman of the board of
directors, being the chief operating decision-maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation, strategic decisions
making and assessment of segment performance focuses
on services provided are as follows:

(1) Software application;

2) Data processing;

(3) Sales of cameras and unmanned aerial vehicles;
and

(4) Mining and exploration business.

Operating segments regarding the waterworks
engineering contracting business (provision of road works
and drainage and slope upgrading for the public sector
in Hong Kong), water supply business (provision of water
supply services in the PRC) and renovation business
(provision of renovation services in Macau) (collectively
referred as the “Disposed Business”) were discontinued
in the current period. The segment information reported
does not include any amounts for these discontinued
operations, which are described in more detail in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

I PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T E#ZR AR A 7

DEER

REBZAIREREESFHERME
EeIF (FTEEEBERRE)REZE
K B BB IR K& 1EH BOBOR K KET
EOEMRE - AEINRUATRENR
7%

(1) KRR
@  BEREE
B HEBEEIEARE X

@) RBREVERER -

BN TRABRER (RBBREHRE
REBE TR RELFEMETRE)
HREH (i BHR KR TS) DA S 23
EER (RRFIEERRERYT) (BB
[EHERE]) NEED DR AHE
BRELE - IRENDHMERTEE
EAERLIEE 2S8R FHANKS
MR T2 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEHER @
Segment revenue and results DU R FEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REFECEER 2 ANEB W= REE
results from continuing operations by reportable and RO mMEREEDEBZOWAT -

operating segment:

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 BE-_Z-—=Ff+=-A=+—HLhI{E
A
Continuing operations BFREKSEER
Sales of cameras
and unmanned Mining and
Software Data  aerial vehicles exploration
application processing HERBH business Total
BEER YERE REARE HFEROFESR B
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TERL TEL TERL

Revenue from external REMIER &

customers 18,633 144,494 46,962 - 210,089
Segment profits (loss) AEbER (58) 4,233 33,207 1,932 (216,022) (176,560)
Other income and gain Et AR & 35,566
Fair value gain on the EESES

Derivative Component i TASH

of the Convertible Note |~ Z A% B4 6,045
Fair value loss on RARERNER

financial liabilties at far ~ JIEMEKEE

value through profit LRREER

or loss (61,514)
Finance costs BEAMA (89,731)
Central administrative cost R R7TEABI S (16,989)
Loss before taxation BHAIEE (308,183)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 7EHER @@
Segment revenue and results (Continued) TEREREE (B
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Restated) BE-_Z—="f=-A=1+t—HLEEE
)
Continuing operations BHESEER

Sales of cameras

and unmanned Mining and
Software Data aerial vehicles exploration
application processing HERGHK business Total
RIER HERE REARE FERORER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiHT FiHT T T T
Revenue from external RENDEPYE
customers - - - - -
Segment loss PHER - - - (214,188) (214,188)
Other income and gain ER I ONT 6 541
Fair value loss on the THARZE
Derivative Component TETEHH
of the Convertble Note |~ 2 AR B (5,979)
Finance costs RENR (93,033)
Central administrative cost R R1THEX (15,479)
Loss before taxation BRAEE (328,138)

The accounting policies of the continuing operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profit represents the profit (loss)
earned by each segment without allocation of central
administrative cost, directors’ salaries, certain other
income and gain, fair value change on the Derivative
Component of the Convertible Note | and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the chairman of the board
of directors, being the chief operating decision-maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

There were no inter-segment sales between different
business segments for the nine months ended
31 December 2013 and the year ended 31 March 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oHER @
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AEBEERABRIREREED

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: LMW :
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
=F—= —E—=F
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
(Restated)
(E71))
Segment assets PHEE
Software application I EA 171,281 -
Data processing HIE R IR 1,239,660 -
Sales of cameras and unmanned S R R R A TR
aerial vehicles 347,795 -
Mining and exploration business RUE N B IR ET 170,996 469,291
Total segment assets DEPEEHRTE 1,929,732 469,291
Assets relating to discontinued B AR EREE T
operations HEMNEE - 574,011
Unallocated corporate assets KOBRBEEE 123,841 175,278
Total assets mEE 2,053,573 1,218,580
Segment liabilities PWEE
Software application I EA 24,784 -
Data processing R 115,225 -
Sales of cameras and unmanned S R R R A TR
aerial vehicles 45,221 -
Mining and exploration business BRUE R B IR E TS 6,978 15,701
Total segment liabilities DELEELRE 192,208 15,701
Liabilities relating to discontinued IR 4R R E TS
operations EENBE - 113,373
Unallocated corporate liabilities Aot EarE 1,076,264 1,056,889
Total liabilities mafk 1,268,472 1,185,963
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEHER @
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEERES (&)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and BREEDSERREDEDEBHEER

allocating resources between segments:

136

all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than derivative financial assets — Derivative
Component of the Convertible Note I, financial
asset at fair value through profit and loss, deferred
tax asset, tax recoverable, certain corporate assets,
loan receivable, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders and pledged bank deposits as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than tax payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, convertible notes, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss and certain
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBEBRERMTE
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEHER @
Other segment information H i 5 EB & #}
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 BE-_Z-—=Ff+-A=+—HBLhf{@E
A
Continuing operations BERSEER
Sales of

camerasand  Mining and

unmanned  exploration

Software Data aerial vehicles business
Application  processing  HERGH RER  Unallocated Total
BEER HERE REARE BRER AAE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Amounts included in the measure of AR BERFIHEE
segment profits or segment assets: 2%

Additions to exploration DERFEEERE

and evaluation assets - - - 246 - 246
Additions to property, % BRREE

plant and equipment LAE 4,695 36,405 11,832 1,575 - 54,507
Additions to other intangible assets EhEVEELRE 60,373 469,564 140,369 - - 670,806
Depreciation of property, % BRREE

plant and equipment IME 220 1,696 551 1,256 - 3,723
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ EftEHBE & 3,130 24,363 7,133 - - 34,626
Amortisation of prepald land lease B LB ENE

payment B - - - 147 - 147
Impairment loss on property, % RERZEL

plant and equipment HESE - - - 2,950 - 2,950
Impairment loss on mining ficences RRERZHEEE - - - 173,440 - 173,440
Impairment loss on exploration HARAEEEL

and evaluation assets HESE - - - 3,747 - 3,747
Impairment loss on other intangible EhEVEEREER

assets 894 6,937 2,255 - - 10,086
Impairment loss of trade and BARAMENTEL

other receivables REER 1,79 13,924 - - - 15,720
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HENE  BERREL

plant and equipment iz BB 29) (184) (60) 84 - (183)
Equity-settled based compensation WEREE R - - - 282 332 614

Amounts regularly provided to BERTEEERRE

the chief operating decision-maker ~ RHHE 2 SEEFHA
but not included in the measure of 2 WEFG I PEE
segment profits or segment assets:
Gain on extension of ERAAZEEE

the Promissory Note s - - - - 17,819 17,819
Gain on extension of EREHEE

non-interest bearing loans WE - - - - 4,365 4,365
Government grants HEES 852 10,850 1,448 - - 13,150
Bank interest income RITHERA 16 200 2 8 1 252
Other interest income RS A - - - - 158 158
Finance costs HENK - - - - (89,731) (89,731)
Income tax credit FERES 511 3,964 1,268 43,360 - 49,123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oWER @
Other segment information (Continued) HibhpEER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Restated) BE-E-=f=A=1+—-HLEE
(E51)
Continuing operations BRESEER
Sales of

camerasand  Mining and

unmanned  exploration

Software Data  aerial vehicles business
Application  processing  SHEEGH# FER  Unallocated Total
HHER HERE REARE HREH AR At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAT T T i TEL TEL

Amounts included in the measure of A2 BRI PEE
segment profits or segment assets: 2 2%

Additions to exploration and BARTHEELRE

evaluation assets - - - 1,005 - 1,005
Additions to property, 0% BRRZELRE

plant and equipment - - - 25 - 2
Depreciation of property, W% BERGECSE

plant and equipment - - - 1,919 - 1,919
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment  Tff L3S 25 2 H - - - 223 - 223
Impairment loss on property, % BRREERERE

plant and equipment - - - 2,805 - 2,805
Impairment loss on mining licences AR ZHERE - - - 152,919 - 152,919
Impairment loss on exploration HARRAREE RERE

and evaluation assets - - - 24,617 - 24,617
Loss on disposal of property, hWENS  BRERREER

plant and equipment - - - 21 - 21
Equity-settled based compensation ~ AEREEZ 7B - - - 2,107 - 2,107

Amounts regularly provided to BEOTEEERRE
the chief operating decision-maker ~ RHHE 2 SBEFHA
but not included in the measure of 2 HERHIPEE -
segment profits or segment assets:

Bank interest income BITHERA - - - 229 - 229
Other interest income sl - - - - 532 532
Finance costs HERA - - - - (93,039) (93,033
Income tax credit fiEkES - - - 38,205 - 38,205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEHER @
Geographical information HEER
The Group’s operations are located in Mainland China and AEFBEEVRPBEALERS ©
Mongolia.
Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing ARAEERBINIRE 2 IFELEHE
operations from external customers is presented based BREZERTDEREPUEME7 -
on the location of the customers. Information about the ARASBEIERBEECERTIERE
Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the E2WBAERERE GIEEmS)
geographical location of the assets or location of operation mEs e

in case of goodwill.

Revenue from external customers BB IR F W
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—=F #HZEE_Z—=%
+=A=+—H =A=+—8H
1A E A IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(=5))
Mainland China R A 210,089 -
Mongolia ES - -
210,089 -
Non-current assets kRBEE
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E-=F —E—=F
+=A=+—H =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Mainland China R A 1,355,604 -
Mongolia 5 166,169 389,762
1,521,773 389,762
Non-current assets excluded those relating to EMBEETRIEHDKIELEEH R
discontinued operations and financial instruments. SR T EMEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DHEE @®@
Information about major customers FEERF2ER
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years UWTRERFEREBRFZKEEHASE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue from continuing EREFELEEB 2B RE 2 BRILEL
operations of the Group are as follows: BIFE#EI10% :
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z2—=F #Hz—_ZT—=F
+=B=+—H —A=+—H
IR EA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Customer A’ B FE R 58,227 -
Customer B’ BFE L 52,116 -
" Revenue from data processing. VERBEIRERE 2 W o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

OTHER INCOME AND GAIN H A K W=
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-—Z2-—=Ff BE_ZT—=F
+=-—A=+—H =A=+—H
IE A8 B IFFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEREEK
Bank interest income RITH B UA 252 229
Other interest income H A B A 158 532
Gain arising from extension of ERANERES
Promissory Note (note 33(c)) Z Wz (BEE33(c)) 17,819 -
Gain on extension of non-interest EREFTEER
bearing loans (note 33(d)) Z Wz (MH5E33(d) 4,365 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment B pA & 183 -
Government grants (note) IR 485 B (Bf =) 13,150 -
Sundry income HMIEUWA 74 9
36,001 770

Note:

Included in the amount of government grants recognised during
the nine months ended 31 December 2013 of approximately
HK$12,320,000 (equivalent to RMB9,799,000) were received
in respect of certain research projects of the Group and fulfilled
the relevant granting criteria which immediately recognised as
other income and gain for the period, and of approximately
HK$830,000 (equivalent to RMB660,000) were government
grants recognised as deferred income utilised during the period
(note 35). No government grant was recognised as other income
and gain for the year ended 31 March 2013.

fo 4 -

BE-_ZT—=F+_A=+—HItN@R®E
RZBFHRERASEEE THEEE (B
7 BUMBRE B AR 2E) B UK ENAY 12,320,000/ 7T
(HEEN AR, 799,0007T) @ WE AHAREN
R A E AU Rz - 5 49830,0007 7T
(FHE R A R#660,0007T) BT B iR A H
RENA ZIEEWA (HI7E85) - BE T —=
F=A=+—HILFE  WEBRTHNER
AEMIRA RIS ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. REKAE
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z2-—=Ff BE_ZT—=F
+=-—HA=+—H =A=+—H
IEA{E B IFFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHETT
(Restated)
(E%)
Continuing operations BHEREEL
Interest charges on: NTEBEZHEER -
— Bank loans and overdraft wholly —EREFABEHEES
repayable within five years RITEFREX 1,217 -
— Other loans —HMmER 843 -
2,060 -
Imputed interest on other unsecured ~ HMAELHME R 2 (HEF| S
loan (note 33(d)) (B 7E33(d)) 587 -
Imputed interest on Promissory EAERZHEFE
Note (note 33(c)) (P 5E33(c)) 27,772 34,248
Imputed interest on Convertible AR ERIZ HERE
Note | (note 34(a)) (P 51 34(a)) 47,845 58,785
Imputed interest on Convertible AR ERIZ HERN B
Note Il (note 34(b)) (Pt £ 34(b)) 11,467 -
89,731 93,033
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBEBRERMTE
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRBATE B
Loss before taxation for the period/year from the RERE,  FERAFELCLEEZGH
continuing operations has been arrived at after charging: AIE BRI S EEFE ¢
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—=%F #HZE-ZT—=
+=—A=+—8H =A=+—H
IEA@EA EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FET
(Restated)
(E%))
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRKN(BREEEME)
emoluments)
- salaries, allowances and benefits — Fre  EEREWER
in kind 24,005 11,157
— retirement benefits scheme — RIREAE B R
contributions (defined (REMHKETED
contribution plan) 4,441 422
— equity-settled share-based — AEERAEEARD N
compensation (note 38) 2 @18 (f5E38) 614 458
29,060 12,037
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 34,300 -
Amortisation of prepaid land A T EFIE
lease payments k3 147 223
Amortisation of other intangible assets = fth 2 & & ~ # §5 34,626 -
Depreciation of property, Y - B N
plant and equipment ZIE 3,723 1,919
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 3,547 854
Exchange loss, net 0 4 18 558 22,679 7,246
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BMERSKEZ
plant and equipment (K z) B#E (183) 21
Operating lease charges KEHEER
— land and buildings — T REF 8,442 3,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #;

11.

E-F—

=F+t-_A=+—HIEN@EA

INCOME TAX CREDIT 11. FTEHIER
Continuing operations FEREER
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—-= HEZT—=F
+=-—HA=+—H =HA=+—H
IEA{E B IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHExT T
(Restated)
(E5)
Current tax for the period/year NERFE R AR IR
- PRC Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) — PR EMER
(IEEmMER) 3,085 -
Deferred tax for the period/year REFIEIRERE
— Current period/year (note 36) — RNHFE (HI5E36) (52,208) (38,205)
Income tax credit Frig i % (49,123) (38,205)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (year ended
31 March 2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the nine months ended 31 December 20183.
No assessable profits were generated from the continuing
operations in Hong Kong for the nine months ended 31
December 2013 and year ended 31 March 2013.

144 [ PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X [ E#Z &R A 7

BHE_Z—=%+-_A=+—H1ILhM@E
B BEFER TSGR RS FIZ
16.5%MMEFESH (HE-_ZE—=

ZA=1+—HItFEE

1 16.5%) - HE—

E-—=F+-RA=+t—BIENEAKE
EFE-=F=ZA=+—HLEFE R
EEMERBEREEBELZERDE

7 o



11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Accordingly, provision for
PRC EIT for the PRC subsidiaries was calculated at 25%
of estimated assessable profits for the period, except for
the followings:

A subsidiary of the Company, 1t =X T Bl{z B & i & R
2 @] (“Beijing Peace Map Information”) was confirmed to
be recognised as a software enterprise and therefore is
entitled to a tax concession of full exemption from EIT for
two years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013
and followed by half reduction in EIT rate of 12.5% from
2014 to 2016.

Peace Map was recognised as an approved high
technology enterprise and therefore is entitled to tax
concession period of reduction in EIT rate of 15% from
2012 to 2013.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia are subject to
Mongolian income tax which is calculated at the rate of
10% on the first 3 billion MNT of taxable income and 25%
on the amount in excess thereof. No income tax was
provided as these Mongolian subsidiaries have not derived
any taxable income during the nine months ended 31
December 2013 (year ended 31 March 2013: nil).

11.

(For the nine m
( =

EBIER @

IR 485 B 1 32 P 1B B (112 3 A 15 8
%)) B EFBBOARIEARP) - S EH
BRAZABKEA-—FBNF—A—
B2 5825% » Bt FEH B RS
P A A SR Bk 2 3 45
WiR25%E » A TR -

IERATEEEHMERAR ([HERK
TEEE]) @ AARR—HEHBRR -
EERBRTHMGLE R T —
—E—H—HBEZZE—=F1+=H=
T+—HIEREZELEMERE RN
BERE HENR-_FT—HFE-_FT—X
FEHRFLEFSHBIE12.5% 2 B

BE -

ATEERR AR SR E » Bt
RIEBE——FE T ="FZTAHRD
BB ER15%MFHIEEEL -

REHEMERZZHMBRRBHMME S
FTs®i - RMIERFTBESVESRHERE
TUATR - BEE10% @ ERFTEEI0RE
SHERBERULONEH;H  HEA
25% HE_ZE—=F+-_H=1+—H
HENEAR  BRZEZTHHBRRME
EETAERHMSE  Bitt - WAREFE

MEtREE BEE—=F=A=1—
BIEEFEE :F) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 11. FiI8HIER &)
Income tax credit from continuing operations for the NEE FERABELEEB G
period/year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation MK EAERAMETE 2 RBRATER 2
at applicable tax rates as follows: HERWT
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z2-—=F BE_ZT—=F
+=A=+-—A8 =A=+—H
IEA@EA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss before taxation FrEi AT ES 1R (303,183) (328,138)
Notional tax on profit calculated LR RDEAREEE A
at the rates applicable to profits AR E R
in the jurisdiction concerned i A ET IR (52,690) (52,198)
Tax effect on non-taxable income BERHBAZHIBEZE (2,630) (13)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses A HIF B 2 FIBZ & 5,271 13,756
Tax effect on tax losses not recognised FAERTIIBREIE 2 G & 1,019 1,059
Utilisation of tax losses previously not & Itk Al K #E =2
recognised THIEE 18 (93) (809)
Income tax credit FriSFiiE (49,123) (38,205)
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 2 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of 100% equity interest
in a subsidiary, Rich Path, which together with its
subsidiaries carried out all of the Group’s operations in
the Disposed Business. The Disposal was effected in order
to moderate cash flow pressure for the Group. The
Disposal was completed on 20 December 2013, on which
date control of Rich Path was passed to the acquirer.

Following the completion of the Disposal, the Group
discontinued its operations in the Disposed Business. The
profit (loss) for the period/year from the discontinued
operations is set out below. The comparative figures in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss have been
restated to re-present the Disposed Business as
discontinued operations.

12.

HEMBEBRERMTE
E—=F+-A=+—HItNEA

ERIEREXH

R-ZZE—=%FhhB-B KEEFZ—
BHEEWHE  HENBA —T%%“L%Iﬂﬁ
M B R B) 2 100% A% AR #E 25 N 5 MY B A
NRERNEERBEER - ;iﬁ:.‘a&z%ﬂ
BAEBEZ2RESREAE ZHER-Z
—=ZF+-A-t+HRK  RZBERE
ZEHEEREWER -

HETKE  REBEFEFEREHESE
Bz aiE o XEPRH,/ NEEREERIE
REXB 2 aN (BR)HEINWNT - 54
BRRZATLBEBEELENZIER
z<«**%%¥

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—=F HZE_T—=%F
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
IEA{E B IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FHT
(Restated)
(E5)
Profit (loss) of the Disposed Business  ZAHif] ZREE D HE ¥
for the period/year 2w (E518) 3,085 (10,061)
Loss on disposal of the Disposed BEREEB s HEBE
Business (note 41) (BF7E41) (20,187) -
(17,102) (10,061)

ths ended 31 December 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12. B R IERKE XK @)

The results of the Disposed Business for the period from —E—=FA—HE-FT—=F1+
1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013, which have been “A=+—HEME B AGEERE
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, ZEHEER CEEERIWOT

were as follows:

Nine months Year

ended ended

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

BE-Z2-=F BE_ZT—=F

+=A=+-—A8 =A=+—H

IE A8 B IFFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER FHET

(Restated)

(E%))

Revenue W %5 545,587 856,701
Cost of revenue L&D (514,159) (823,325)
Gross profit EF 31,428 33,376
Other income and gain H g A &z 421 1,170
Administrative expenses THRAX (25,961) (43,890)
Finance costs A& B AR (1,714) (2,846)
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AT = A (B518) 4,174 (12,190)
Income tax (expense) credit s (Ax) 5 (1,089) 2,129

Profit (loss) of the Disposed Business ~ ZRHAR R4 2 H & ¥ 7%

for the period/year 2w F (E518) 3,085 (10,061)
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The profit (loss) for the period/year from discontinued

operations includes the following:

wE

T—=F+=ZH=

P ISR M EE
+—HIEAEA

CRIEKEER &)

AHRE, FEERIEKEEBRELAZ
wm A (1) BT &HE ¢

Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-ZT—=F #HzEz—Z— =%
+=ZA=+—8 =A=+—8H
IEA{E A IEFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(E5)
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRKN(BREEEME)
emoluments)
— salaries, allowances and benefits — e EHEEDEF
in kind 79,127 120,509
— retirement benefits scheme — BRIREAE B R
contributions (defined (REMHKETED
contribution plan) 176 3,429
- equity-settled share-based — DNEEGEEURGD
compensation (note 38) XA 2 w18 (F15E38) 369 2,235
79,672 126,173
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 83,373 125,238
Amortisation of prepaid land A T E IR
lease payments k3! 3 6
Additions to property, W - BB RE&E
plant and equipment IRNE 5,055 15,920
Depreciation of property, Y - B N
plant and equipment ZIE 7,424 12,469
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI Bl & 516 466
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BER
plant and equipment X2 BB 471 3,973
Bank interest income RITH BUA (205) (399)
Operating lease charges LEHEER
— land and buildings — T REF 3,093 4,109
— plant and machinery — BE Kikes 2,060 1,985
5,153 6,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12. B # L& XK @)

No change or credit arose on loss on discontinuance of BRIEKEEBHEBETEZEH KR -
the operations.

Net cash (outflows) inflows on discontinued operations ERIFEEERK 2HE (R RAFE
are as follows: LN
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BZ-2-=F Hz—_Zz—=F
+=-—A=+—H =A=+—H
{8 A HFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Operating activities e EE (4,699) 8,996
Investing activities A EE (3,797) (12,475)
Financing activities BB EB (22,525) 22,321
(31,021) 18,842
The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the REEBHEHEEBRNEERARZ
Disposal Business at the date of disposal are disclosed REEREGE B mRMT41ERE -

in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

13. DIVIDEND 13. A
No dividend was paid or proposed during the nine months BHE-ZT—=F+-A=t+—HIEh#E
ended 31 December 2013, nor has any dividend been AR ERNSIEZENKRE - BWE
proposed since the end of the reporting period (year ended I REMERZRRNEMNRE (BEZE
31 March 2013: nil). —=ZF=ZA=+— Eutir; cE;) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

TRER
REFERERILEEERE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14.

From continuing and discontinued
operations

ARBEEARGERERRETEIR
TERTIBEAESE ¢

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

Loss BB

Nine months Year

ended ended

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

BE-_Z—=F HZE_T—=%F

+=BA=+—H =A=+—H

IR {8 A IEFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Loss for the purpose of basic loss RERERNBEFE
per share ) 3] (264,452) (299,812)
Number of shares 5B

Nine months Year

ended ended

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

BE-Z—=F HZE_T—=%F

+=BA=+—H =A=+—H

A8 B IEFE

’000 000

T T

Weighted average number of HEREXREBEFE LR
ordinary shares for the purpose % 17 hn 4 - 39

3,772,727 1,839,596

of basic loss per share

HRAR RN M EFRESELELEH#E
XFEEY T B IE SN A A A - R E R
SEEZSREEBERGRERER
AR - AT AR (AT E34FT I ER) &
e AR 1T 2 BB AR He (JAMY R 38 P 1 B8 )
EfNEREABREAGREEY

o,
=

Diluted loss per share for both period/year is the same as
the basic loss per share as the Company has no dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding during both years.
The impact of the convertible notes as disclosed in note
34 and the outstanding share options as disclosed in note
38 had anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share

presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. BREBE @
From continuing operations REFERSEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RARHEANBEREFELEEL 2
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of ERERNBEREEBERIENNUATH
the Company is based on the following data: BErESD -
Loss [}
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z-—=%F #HE_T=fF
+=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
{8 A HFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT

Loss for the period/year attributable to 72 &) # A A fE1G

owners of the Company RNEAR, FEEE (264,452) (299,812)
Less: loss for the period/year from W BRIEREEERES
discontinued operations ZRER S FEEE 17,073 10,038

pn

Loss for the purpose of basic earnings Tt BHELEEBEL 2

per share from continuing operations & IRE A EF| ~ Fig (247,379) (289,774)
The denominators used are the same as those detailed FrAS o HE SR EARREEEIS
above for basic and diluted loss per share. Frefiai AR o
Diluted loss per share for both period/year from continuing AR ARBIRMAEFESELETES
operations is the same as the basic loss per share as the e R RSN AR - MR EEAR
Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares FEREBFELEEG 2 EREEEIE
outstanding during both years. The impact of the HEREREEER - TRERERE (20K
convertible notes as disclosed in note 34 and the FESAPTHEFR) KM RTTIE 2 BB AR AE (LNt
outstanding share options as disclosed in note 38 had FE38FTIRER) BT 2SN EBREAREB A
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share presented. BERESRE -
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operations attributable to the owners of the Company is
HK$0.45 cents per share for the nine months ended 31
December 2013 (year ended 31 March 2013: HK$0.55
cents per share), based on the loss for the nine months
ended 31 December 2013 from the discontinued
operations of approximately HK$17,073,000 (year ended
31 March 2013: HK$10,038,000) and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

Diluted loss per share for both period/year from
discontinued operations is the same as the basic loss
per share as the Company has no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during both years. The impact
of the convertible notes as disclosed in note 34 and the
outstanding share options as disclosed in note 38 had
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share presented.

14.

HEMBEBRERMTE
E—=F+-A=+—HItNEA

BREE ®
REDRILEE %K

HE_Z—=—F+_A=t+—HItIE
B AABHEEABMERIEEEER
2R EAR KRB EEE A FTR0.4578 1L
BE_Z—=F=ZA=Z+—LFE &
B%0.557 L) » DEREE T —=F+
ZTAZ+—HIENERERIEEEER
E518417,073,0008 T (BE—_Z—=4F
=ZA=+—1-%E : 10,038,000/ T) K&
ENFHABREARESEEMAZY
u‘l—yé-—°

HRAR RN M EFRESELELEEE
BUEH R BAEINE B - MW ESE,
FERBERUEREXH 2 BRETE
BRSEREAEEMER o ATRERE A0
B FES4PTINER) K Rl AR TT I8 2 R L (20
MY EES8FT I ER) ¥ FT 25 M B AR EAE R
EERBERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15. EE - EETBRAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS B <
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=E=#M<
Salaries,

allowances  Retirement Equity-settled

and benefits  share-based

benefits scheme expense

inkind contributions ~ MERLE
Fees %% 28 BUER ¥ SR Total
#e  REWER FEMRR  XAZEX #ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FERL FERL TR

For the nine months ended HE_E-=F
31 December 2013 +ZA=+-H

EAMEA
Executive Directors HrEs
Mr. Yuen Chow Ming (note i FRIKRA S0 A (&) - 1,190 - 57 1,247
Mr. Yuen Wai Keung (note ii and xix) RE®EE

(P35 Foxix) - 1,536 11 235 1,782
Mr. So Yiu Cheung (note i BRIBHE LA (sii) - 1,190 1 38 1,239
Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis {note i R (W EEii) - 1,190 1 37 1,238
Mr. Leung Chung Tak, Barry (note vi) 2ELE (W) - 44 1 85 130
Mr. Zhang Chuanjun (note Vi REF R4 (Wi - 90 - - 90
Mr. Zhu Dong (note vil and xx) REEERE

(GRS - 90 - - 90
Mr. Zhang Jack Jiyei (note vii) RAEE LA (W 2hvi) - 52 - - 52
Mr. Feng Tao (note ix) BELE (i) - 28 - - 28
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wong Kwok Kee (note xi) FEELE (W) 85 - - 5 90
Mr. Ng Wing Keung (note xil Rk % 4 (Fi3Exi) 65 - - 5 70

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUXHTES

Mr. Liao Cheung Tin, Stephen (note xviij — BRA 4 (i sxvii) 90 - - 52 142
Mr. Hui Yat On (note x) ARk (W) 90 - - 5 95
Mr. Tam Sun Wing (note xvi) BHE LA (i) 90 - - - 90
Mr. Zhang Songlin (note xvil RIMARE A (Frtavi) 45 - - - 45

465 5,410 34 519 6,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBEBRERMTE
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15. EE - RETHAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) M @
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM< (©)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Equity-settied
and benefits  share-based
benefits scheme expense
inkind  contributions  LAEREE
Fees e 2K RINER TIAR Total
we  REWEA A XAZAX ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAL TATL TATL AT

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-%-Z=F

ZAZtT-ALEE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Yuen Chow Ming (note i FRERBA 5% A5 (3 - 1,707 - 484 2,191
Mr. Yuen Wai Keung (note i and xix) RE#REE

(B 551 Foxix) - 2,186 15 1,091 3,292
Mr. So Yiu Cheung (note i) BB LA (i) - 1,706 15 322 2,043
Mr. Cheung Chi Man, Dennis (note il R (i) - 1,707 15 322 2,044
Mr. Lim Siong, Dennis (note iv) A% () - 806 2 (1,755) (924)
Mr. Wong Tak Chung (note v) EEREE (Wiky) - - - - -
Mr. Enebish. Burenkhuu (note iv) Enebish. Burenkhuu % &

(B ziv) - 139 17 - 156
Mr. Leung Chung Tak, Barry (note vi) DB (Hikvi) - 1,480 15 725 2,220
Mr. Zhang Chuanjun (note vi) FEELE (i - 3 - - 3%
Mr. Zhu Dong (note vii and xx) KA (3hviiRo) - 36 - - 36
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ho Hin Hung, Henry (note x) {EEL A (H5kx) 30 - - (826) (796)
Mr. Wong Kwok Kee (note x) BEA LA (f3) 77 - - 40 117
Mr. Ng Wing Keung (note xi) B8 JE 4 (BT 3 77 - - 40 117

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYH#HTES

Mr. Chan Sai Kit, Kevin (note xii) BRHE78 5% A5 (0 Foxi) 99 - - 215 314
Mr. Liao Cheung Tin, Stephen (note xvii)  BRA 4 (M zExvi) 120 - - 387 507
Mr. Tam Tsz Kan (note xiv) BFYEAE () 106 - - 169 275
Mr. Hui Yat On (note x) -7 () 77 - - 40 117
Mr. Tam Sun Wing (note xvi) EIMRLA (W) 36 - - - 36
Mr. Zhang Songlin (note xvii R (HFhvi) 3 - - - 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15. EE - EETBRAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) < &)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ EEME @
Notes: Mot -

(i

(i

resigned as executive director and chairman of
the Board on 16 January 2014

re-designated from the deputy chairman to the
acting chairman of the Board on 16 January 2014
and subsequently resigned as acting chairman
and executive director on 1 March 2014

resigned as executive director on 1 January 2014

)

(i

R=F—mE— AR ARE
WITEFREFRER

R-T—ME—-A+ XHHE
EZRREERELREFTGNE
TR ERR-_ZE—NFE=H
—HEHEREEXELHITES

R-T—MFE—A—HEHEHR
TES

(iv) not re-elected as executive director on 3 August (iv) ARZE-——FNA=ABEE
2012 EERNITES
(v) resigned as executive director on 27 July 2012 (v) R-E——F+tA-+tHE
TFRITES
(vi) resigned as executive director on 2 April 2013 (vi) RZE—=FMA = A TH
and re-designated as senior consultant TESFWEREETSHERM
(vi)  appointed as executive director on 12 December iy R-TE——F+-A+_-_RHE
2012 ZERAITES
(vii)  appointed as executive director on 25 July 2013 (iiy HR-ZE—=FtA-+HAE
ZERMITES
(ix) appointed as executive director on 16 December (ix) RZTE—=F+=-A+/ A&
2013 ZERRITES
(x) re-designated from executive director to non- (x) RZE——FMWA=-+/\HH
executive director on 28 April 2012 and HWITESATAIERTES -
subsequently resigned on 28 June 2012 EgR=—ZE——FA=+N
A BT
(xi) appointed as non-executive director on (xi) RZZTE——F)N\A+RHEZE
10 August 2012 and subsequently resigned on RIERITES AR =T —
16 December 2013 =F+ZA+NBEE
(xi)  appointed as non-executive director on xi) W-ZZE——FN\A+RHEZT

10 August 2012 and subsequently resigned on
15 October 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(xiii)  resigned as independent non-executive director
on 28 January 2013

(xiv)  resigned as independent non-executive director
on 18 February 2013

(xv) appointed as independent non-executive director
on 10 August 2012

(xvi)  appointed as independent non-executive director
on 12 December 2012

(xvii)  appointed as independent non-executive director
on 11 March 2013

(xviii)  resigned as independent non-executive director
on 1 February 2014

(xix)  resigned as executive director and chief executive
office on 1 March 2014

(Xx) appointed as the acting chairman on 1 March
2014

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company during
the nine months ended 31 December 2013 and
the year ended 31 March 2013 is Mr. Yuen Wai
Keung and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for service rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

No director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in respect of the nine months ended
31 December 2013 and the year ended 31 March
2013.

15. EE - BETHRAEREEZ
[ e,

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 fF 3
Frho Lt M A s R Y

EEME @)
Mg : (4

i) MZZE—=F—A=+/\B#t
EBIYIEANTES

xiv) RZZE—=F=A+/\BEF
B ERITESE

xv) R-ZE——F)N\A+HEITE
SNIERTES

xvy RZE—=-F+=-A+=H%E
ZERBIUINITES

xvi) R=ZZE—Z=F=ZA+—HEZ
ERBYIFERITES

(xvii) R-—Z—PUF - A—HETHE
SNIERTESE

xix) RZZE—NFE=A—HEEH
TEE RITHAEE

xx) RZZE—UF=A—RHEZE
BREER

REE_ZE—=F+_A=+—
HEANBERRBEZT—=F=
A=+—RLFE  REBRELE
MABRQRITRAER  H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15. EE - EETBRAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) <€ @)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEZESHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group AEELEERFATRENA
included four (year ended 31 March 2013: five) BE—T—=F=A=+—HLt
directors whose emoluments have been disclosed FERR)EE HM2ER L
above. For the nine months ended 31 December XHEE - BE_T—=F1+=H
2013, the emoluments paid to the remaining one =t—HIHIER ENF&HT
highest paid, non-director individual is as follows: —EERRFFEFATZHEL
B

Nine month Year

ended ended

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

BZE H=

—E-=F —E—=F

+t=—A=+—8 =A=+—H

IEh@EA EFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Salaries, allowances and e RUMEREDMEFN
benefits in kind 1,150 -
Retirement benefits scheme RIKE TR B X
contributions 11 -
1,161 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

15. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 15. EE - BETBRAEREEZ
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) M€ )

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEBSFHFMAL @

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013,
the aggregate emoluments of the above one
highest paid, non-director individual fell within the
following bands:

BHE_T—=F+"-_HA=+—H
IENER - Ft—E&EHIEE
EATZHEBEBENFTIE
E :

Number of individuals

A
Nine month Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 20183
BZE HE
—E—= —E—=%F
+=ZBA=+—H —A=+—H
1EnfE A IEFE

HK$1,000,001 — 1,000,001 7T

HK$1,500,000

1,500,000/ 7T

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013
and the year ended 31 March 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

REBEZE—_ZT—=F+=-A=+—
AEABAMEBEE-ZE—=F=
A=+—BHLFER  AEEL
EEANRESTHEMNAGRES
FATEZNERAME - ERBE
BEMARNEESBEEMALRSE

office. B1R 2 RV RAE R RERIA(E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y% - BERRE

Furniture, Plant,
fixtures and machinery Mine
Landand  equipment  Leasehold Motor and tools Water  development
buildings * improvements vehicles BE: pipelines assets Total
THRBF  2ERZE RENERE RE  HERIA KER BARBEE ait
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TR T TiEn TR T TEn TR T
(Note)
(3t)
Cost AE
At 1 April 2012 RZZ-ZE@A-H 18,615 14,030 12,188 50,674 33,716 8,456 37,206 174,906
Additions AE - 4,097 2,6% 6,494 2,659 - - 15,945
Disposal iH & - (662) (1,301) (6,134) (46) - - 8,143)
Bxchange realignment 3% (338) (77) (143) (73 (119) 59 (2,001) 2,692)
At 31 March 2013 WZF-Z5=A=1-H
and 1 April 2013 k=%-ZERA-B 18217 17,388 13,439 50,961 36,210 8,515 35,205 180,015
Additions hE - 2,855 192 3,575 1,557 - - 8,179
Acquired on acquistfon ~ ENEHBARNMEA
of subsidiaries - 8,983 896 3,002 38,502 - - 51,383
Disposal iH & - (501) - (6,714) (2,99) - - (9,213)
Disposal through disposal  EBHEHBADHE
of subsidiaries (1,830) (13,631) (8,801) 46,573 (27,744) (9,458) - (108,037)
Exchange realignment (34 3% (534) (1739 (2,528) (278) (220) 943 (4,704 (11,046
At31 December 2013 RZF-=#+ZA=+-H 15913 13,355 3,198 4973 43,321 - 30,521 111,281
Accumulated depreciation 2t 7€ R 5
and impairment
At 1 April 2012 R-B-—FRA-A 1313 5,748 4,036 22,601 26,408 3,248 32,800 96,180
Charge for the year ERz i 304 2,244 2,343 5,647 3,398 362 - 14,388
Eliminated on disposals ~ Hi£ 555 - - - (68) - - - (68)
Impairment loss ERERZREEE
recognised in the year - - - - - - 2,805 2,80
Bxchange realignment ~ ERHE (145) (49) {17) 38 1) - (1,820) 1,994)
At 31 March 2013 R-B-Z§=f=1-H
and 1 April 2013 k=5-ZEmA-A 1562 7,943 6,362 28244 29,806 3,610 33,785 111,311
Charge for the period A 767 2450 1,115 3352 3,182 281 - 11,147
Eliminated on disposals  {H 5415 - () - (3,686) (1,804) - - [5,561)
Eiminated on disposals ~ BBHENBAH
through dlisposal HETm
of subsilaries (564) (6,692) (4,791) (27,20 (21,174) (t511) - (64,934)
Impairment loss HNEAZRESE
recognised in the period 1,601 - - - - - 1,299 2,950
Exchange realignment B2 3% (62 (1,316) (2,165) (26) (2,491) 620 (4,569 (10,023)
At31 Decermber 2013 RZE-=F7TZA=T-F 334 2314 521 662 7,518 - 30,521 44,890
Carrying values REE
At31 December 2013 RZF-=FTZA=T-F 12519 11,041 2677 4,291 35,803 - - 66,391
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=%=f=1-H 16,715 9,445 70171 2,117 6,405 4,905 1,440 68,704
Note: No depreciation for mine development assets was et - ARZERESREBEZE T —=F+=

provided for as the production of the coal mine site has
not yet commenced during the nine month ended 31
December 2013 and year ended 31 March 2013.
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for mine development assets, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Land 2%
Buildings 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10% — 33 /5%

30% or over lease
term if shorter

10% - 20%

10% - 33 /3%

LLeasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Plant, machinery and tools
Water pipelines 4.85%

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the
directors of the Company conducted a review of the
Group’s land and buildings and mine development assets
and determined that the land and buildings and mine
development assets were impaired of approximately
HK$1,651,000 and HK$1,299,000 respectively (year
ended 31 March 2013: nil and approximately
HK$2,805,000 respectively).

Detail about the impairment assessment on land and
buildings and mine development assets is set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the net carrying amount of the Group’s
properties is as follows:

16.

M-  BERRE®

BESHEEEN  LAWE BER
REEE DERAERER T IIFXRAE
e

T+ i 2%

BF 10%

R £E 10%—33 /3%
T

THEMEEE 30%8k 3% #8 £f

(&)

E 10% —20%

W5 - a3 10%—33 /5%
;TH

IKE 48 4.85%

REBEZE_ZE—=F+-_A=+—HLA
BA  AraESTEeRASEN LR
BFURBESREEEETES  TE
FLHMREFUARBISRAEEED AR
B4 41,651,000/ 7t & 1,299,000/ 7T
(BE-_Z—=F=-A=1+—BHILtFEE:
2 Bl B4 K #)2,805,000% 7T) °

BRLHNEFURBEREEE R
BERFABHNFE M B HRKRME22

AEEYEZREFESTOT :

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—2-= —E=F
+t=A=+-B =A=+-A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Outside Hong Kong, held under EEB IR
medium-term leases B EHEE 12,579 16,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

17. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 17. MBBZYWEESF®RE

PROPERTIES
As at 31 December 2013, deposit paid for acquisition of RZZT—=F+=ZRA=+—8 ' stk
properties represents non-refundable deposit of ZYEE MR ERER (—UB
RMB388,000 (equivalent to HK$492,000) paid to a NE=F  EASEMEEE BB
property developer, an independent third party not PRI EN —BYERNEERESS
connected to the Group as for the acquisition of property A R #388,0007T (FBE 7492,000
and six parking area under construction situated at Zhejing BIL) WA RERE (ZE—=F=A4
(31 March 2013: nil). =+—HB:F) -
18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. LB EFE
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E-=F —F—=
+=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Balance as at beginning of period/year FER¥], F ¥ 2 &84 319 561
Amortisation B (150) (229)
Eliminated through disposal of FRIDEN B R
subsidiary (137) -
Exchange realignment (RS (21) (13)
Balance as at end of period/year REAR FR 2 &k 11 319
Analysed for reporting purposes as: PEBENDWAE
— Current asset (included in trade and — ABEE (BREEES
other receivables) (note 28) K A FEGRIE )
(Pt 3E28) 11 152
- Non-current asset — ERBEE - 167
11 319
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent up- AEBEBEN L HAERBEBEAMRST
front payments to acquire interest in the usage of land TRz T FERER BN R  ZEL
situated in the Mongolia, which are held under short term MIARBHEE (CE—=F=A=+—
leases (31 March 2013: medium term leases). BH:FHEE HE -
19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) NON- 19. W () SEERR R KA
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts due from(to) non-controlling shareholders FEU (1) JEFERR IR R FRIA R BT -« &
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRIBEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBEBRERMTE
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

20. GOODWILL 20. HE
HK$’000
FHET
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 WN-—E——FA—H -
and 1 April 2013 —E-=F=HA=+—H
M -_ZT—-=FMA—H 35,506
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40) B Y g — Rk B A R E A (M FE40) 660,415
Exchange realignment ME W S 8,872
At 31 December 2013 R-—E—=F+=-A=+—H 704,793
Accumulated impairment A2itEE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 RZE——_FWA—A
and 1 April 2013 —E-—=F=A=+—H
kZZ—=%mMHA—H 35,506
Impairment loss recognised in the period AR AR ESE -
Exchange realignment FEE 5 2=E -
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+="A=+—H 35,506
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2013 R=ZF—=+=HA=+—H 669,287

At 31 March 2013 R-_FT—=F=A=+—H -

SUBREREME - AERAERFHN

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill with

indefinite useful lives has been allocated to individual
CGUs, being i) the four mining licences for a coal mine in
Tugrug Valley held by a subsidiary of the Company,
Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC (“TNE”), within mining and
exploration business; and i) the operating segments under
Sinbo Investment Limited (“Sinbo”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as “Sinbo Group”) acquired during
the period in geographical information business, which
consists of software application, data processing, sales
of cameras and unmanned aerial vehicles.

The Group conducted impairment review on goodwill
attributable to the respective CGUs at the end of the
reporting period by reference to the estimated recoverable
amounts.

(For the nine m
(AR R L g

HEBEWHSEEE AR ELEA - A
MR R RER - AR RS — R
A Al Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC ([TNEJ)
FEATugrug Valley & ) IO B ERBE AR AR
K EREERAR ([FE]) REK B
AEl (B ERE]) REAKE 21
BEEER BEUMER BEE
2 - HERW N EARK -

E2REAIREERUSHASE
IR & B R e B TR (ER

S
28

N
'
& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. EHE @)
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated RZE—=F+ZA=+—0 ' 2kZE
impairment losses) as at 31 December 2013 allocated to ZEBU 2B (MR AFTRESE) 2
these units are as follows: BREEAT
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
=B —= —E—=
+=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Software application HN{EEMR 86,827 -
Data processing SRR 516,287 -
Sales of cameras SHE B
and unmanned aerial vehicles PNE PN 66,173 -
Mining and exploration business iR R ENVRET = -
669,287 -
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

GOODWILL (continued)

Software application, date processing, sales of
cameras and unmanned aerial vehicles

The recoverable amounts of respective CGUs have been
determined based on the fair value less cost of disposal
using market approach. Fair value was determined with
reference to a valuation report prepared by Roma
Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”), an independent
valuer based on the price-to-earnings multiples (“P/E
Multiple”) of comparable companies with similar business
nature and operations as the CGUs. The average P/E
Multiple of 40 and marketability discount rate of 21% and
control premium of 30% were used. Other key estimation
included the cost of disposal based on estimation by the
management of the Group. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
respective CGUs to exceed their aggregate recoverable
amount.

The level in the fair value hierarchy in arriving the above
recoverable amount is considered under Level 2 with
observable inputs for the assets directly or indirectly.

Mining and exploration business

The goodwill of approximately HK$35,506,000 was fully
impaired in previous year due to the unforeseeable
technical causes and the required time for water
management program was longer than expected, resulting
in the delay in the overall production schedule of the TNE
Mine, which resulted in downward adjustment on the
estimated net cash inflows and hence the recoverable
amount of the TNE.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill attributable to
TNE has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation. Further details are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

20.

BE®

BHER  BBEEE  HEBEEK
W AN TS 1

EHReEABUMNABOSBEERAT
BERBARBEREEXNAEE - 24
B752RIB EEMESBERFEBR
NE (B mEZBERESER
FEAR (EARUXBEHEMRGEE
BUMKEEERR OmAXR(Max]) -
EAFHTREIORATHEMAE X
21%A MR A i (B 30% » Eftb E 2 fh
EERLERE  DERAEBEEERE
MEE - EEER/EFMZEFREOE
MEEA S TSR REELSE
UEmELAREBEEKRESER
B e

B L E S EA A EERKR
RBE R (ATEERIRZREEBRH
®) e

RIER B IRETS

& #135,506,0008 TE R BEFER
HURE + AR TE R A BT R A &
KEEIRIBE FTSREERRER - 0]
ERMEMEE A RKEERIEE S
B RNATEH - ERTNERES N ERE
ErrEIEE - MEBGRESRAFE
TH - M TNEZ AT Uk Bl & B8 T F% o

TNER(EEE 2 AIRE S RBEREES
EBEFEEE - E—FTHFRHARNKEN
KM 22
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. HihBEEE
Deferred
development
Distribution costs Customer  Imaging

Licences  Contracts Copyrights ~ EEEE  Software Trade name relationship data Total
BR AHEH e B Bt HESE  ZFEE PhEE 5
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén  TErn TR TEn  TEr TR TEn Thn  TiEn

Cost i
At 1 April 2012, R-E-—&ERmR-H-

31 March 2013 “5-ZEZA=1-H

and 1 April 2013 R-E-Z£NA-R - - - - - - - - -
Additions through acquisition #AUERBAFEN

of subsidiaries 183,944 38,731 156,315 41,367 11,182 21,143 1,791 58016 612,489
Additions HE - - - 37,445 3,817 - - 17,05 58,317
Transfer in (ou) EA(L) - - - B89 %5 - - 616 -
Exchange realignment ERAE 1949 442 1657 478 1493 25 19 770 7,003

At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZETZA=1-0 185,898 30,143 167,972 46,399 148,767 21,368 1,810 16457 677,809

Accumulated amortisation 23t EHRHME
and impairment

At 1 April 2012, RZE-ZEWE-R-

31 March 2013 “2-ZF=f=1-H

and 1 April 2013 k=5-ZFRA-A - - - - - - - - -
Charge for the period BNER - 2,018 9,080 - 1189 1121 145 10410 3462
Impaiment loss recognised ~ SMEZ T EEE

in the period - - - 2,088 7,998 - - - 10,086
Exchange realignment i % - 18 80 17 174 10 1 % 30
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZE+ZfA=1-H - 2,036 9,160 2,105 20,024 1,131 146 10,502 45,104
Carrying values REE

At31December 2013  WZE-=E+ZB=t-8 185808 37,07 148,812 4294 18743 20,37 1,664 65,055 632,705

At 31 March 2013 WZ%-ZF=A=1-H - - - - - - - - -
All of the Group’s other intangible assets were acquired AEBHAMBEMB EELZRE
through business combination during the period. Software BEHER REABRZTERNEMH KX
and development costs capitalised during the year are REBERKRNBANBEENELEE -

internally generated intangible assets.
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets other than licences have
indefinite useful lives. Such intangible assets are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Distribution contracts 8 years

Copyrights 6-8 years

Deferred development 10 years from the date

costs of commencement of

the relevant projects

Software 5-10 years

Trade name 10 years

Customer relationship 10 years

Imaging data 3 — 8 years

No amortisation for deferred development costs was
provided as the developing software is not ready for use.

Licences represented Class-A Certificates of Surveying
and Mapping Qualification and Class-B Certificates of
Surveying and Mapping Qualification issued by the Bureau
of Surveying and Mapping.

The software mainly represented the graphical and
managing system which can reform the raw data into the
readable outputs, for example: 3D modified graphics and
graphic application software.

Copyrights represented a group of registered copyright
of software which related to aerial photo modeling and
processing.

Imaging data represented the database of aerial photos
called Digital City, which was established for future sales
of aerial photos and further development of relevant data
processing works.

The licences have legal life of 2 to 3 years but are
renewable every 2 to 3 years at minimal cost. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group would
renew the licences continuously and has the ability to do
SO.

As a result, the licences are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful
life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows
indefinitely. The licences will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

21.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the licences with indefinite
useful life have been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation. That calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the directors of
the Company covering a five-year period, with discount
rate of ranging from 18.22% to 20.63% per annum. The
cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a steady growth rate of 3%. The growth rate was
based on the relevant industry growth rate forecast and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. The key assumptions for the value-
in-use calculation related to the estimation of cash flows
included gross margin and discount rate. Gross margin
represents budgeted gross margin, which is based on
past performance and the management’s expectation for
the market development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
risks specific to the relevant industry. Management
believed that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying values of intangible assets to exceed its
aggregate recoverable amount.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the
directors of the Company conducted a review of the
Group’s other intangible assets and determined that
certain deferred development costs and software were
impaired based on the estimated recoverable amounts
with reference to their value-in-use. The value-in-use was
determined based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted at a rate ranging from 18.27% to 29.27% per
annum. Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately
HK$2,088,000 and HK$7,998,000 respectively (year
ended 31 March 2013: nil) have been recognised in
respect of deferred development costs and software.

168 [ PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ Bl{ZiR B R A 7

21.

HtwEEEE »

EBERERFH MR AT E
BIOBRBEREESEMEE - G#
BHAERBEARRESAILERERD
FHEZMBREMERSRETARGT
B BRBERERFN18.22%%20.63%F
F-AFHEBRZRSRETIERE
EIRREINIEHE - BRKRTIRIEIAR
TEZERERAAEE  WEBBHER
TEZFORPERX - FRABEEZ
ITERRERSREMTAR  BREE
MERBE - ERRIEFHREER X -
DIRBEERELREEBYMSHRRZ
TRBH - FIERARMIR RSB X -
RRBBITERERR ZBEITHIHT
- BIEERE  EMZEFRRALE
RAzaBB8P I r@ERBLEECRA
REBBEATEORSEE -

REE-T—=F+-A=+—HLA
A ARABEZFHAEEHMELE
EETEN UHET 5 TEEREK
ARBHEERBGHFTATKREEELBE
FREERE FREEDREN TS
F18.27%E29.27% IR 2 (hst R RIE £
REET - Bt - EDRIRELEREK
AR BRI EFE L £2,088,0008
7T} 7,998,0008 T (BHE-_E—=F=
A=+—BLFEE:F) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

22. MINING LICENCES

22, RIEMRRR

T—=F+_A=+—HIN@EA

HK$’000
FHET
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2012 N—ZE——FPNA—H 2,158,247
Exchange realignment ME 5 58 2 (115,766)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE—=F=ZA=+—A8xK
WZE—=FWmA—H 2,037,481
Exchange realignment bE 3 3 2 (291,069)
At 31 December 2013 R-B-—=%+=ZA=+—H 1,746,412
Accumulated impairment ZFRE
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——HFWMA—A 1,610,335
Impairment loss recognised in the year FANERBEEE 152,919
Exchange realignment ME W S (90,042)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE—=F=ZA=+—A8x
RZZE—=FMA—AH 1,673,212

Impairment loss recognised in the period HA Y RE SR HYRLE B 48 173,440
Exchange realignment ME W (249,128)
At 31 December 2013 R-B-—=F+=A=+—8H 1,597,524
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=-A=+—H 148,888
At 31 March 2013 RZE-—=F=HA=+—H 364,269

Licences represent the carrying amounts of four mining
rights in respect of a coal mine located in Tugrug Valley
within the administrative unit of Bayan Soum of Tur Aimag
in Mongolia covering area of 1,114 hectares in aggregate.

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, mining licence is granted for an initial
period of 30 years and holder of a mining licence may
apply for an extension of such licence for two successive
periods of 20 years each.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

22. MINING LICENCES (Continued) 22. REMR (@)

No amortisation for the mining licences was provided for
as the production of the coal mine site had not been
commenced in this financial period (year ended 31 March
2013: nil).

The mining licenses of TNE Mine are subject to impairment
review whenever there are indications that the mining
licences’ carrying amount may not be recoverable.

In performing the impairment testing for the period, the
directors of the Company have engaged Roma Appraisals,
an independent valuer, in determining the recoverable
amount of the TNE Mine. Given the current development
status of TNE Mine, management has determined the
recoverable amount of the TNE Mine using fair value less
costs of disposal, which is derived by using a discounted
cash flow (“DCF”) analysis. The DCF analysis has
incorporated assumptions that a typical market participant
would use in estimating TNE Mine’s fair value. The DCF
analysis uses cash flow projection for a period of 13 years
up to 2027 (31 March 2013: 13 years up to 2026) and
the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is
18.08% (31 March 2013: 19.13%). In determining the
discount rate, the weighted average cost of capital was
used, which is determined with reference to the industry
capital structure based on the figures of similar publicly
traded companies in the stock exchanges of Hong Kong
and the PRC with mining projects, and have taken into
account the specific risks encountered by TNE Mine as
further detailed below. For the estimation of inflation rate,
inflation rates relevant to the local Mongolian economy
and the coal market are taken as reference.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

22. MINING LICENCES (Continued)

Other key assumptions used in the calculation of fair value
less costs of disposal of TNE Mine in respective financial
year are set out as follows:

(@)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, further
drilling works and laboratory tests were done to
determine coal layer structure and thickness and
to verify coal quality. From the laboratory test
results, the calorific value of such samples was in
the range of 3,100 to 4,300 Kcal/kg. Since the
Group has not been able to excavate coal with
expected calorific value, the Group decided to
revise the cash flow forecasts to focus on the coal
sales of lower calorific value which has lower
expected coal sales price per tonne;

Coal sales price is determined with reference to
the market information. In view of the sluggish coal
market condition, the management has reduced
the expected coal price for 2014 (the expected year
of commencement of production) from United
States Dollar (“US$”) 15.49 per ton in last year’s
forecast to US$13.04 per ton in current year’s
forecast. The subsequent increment in coal sales
price is on average growth rate of 3.4% (31 March
2013: 3.9%) based on Australian export price index
over the past 24 years;

Cost of production and gross margin are
determined with reference to the market
comparables. The overall profit margin in current
year’s forecast was about ranged from -46% to
10% (31 March 2013: ranged from 27% to 31%)
throughout the mining project life; and

In light of recent developments in Mongolia with
regard to the implementation of laws and
regulations related to the mining industry such as
the passing of Resolution No 194 in June 2012 (as
explained below), an additional risk premium of 2%
has been factored into the discount rate.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

22. MINING LICENCES (Continued)

172

Uncertainty relating to implementation of
laws and regulations affecting the position of
the mining licences

Currently there are two separate sources of restrictions
on mineral exploration and mining activities around water
areas in Mongolia which affect the mining and exploration
business of the Group:

(i) On 16 July 2009, the Parliament of Mongolia
enacted the Law to Prohibit Mineral Exploration and
Mining Operations at the Headwaters of Rivers,
Protected Zones of Water Reservoirs and Forest
Areas (the “Water and Forest Law”) which prohibits
minerals exploration and mining in areas containing
water reservoirs, water protection zones and forest
zones (the “Prohibited Areas”). During the year
ended 31 March 2013, Resolution No. 194 (“Rs
194”) was issued to define the boundaries of the
Prohibited Areas pursuant to Article 4.3 of the
Water and Forest Law. Pursuant to Rs 194, a letter
was issued by Ministry of Environment and Green
Development (“MEGD”) confirming the Group that
the four mining licences and two of the exploration
licences of the Group as disclosed in note 23iii) to
the consolidated financial statements, partially or
wholly fell within the protected zones of water
reservoirs specified under Rs 194. Under Rs 194,
the Group is prohibited from undertaking mining
and exploration activities in the areas that overlap
with the Prohibited Areas. The Group has not yet
commenced mining activities up to the date of this
report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

22. MINING LICENCES (Continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of
laws and regulations affecting the position of
the mining licences (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

The Water and Forest Law also provides that all
mineral and exploration licences which overlap with
the Prohibited Areas may be cancelled (wholly or
partially) upon the government of Mongolia paying
compensation to the licence holder. For partial
overlapping, the licence holder may submit a
request to the Ministry of Mining to continue
working on the non-overlapping part of the licensed
area while claiming compensation on the
overlapping part of the licensed area. For wholly
overlapping, the licence holder could only submit
a request to the Ministry of Mining for compensation.

(i) The Ministry of Nature and Tourism and Ministry of
Health passed a joint order in 2009 pursuant to
the Water Law which provides that exploration and
mining for common minerals is prohibited within
certain distance from a water reservoir area. In April
2010, order #56 was issued by the Governor of
Bayan County which specified the areas where
mining and exploration was prohibited pursuant to
the Water Law (the “Protected Zone”). In
September 2010, the Group was notified by the
Water Department that their four mining licences
fell into the ordinary Protected Zone.

In previous years, the Group had made request to the
Governor of Bayan County for exemption from the
restrictions under the Water Law on the ground of the
Group’s enormous contributions to the country and that
the mining operation of the Group would not have any
harmful impact to the environment. In December 2011,
based on the assessment report issued by an
environmental inspector of the local government, which
stated that the areas covered by the Group’s mining
licences do not constitute an ordinary protection zone or
a water reservoir area, the Governor issued order #259
(the “Release Order”) to cancel order #56 previously issued
in April 2010.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

22. MINING LICENCES (Continued) 22. REMR (@)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of
laws and regulations affecting the position of
the mining licences (Continued)

As advised by the Group’s legal advisors in Mongolia, there
is a potential for Rs 194 to be revised. The directors of
the Company understand that the Prohibited Areas
currently set out under Rs 194 are considered inaccurate
and based on information that is out of date and thus are
subject to change. The directors of the Company further
understand the MEGD and the Ministry of Mining are
working together to correct these inaccuracies and issue
a definitive list of licences that are subject to the Water
and Forest Law. Advised by the legal advisors in Mongolia,
this definitive list of affected licences (“the List”) is a
requirement under Rs 194. The legal advisors further
advised that up to the date of this report, the government
of Mongolia has not published the List and it is unclear
when it will be issued.

Although the Group’s four mining licences and two of its
exploration licences ostensibly fall within the ambit of the
Water and Forest Law, the directors of the Company
believe the impact to the Group will be minimal because
of the following:

° The Release Order obtained in December 2011,
although for the purposes of the Water Law and
prepared by an environmental inspector of the local
government, is based on many of the same
requirements as the Water and Forest Law. The
directors of the Company are confident that they
can argue on the same environmental and
geological grounds with the MEGD to similarly
exclude the Group’s mining licences from the final
List.

o The Group was able to renew its licences as normal
during the nine months ended 31 December 2013
and to date have received no letter or request from
the Mongolian government to revoke their licences
or stop them from carrying out any mining activity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

MINING LICENCES (continued)

Uncertainty relating to implementation of
laws and regulations affecting the position of
the mining licences (Continued)

Assuming the Group is affected by these laws and
regulations, given that the details of compensation from
the Mongolian government are not available, the directors
of the Company are still unable to quantify the effect, if
any, on the Group’s financial positions.

In light of recent developments in Mongolia with regard
to the implementation of laws and regulations related to
the mining industry such as the passing of Rs 194 in June
2012, an additional risk premium of 2% has been factored
into the discount rate.

Notwithstanding the risk exposed by the Group relating
to the above laws and regulations have been addressed
by the directors of the Company by adjusting the discount
rate applied to the DCF analysis of TNE Mine, the ultimate
outcome of this matter cannot be presently determined.
If any of the mining licences of the Group was to be
revoked due to Rs 194 or the Water Law, and the
compensation entitled by the Group was to be significantly
less than the carrying amounts of these mining licences,
the Group would have to recognise significant impairment
loss on the mining licences and the related assets in
addition to the impairment losses currently recognised
and as described below. This situation represents a
significant uncertainty to the Group which might have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

22. MINING LICENCES (Continued)

176

Uncertainty relating to implementation of
laws and regulations affecting the position of
the mining licences (Continued)

Result of impairment assessment

Based on the above assessment, further downward
adjustment was noted on the estimated net cash inflows
and the recoverable amount of TNE Mine and the director
of the Company considered further impairment loss should
be recognised, the impairment loss is primarily due to
revision of expected selling price of coal according to
market condition and the additional risk resulting from the
recent developments in laws and regulations in Mongolia,
such as the passing of Rs 194 into law in June 2012,
which may have an impact on the position and the carrying
value of the Group’s mining licences. The total impairment
loss of approximately HK$176,390,000 (31 March 2013:
HK$155,724,000) recognised in the period before
offsetting tax effect is allocated on a pro-rata basis to
write down the carrying amounts of the mining licences,
land and buildings and the mine development assets in
the amounts of approximately HK$173,440,000 (31 March
2013: HK$152,919,000), HK$1,651,000 (31 March 2013:
nil) and HK$1,299,000 (31 March 2013: HK$2,805,000)
respectively. The total offsetting tax effect in the period
amounted to approximately HK$43,360,000 (31 March
2013: HK$38,205,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

23. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION 23. BERFAREE
ASSETS
Licences Others Total
J 58 Hit At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T Tt
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2012 N-_ZE——FNH—H 5,810 22,451 28,261
Additions NE 401 604 1,005
Exchange realignment b H S (321) (1,221) (1,542)

At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE—=F=ZA=+—H

MZZE—=FMmMA—H 5,890 21,834 27,724
Additions RE - 246 246
Exchange realignment P& 5 3R (367) (1,264) (1,631)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%

+=-—A=+—H 5,523 20,816 26,339
Impairment W AE
At 1 April 2012 RN-_ZE——FmMA—H - - -
Impairment loss recognised in the year 4 A E #7228 (B &5 18 5,018 19,599 24,617
Exchange realignment ME 5 58 2 (145) (582) (727)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H

M -_ZT—-=FMA—H 4,873 19,017 23,890
Impairment loss recognised in the period Hi A & #7228 (B &5 18 917 2,830 3,747
Exchange realignment bE 3 32 (267) (1,031) (1,298)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=

+=A=+-—H 5,523 20,816 26,339
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2013 R-ZEBE—=

+=—A=+—H - - -
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=RA=+—H 1,017 2,817 3,834

Licences as at 31 December 2013 and 31 March 2013
represent the cost of obtaining or acquiring exploration
licences to certain area in Mongolia with gold, copper and
coal deposit and others mainly comprise geological and
geophysical costs, costs incurred for drilling, trenching
and excavation works, costs incurred for sampling and
laboratory works, costs incurred for evaluation such as
environment assessment and feasibility study, as well as
depreciation and labour costs directly attributable to the
exploration activities.

[Furthe nine months ended 31 Decemb

RZE—=F+=—A=+—HEZ=ZE

ZFZA=+—H ' BERERGHKE
SHESEES  MEKEREEZET
iz BIRERB R AREMERBE
HE R ERIBA A - EIE - 2R RE
BTREEAZAA DHERERIEE
7R IRIBFHE KA TR R E T
HITEEAZKRA - ARITE KBTS
B2EESTIRA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HZE—

23. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION
ASSETS (Continued)

The exploration licences comprise of the followings:

(0

(i)

Two exploration licences in respect of gold and
copper deposit located in certain areas of Gobi-
Altai, covering an area of approximately 44,016
hectares. During the year ended 31 March 2013,
the licences and related exploration costs
capitalised which amounted to approximately
HK$2,534,000 and HK$3,903,000 respectively
have been fully impaired as the current exploration
and evaluation activities have not yet led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of
minerals and the management did not intend to
renew the licenses after expiry in April 2013. The
licences were lapsed during the nine months ended
31 December 2013.

Two exploration licences in respect of gold and
copper deposit located in certain areas of Zavkhan,
Mongolia, covering an area of approximately
15,517 hectares. During the year ended 31 March
2013, the licences and related exploration costs
capitalised which amounted to approximately
HK$2,484,000 and HK$15,696,000 respectively
have been fully impaired as the current exploration
and evaluation activities have not yet led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of
minerals and the management did not renew the
licences after expiry in March 2013.

Three exploration licences in respect of a coal mine
located in DundGobi, Mongolia, covering an area
of approximately 14,087 hectares in aggregate. The
licences and the exploration cost capitalised for
this exploration project as at 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately HK$5,523,000 and
HK$20,816,000 (31 March 2013: HK$589,000 and
HK$21,834,000) respectively. In current period,
impairment loss of approximately HK$917,000 (31
March 2013: nil) and HK$2,830,000 (31 March
2013: nil) respectively had been provided as the
exploration and evaluation activities had not yet led
to the discovery of commercially viable quantities
of minerals and there has been no further plan for
substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources in the area.

178 [ PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ Bl{ZR B R A &

Z—=F+_A=+—RHIENEA

23. BIERFAMEE ®

HYER hE R

(i)

(ii)

BRETIIEE :

M I8 % & % T 1 R Gobi-Altaifi)
FRHR (BEMmEN44,0162E) 5
EEe il E ez BiF
R o AR B Al 2 B8R R FE A OE
@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂZ%%%
EHEBETREEN
FUOAEME LR - lﬂ #
HE2—_Z—=F=A=+—HIt
FE - ERREARERNMEBIEK
KD RI#I2,534,000% T K&
3,903,000/8 7 CE 2 HRE - 12
MBREE-_T—=F+-/F=
+—IEAEABEERM -

MBS N & TR 5 & Bl Zavkhan
B (BEABOISHITAE) EEE
S RIS HE Y BT -
AR B A2 BiR R AP E B B M A B
RE¥ BN BEREAERE
IHE?F_K——E ﬂfﬁé
ZIER Al REEZT—=F
Z“A=t—HItEE WW&W@
BBV R AR 5 Bl 492,484,000
7 7t X 15,696,000/ 70 E & R
g -

=ZIEH MRS 5 B DundGobig
BEEEBEHEN14,087TAE 2 IETE

ZEEER - RZE—=F+=
A=+—8 ZWHEEB ZER
REXRECHERED B QA

5,523,000 7T 1 20,816,000/ 7T
(ZE—=%F=A=+—H: 4
589,000 7t & 21,834,000/
J0) ° RARHAR @ BEEE D B4
B917,0008 T (ZE—=F=A
=+—H8: %) X2,830,000F T
(ZE—=fF=A=+—8:
) - BFtieRE - READHER
EEB M R IR A B EERT
MEBENEE Hﬁ%ﬁﬁ—i
FTEIBR R e th [ E — ﬁ@f X &F
HEEEREAAEMAE

1 o

TT%?%



23.

24.

25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION
ASSETS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, exploration licence is granted for an
initial period of three years and holder of an exploration
licence may apply for an extension of such licence for
two successive periods of three years each.

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

This represents deposits paid to a supplier for technical
know-how which was to be used in a processing plant
for smokeless fuel product. Since certain conditions as
set forth in the licence agreement signed with the supplier
had not yet been fulfilled and accordingly, the transfer of
the technical know-how was not yet completed. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
smokeless fuel product will not be implemented in the
foreseeable future and therefore carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,738,000 for the related deposits was
fully impaired in the year ended 31 March 2012.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as at
31 March 2013 represented a contract of equity-linked
deposit structured with a bank, with principal of
RMB4,000,000 being guaranteed by the relevant bank.
The return is determined by reference to the changes in
prices of underlying listed equities as stated in the
contract. The contract will be matured on 26 April 2016
and was therefore classified as non-current asset. The
equity-linked deposits are designated as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition as
they contain non-closely related embedded derivative. The
directors of the Company consider the fair values of the
equity-linked deposits, which are based on the prices the
counterparty bank would pay to redeem at 31 March
2013, approximate to their carrying values of the equity-
linked deposits as at 31 March 2013. Accordingly, no
change in the fair value was recognised in the profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2013. The financial
asset at fair value through profit and loss as at 31 March
2013 was pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans.

The financial asset at fair value through profit or loss was
disposed of through disposal of subsidiaries during the
nine months ended 31 December 2013.

23.

24.

25.

HREFEEE @

BRER _ZENFRAZKGBERE
& RBEZBRERN L BB =F -
HRERFFE ATEERFEHMAX -
BR=F -

ANRERRE

TS S AR EIE AR E R I TR 2
EFREMmMAEEE N Z2ZE - AR
B ERMEI A BEREI AT
MR REEZER - B BTN 2 85 A
RFEK - RRARIEERE  BEMEE
mAERA] RERER - WEEEBENA
3,738,000 T EBIZEERBE_Z
——FZAZ=Z+—HILFEEZARE -

gﬂﬁﬁmﬁéﬂEZMﬁﬁ

BARERERIEZZZE—=F=A
= t+—HZUBEERERITAIIZLZK
EHNEBETREY  AEBEARK
4,000,000 T FHFEREERTTIER - B3R =
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H: ZAABEBRERYECHKEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

26. INVENTORIES 26. &
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—=F —F—=
+t=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Raw materials and supplies R R R A 2,215 97,646
Finished goods X o 14,872 -
17,087 97,646
Less: Write-down of inventories A WOREE - (3,479)
17,087 94,167

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 27. BREFENIERIEA
OF CONTRACT WORKS

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
Ski=8 —T—=%F
+=HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Costs incurred to date plus HEBAIEE 2R
recognised profits INE #EsRE 7 546,400 1,650,841
Less: Progress billings to date W ELE B ATR TR E E UK (344,652) (1,524,229)
201,748 126,612
Included in amounts due from customers of contract FABRBKREBEFPEHNIEREBZL
works of approximately HK$43,707,000 is receivable from 43,707,000/ 7T /& FE YL FE1Z AR AR 3R 3R IR
non-controlling shareholders (31 March 2013: nil). (ZE—=F=A=+—H: %) -
The amounts due from customers of contract works have EREFAHNIRFBECNR -_T—=F
been pledged to bank borrowing as at 31 March 2013 ZA=+—HREERRTER (ZZE—
(31 December 2013: nil) (note 33(a)). =F+=-A=+—8 : &) (:E33(@)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28. ESZRHAMEWRIEA

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

—E-=F —E—=F

+=—A=+-—8H —A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Trade receivables =Y S E QL] 132,254 120,259
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE (15,857) -
116,397 120,259

Retention receivables FEUUR & KT8 - 20,476
Prepaid land lease payments (note 18) T8{J Lt & 5k IE (H3E18) 11 152
Prepayments and deposits FENFERES 21,248 31,013
Other receivables H b & W R IA 13,255 13,938
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R EH A I RIA AR 150,911 185,838

Included in the other receivables of approximately
RMB730,000 (equivalent to HK$926,000) as at 31
December 2013 is receivable from an independent third
party. The other receivables together with the loan
receivable as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements were pledged by several real estate
properties located in the PRC.

The Group has a policy of allowing credit period to its
customers, ranging from 90 to 180 days (31 March 2013:
30 to 60 days for the Disposed Business). The Group
may, on a case by case basis and after evaluation of the
business relationship and creditworthiness, extend the
credit period of certain government related entities and
normally over 1 year for its low default risk.

R-E—=F+_A=+—H:st A&
JE W R IE 4 A R #730,0000T (AHE R
926,000/ 0) e B ARKIBYE=7
FRIE o Bt EURGRIBE R B E 3R (4R
A UBRRMI T2 EE) A TR
B EEYEER -

AEERTFTERFEER  HR&EEN
T90E180K (—E—=ZF=ZA=1+—
H : EHEEKI0EC0KR) - AEE AR
BRI EEW LT HEBBRERREE 7]
BETHRRHEEEENEESRER - B
AREZNRBEREBEER —FI
J: °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. EZNHMERRES

(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, NTREBREAREZAHEINNE
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on SEWHIE (MR RERBE®) 2Rk D
invoice date which approximated the respective revenue T ZRAHRERSERBHAMES -
recognition dates as at the end of the reporting period. RZE—=F=ZA=+—HBzZ2H &R
The analysis as at 31 March 2013 relates to the Disposed HEXBEW AEERZSFERLE
Business. The Group does not hold any collateral over BEEMERR -

these balances.

31 December 31 March
2013 2013

—EB—=F —F—=
+=—HBR=+—H —A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Within 90 days 90K 24,885 117,238
91 to 180 days 91E 180K A 4,677 2,935
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 21,538 -
Over 365 days 365K 65,297 86
116,397 120,259
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as
at the end of each reporting date is as follows:

HEMBEBRERMTE
E—=F+-A=+—HItNEA

28. EFNHEMEKRRE @

A EMEHR - WARBIZKRHERKR S
BIEZE S REFIRZ Rk TN :

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

—E-= —T—=F

+=A=+-—~H =A=+—8¢

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT FHEIT

Neither past due nor impaired BE R 38 2 75 R (B 44,368 73,330
Past due but not impaired BB EEXRRE

— Within 90 days - 90K A 31,172 46,843

- 91 to 365 days - 91E 365K 30,288 -

— Over 365 days - 365K £ 10,569 86

116,397 120,259

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired as RZE—=F+ZA=+—HBEHEX

at 31 December 2013 relate to a wide range of customers.
Based on past experiences, the management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired as
at 31 March 2013 were mainly derived from the provision
of maintenance and construction works on civil
engineering contracts. The related customers are
principally government departments/organisations and
reputable corporations. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

[Furthe nine months ended 31 Decemb
{7 AT r e s AR s

MEZEW RHERR L TR © 1R
BUARLR  EEERS BNEEE
BYWEBAEE WAL FERBEEL
MER R - ZFAERIDBAR R B2
Bl FKIA e

RZE—=F=ZA=+—HEBEBHEXR
BEZESREUGRIBETERE HERE
MEARIREHNZERETIR - ERERF
FTEAEBFEM, EBARBERGTZ
DR BEBUTLER  BEERA ' H
REEGEVESNEY  HZFEH
BEEHRERE  ZSEHRDNERE
Al RSN E FRIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. ESREHMEWTIE &)

29.

(Continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows: REEBEZESHOT -
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—=fF —EF—=F
+=A=+—-A8 =HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
1 April mA—H - -
Impairment loss recognised on B ZEWFIERER
trade receivables ZREE#E 15,720 -
Exchange realignment bE 3 % 137 -
End of reporting period WEHR 15,857 -

The Group has individually assessed all receivables and
provided in full for all receivables that are considered not
recoverable. Allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$15,720,000 (year ended 31 March
2018: nil) has been recognised during the nine months
ended 31 December 2013.

As at 31 March 2013, retention receivables of approximately
HK$18,561,000 was aged one year or below and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$1,915,000 was
aged over one year, of which approximately HK$74,000 was
past due for over one year. As at 31 March 20183, retention
monies of approximately HK$18,466,000 are expected to
be recovered more than one year.

The fair value of the retention receivables as at 31 March
2013 was estimated to be approximately HK$19,322,000.
The fair value is determined based on cash flow
discounted at market interest rates of comparable financial
instruments.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

The amount was lent to an independent third party which
carry interest at the RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted
by the People’s Bank of China and repayable within one
year. As at 31 December 2013, this loan receivable
amounted to approximately RMB8,611,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,921,000) (31 March 2013: nil) together with the
other receivables from the same independent third party
of approximately RMB730,000 (equivalent to
HK$926,000) (31 March 2013: nil) is secured by several
real estate properties located in the PRC which have been
pledged to the Group as collateral for this loan.
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IEE A B R RERE#4915,720,000
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R_ZE—=F=ZA=+—0H  BRREZ
TKIE#)18,661,000/8 7T 2 Bk 3 — F 3
AR - M FIgR4E 87 401,915,000/8 TT iR e
@ —F - AP LI74,0008 T2 B E—
F-RZTB—=F=RA=+—H  EH
R B FRIE4V18,466,000/8 L i 1 — F 1&
Y[l o

RZEBE—=F=A=1+—B2Z2EWRE
RIEZ AR BEMHFT4519,322,0008
T ARBEDNIBREYREMTAZTS
FREBIBZIBERETE -

B E R
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R ARIBITIERAOARBEER KT
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits of approximately HK$11,336,000 as at 31
December 2013 were pledged to banks to secure certain
projects in relation to data processing and will be released
upon completion of services pursuant to the agreement.
The pledged deposits carried interest at market rates
which ranged from 0.001% to 1.98%.

Pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$20,057,000
as at 31 March 2013 represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
All bank deposits have been pledged to secure short-
term bank loans and are therefore classified as current
assets. The pledged deposits carried interest at fixed rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.25% per annum as at 31 March
2013 and have maturity period of three months on
average.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with maturity within three
months from initial inception. Bank balances carried
interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35%
(31 March 2013: 0.01% to 0.02%) per annum as at
31 December 2013.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

30.

31.

EEABRITER

R-ZE—=%+_-_A=+—8 " &
11,336,000 /8 LR SR 1T 1E SR IE 30 F 4R 17
NERETEIERIEER  UWREHS
R ZEREERR - B EBEFERIZ
MHFZE0.001%E1.98%: 8. °

R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—H " &
20,057,000/ TR | ER 1T 17 BB KR
FIRITUERAEBMENRITREN
R o FRARITERC ARIKFE R
NTYRAKBEBEAERBDEE - BHRBFERK
R-ZBE-—=%F=A=t+—BEKEEEF
ZNF0.01%E0.25%:1 8. - FHE=1E
AEIE -

RITEBHERE

IRITEREESEEAEEFENR S
N FF B =& A A2 2 2 HA SR 1T
TR RITEBKBR-_T—=F+-_A=
+—HZWHFEFE0.01%=E0.35%T &
(ZBE—=F=H=+—8 : 0.01%=
0.02%) °

TIRERNEER ZIEEINEZE
Bt ARTTRESRLRS ¢

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

—=—= —E—=%F

+=A=+—-~H =RA=t—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR THBT

HK$ BT 16,458 -
EURO BT 139 -
RMB AR - 7,851

As at 31 December 2013, balance and cash of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$72,006,000 (31 March 2013: HK$7,851,000). RMB
is not freely convertible into currencies. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

(For the nine m

(BEZE =5 A=+ —RiEAER)

W_TE—=F+_A=+—H  A&£H
MARBFEZZ#BRRA SN A
72,006,000 (—E—=F=f=+—
B : 7,851,000 7T) - ARKERA] B H
HAHMER o BB A A INE
EREPIREE SEMTESER
E - ASEEEESBETINEEFRIR
TREAREE SR BINE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. ESFRHMENKE
Details of the trade and other payables including the BREZENREREIONT2ESRE
ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date HENRIBZFIEREZZERAHSEN
are as follow: ™
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—_ZT—= —E—=%F
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Trade payables aged 5 RN RIBRER
Within 90 days 90K A 74,818 64,230
91 to 180 days 91E2180XK 9,262 17,611
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 21,518 1,244
Over 365 days 365K 21,382 1,783
126,980 84,868
Retention payables FET{RE 3KIB - 14,213
Other payables and accruals HMERRIE R EETER 60,466 24,044
187,446 123,125
The credit period granted by suppliers and sub- RZE—=F+-A=+—H ' #EQ
contractors is normally 90 to 180 days as at 31 December kA BEETFHEERBET A0E180K
2013 (31 March 2013: 30 to 60 days for the Disposed (ZE—=F=H=+—H : EHE#HK
Business). The Group has financial risk management 30Z60K) - NEEGIFE T RS E R
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled Eﬁ(ﬁu TEIRFT A MBS SRIB A M= B HRAE
within the credit time frame. BNEE -
As at 31 March 2013, retention payables of approximately EA —E-=F=HA=+—H " EARE
HK$12,163,000 was aged one year or below and the FIEAI12,163,0007% TLER#: & — F =k A
remaining balance of approximately HK$2,050,000 was T i & 472,050,000 LA R ER R &
aged over one year, of which none was past due. —FAE - EhBiEREFRIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

33. BORROWINGS 33. B&
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—Z=F —F—=
+=—A=+-—H —A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHT FH T
Current liabilities REEE
Secured bank loans and BHRBRITER R
overdraft (note a) #Ex (fista) - 105,352
Unsecured bank loans (note b) E I IRITE R (M 5ED) 37,669 -
Promissory note (note c) B2 (i sEe) - 342,324
37,669 447,676
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other unsecured loans (note d) H b EmEAE R (i Ed) 54,277 -

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 March 2013, all bank loans and overdrafts are
repayable within one year. As at 31 March 2013, bank
loans and overdrafts amounting to approximately
HK$105,352,000 (31 December 2013: nil) are secured
by the corporate guarantees issued by the Company
and are secured by charges over a structured deposit
classified as financial asset at fair value through profit
and loss amounting to approximately HK$4,940,000 (31
December 2013: nil) and bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$20,057,000 (31 December 2013: nil).
In additions, all bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$105,352,000 (31 December 2013: nil) are secured
by the proceeds on certain civil engineering contracts
as at 31 March 2013.

Bank loan and overdrafts carry interest at market rates
which range from 2.71% to 3.20% per annum as at 31
March 2013 (31 December 2013: nil).

The unsecured bank loans carry interest at variable
market rates at 120% of the RMB Benchmark Interest
Rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China and
repayable within one year as at 31 December 2013 (31
March 2013: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

On 17 June 2010, the Company issued a two-year
unsecured, non-interest bearing promissory note in
principal amount of HK$350,000,000 (the “Promissory
Note”) to acquire 100% interest in Central Asia Mineral
Exploration LLC (“Camex”). The maturity date of
Promissory Note was extended to 17 June 2013 on 28
March 2012, and further extended to 17 June 2014 on
25 June 2013. On 25 June 2018, the carrying value and
fair value of the Promissory Note were approximately
HK$350,000,000 and approximately HK$332,181,000
respectively, and resulting in a gain of approximately
HK$17,819,000 (31 March 2013: nil) (note 8).

The Promissory Note is subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method. An
imputed interest expense of approximately
HK$27,772,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
nine months ended 31 December 2013 (year ended 31
March 2013: HK$34,248,000) (note 9).

The Promissory Note with the interest accrued is off-set
in full against the consideration of the Disposal on
20 December 2013. Further details are set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other unsecured loans as at 31 December 2013 were
borrowings from two independent third parties not
related to the Group. Approximately HK$38,049,000
(equivalent to RMB30,000,000) is non-interest bearing
and approximately HK$20,039,000 (equivalent to
RMB15,800,000) is interest bearing with a floating
interest rate linked to the RMB Benchmark Interest Rate
quoted by the People’s Bank of China. The above other
unsecured loans were originally repayable 2013. During
the nine months ended 31 December 2013, such loans
were extended to be repayable in 2015.

The fair value of the non-interest bearing loans at the
date of extension is approximately HK$33,354,000
(equivalent to RMB26,528,000), resulting in a gain on
extension of non-interest bearing loan of approximately
HK$4,365,000 (equivalent to RMB3,471,000) during the
nine months ended 31 December 2013 (year ended 31
March 2013: nil) (note 8).

The other unsecured loans are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest method. An
imputed interest expense of approximately HK$587,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the nine months
ended 31 December 2013 (year ended 31 March 2013:
nil) (note 9).

188 [ PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X FEZER B R A

33. B8 @®)

W -

(©

(#&)

RZE—ZFXA+tER  KAQR)E
77784 %8 5350,000,000/% JT H) /R
B EER - B2 ANZERE ([EK
ZE |) LAY BE Central Asia Mineral
Exploration LLC ([Camex]) ) Ff7T & #E
meo AREEMNERBHAR - —=
FZA-ZF+NBHERE-Z—=FX
A++8 - W#E— TR B —=FKX
A-+HHERZE-ZFE—WF AT
+H RZE—=FA=-+FHH"
AAEBRNERERARED NG
350,000,000/ 7t &2 332,181,000/
JC - EEWEHI17,819,0008 T (=&
—=—F=ZA=+—8 : &) (ff:=Fs) -

AL RIBE R IR A BB R ROX R 3

KAFE BE_T—=F+"A=
T—HIEAEAR  REE®RIACDHEE

BRI #927,772,0008 7T (BE—-Z
—ZF=ZA=Z+—"HILFE
34,248,000%7t) (Bi5E9) o

WA BRI B AR REEES

—=F+=A= +EZ$%&F @
Y o E—PHBIANGRETERE
BaEa o

R-ZT— :¢+*H£+
EEBERRREWA $
%ﬁ%Zﬁi%:ﬁz%go
4738,049,0008 T (HHER AR
30,000,0007T) A% &M #J20,039,000
BT (FBE RN AR 15,800,0007T) B
PR ARBITATHRZ ARBEER R
Bz MRS - EHMEERE
RER-_E—=FEE HEE2_Z
—=ZF+-_A=+—BILtAEA %
EEFEEREEANR-_Z—HFE
;& o

s

T i )Iﬂi

B BERMNAAEREREAR
mﬁwsmpw%nxﬁ*ﬁAEM
26,528,0007T) * BRREBE=-_T—=
FE+-A=+—HILNWEATERE:
BE R4 54,365,000/ 7T (18
EMARES,471,0007T) (EHE-T—
%EEHE+*H¢¢§:§NW3
8 o

H K EREERE A BRI E
REERAE  c HE_E—=F1
“A=+—BItAEA Fﬁﬁﬁm
HEF B % #587,000/8 ¢ (B =
T—=F=ZA=+—HLtEFEE: ﬁ)
(BfF5E9)



33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had available bank
facilities of approximately HK$42,564,000 (31 March
2013: HK$245,382,000), out of which approximately
HK$4,895,000 (31 March 2013: HK$139,848,000) was

33. fEE (#)

RZE—=%+=ZA=+—8 ' ~&E
AR RAIRITRLE X /42,564,000 T
(ZE—Z=ZF=ZA=1+—8 : 245,382,000
HIT) » B 494,895,000 Tl A& &)

not utilised.

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

(ZZ—=%=H=+—H : 139,848,000
BIT) °

34. TEARERE

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—=F —F—=

+=—A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHE T

Convertible Note | (note a) AR ER (M Ta)
Liability component BEHS 518,146 514,179
Equity component BmE o 320,578 348,595
Derivative component PTHE T AFD (60,851) (57,755)
777,873 805,019

Convertible Note Il (note b) AT AR ZE AR (Y 5 D)
Liability component BEBS 194,420 -
Equity component S 51,591 -

Financial liabilities at fair FRBREANE
value through profit or loss PR B TS B A 109,773 -
355,784 -

Analysed for reporting purpose: REFENDWAE
Liability component BEHD 712,566 514,179
Equity component = E D 372,169 348,595
Derivative component PTETIAE D (60,851) (57,755)

Financial liabilities at fair BRBEREARE
value through profit or loss PIRM I A E 109,773 -
1,133,657 805,019

(For the nine m
(BE=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 17 June 2010 (the “Issue Date 1”), the Company
issued a five-year zero coupon convertible note in
principal amount of HK$954,100,000 (the “Convertible
Note 1”) to acquire 100% interest in Camex. The
Convertible Note | will be matured on 17 June 2015,
subject to an option of the holder of the Convertible Note
| (“Noteholder I”) to convert the whole or part of the
principal amount of the Convertible Note | into ordinary
shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$1.1
(adjusted from HK$0.22 per share as a result of the Share
Consolidation as defined and set out in note 37(a)) to
the consolidated financial statements at any time from
the issue date up to maturity date. The Convertible Note
| is non-redeemable prior to the maturity date. The
Company has the right to extend the maturity date in
respect of the outstanding amount of the Convertible
Note | for another five years (the “Derivative
Component”).

The Convertible Note | was stated at fair value on the
Issue Date | which amounted to approximately
HK$948,237,000. The Convertible Note | contains three
components — liability component, equity component
and the Derivative Component. The fair value of the
liability component of the Convertible Note | was
calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate based
on an equivalent market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond. The fair value of the equity
component and the Derivative Component were
determined based on the valuation carried out by Asset
Appraisals Limited, an independent professional valuer,
by using Binomial valuation model.

The Derivative Component is accounted for as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss under non-
current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The carrying values of the liability component, the equity
component and the Derivative Component of the
Convertible Note | recognised in the statement of
financial position are as follows:

34. TRREE @

B &E

(@)

(&)
(&)
R BIRARER I REREBIZE

BB - A MOTET AN Z
FREENT :

Liability component Equity component Derivative Component
BEHH RERH fETASR
31 December 31 March = 31 December 31 March - 31 December 31 March
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
—B-zf “E-=f —E-c=f “E-CfF ut: B3 “3-=F
t-A=t-B =A=t-A f=A=t-B =A=t-B t=A=t-A =A=1-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT AL Tin TinL Tin Tin
Carrying amounts RaE
At beginning of the year/period & /#1] 514,179 455,3% 348,595 348,595 (57,755) (63,734)
Imputed interest expenses  EE MK ()
(note | (note 9) (Mx9) 47,845 58,785 - - - -
Conversion of Convertible RATARER
Note | {note i (W) (43,878) - (28,017) - 2,949 -
Change in fair valu recognised 5\ R
in profit or loss (note i) A EE T (i) - - - - (6,045) 5979
At end of the period/year /%% 518,146 514,179 320,578 348,595 (60,851) (57,755)
Notes: =
0] The liability component is subsequently 0) BEBHERERAERIZX

measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method by applying an effective
interest rate of 12.91% (31 March 2013: 12.91%)
per annum. Imputed interest expense of
approximately HK$47,845,000 was recognised
in profit or loss for the nine months ended
31 December 2013 (for the year ended 31 March
2013: HK$58,785,000).

(i) 49,136,455 shares were issued upon conversion
of the Convertible Note | in total amount of
HK$54,050,100 for the nine months ended 31
December 2013. At the time of conversion, the
proportional amounts of the convertible note
equity reserve, the Derivative Component and the
carrying value of the liability component were
transferred to share capital and share premium
as proceeds for the shares issued (note 37(d)).
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(ii) HEZZT—=F+=ZA=1+—
BIENER - 49,136,455 1%
DA R E 54,050,100/ 7T
Z AN EIRIR 31T o AR
B AR E R =R 07
ST RN RBEPHZER
BEIR R ERA KRG &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMKHRRME
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

34. TTEREE »

Bzt : (&)

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

192

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

(i)

The Derivative Component is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. The Derivative Component is
carried as derivative financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The fair value of the Derivative Component of the
Convertible Note | was calculated using Black
Scholes model with the major inputs as follows:

(@)

(%)

(ii)

PTETABOEARERE
Ffﬁ’&ft BzE2BRINER®
R TTET RS DRSS
RARINRBITEM B EE

EHBRBEOMABELER
1k e

ABERBIZITET AN Z
RAERBRI R — SRR
AFtE - TEBAZBOT

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

= —ET—=%F

+=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$°000

F#ExT FET

Stock price A (B 0.29 0.249
Exercise price TEfE 1.100 1.100
Expected Volatility TR HRR R 41.86% 43.44%
Risk free rate f [ o N R 0.255% 0.193%

As the Black Scholes model requires the input

MAR e — EFEETRAFR

of highly subjective assumptions, change in AREXBEZBR - T8
subjective input assumptions can materially affect i AR R “@ﬁ—fﬂ’&ﬁ
the fair value estimate. Further details of the BEAFHEREATE - BE%
principal terms and conditions regarding the ﬂ—f?ﬁﬁx/%}filz}xﬂ%ﬁ&ﬂm
issue of the Convertible Note | have been set out B2 #E—FHBIHRER

in the circular of the Company dated 12 May HAEZZT-—TFRA+Z= EiZ
2010. B o

The fair value of the liability component of the RZE—=F+=ZA=+—
Convertible Note | at 31 December 2013 B ATBRREBIAGEHH 2

amounted to HK$524,973,031 (31 March 2013:
HK$507,046,298). The fair value is calculated
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on
an equivalent market interest rate for the similar
non-convertible note, which is 11.9% (31 March
2013: 13.6%).
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NH1EE524,973,0318 T
(Z2—=F=RA=+—8":
507,046,298 7T) ° A f
TEABOIERRZR 2 A
EMHFE 9% (ZE—=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

On 2 August 2013 (the “Issue Date II”), the Company
issued a five-year zero coupon convertible note in
principal amount of HK$1,250,000,000 (the “Convertible
Note II”) comprising a principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 in aggregate which is subject to
adjustment (the “Contingent Consideration”), to acquire
100% interest in Sinbo. The Convertible Note Il will be
matured on 2 August 2018, subject to an option of the
holder of the Convertible Note Il (“Noteholder II”) to
convert the whole or part of the principal amount of the
Convertible Note Il into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.25 at any time from the
issue date up to maturity date. The Convertible Note |l
is non-redeemable prior to the maturity date.

The Convertible Note Il comprises of three parts:

- a principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in
aggregate Tranche A Convertible Note Il which
is subject to adjustment.

- a principal amount of HK$870,000,000 in
aggregate Tranche A Convertible Note Il which
is not subject to adjustment.

- a principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in
aggregate of Tranche B Convertible Note Il which
is not subject to adjustment.

The Contingent Consideration will be adjusted in the
event that the audited consolidated net profit after tax
of Sinbo Group attributable to the owners of Sinbo for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “PAT”) is less
than HK$80,000,000, and the consideration shall be
adjusted by deducting the sum equivalent to the shortfall
between the PAT and HK$80,000,000 subject to a
maximum deduction of the sum of HK$80,000,000.

34. TRREE @

Bzt : (&)

(o)
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1,250,000,000/ /L2 AF T Z B 7]
B ([AHARZERI) - BiEASHE
4 #£80,000,0007 7t (A] F3A%) ([
ARED) KB E 2 25w © %
ABRRERIER - N\ENA=-H
B - ATAREREI 2 HE A (EEE
BAID EEEETAHREEREA
IEBERF 120,258 7T 2 K A (8 1§ AT Ha AR
ZRIZASEE IR MDA RELRA
Al EEAR - TR IR BIHA B Al
TRl EED o

AR RIS = EAR A
= ABERTHAIRERIZ NE A #E

80,000,000/8 7T (A] 7 %)

- ABRAHRBRERIZAEES
870,000,000/ 7T (N A] F A
B) -

& OH

— Bt AR Z 2 A& FEA
300,000,000/ 7T (NA] F LAF
) o

WREE-—Z—=F+=-A=1+—8
tFEHEREABGTESE 2K
BRI ERIBELR (TBREIRFEL
{£.7480,000,000/8 7T + I A] F LA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Tranche A Convertible Note Il with the principal
amount of HK$870,000,000 in aggregate which are not
subject to adjustment and the Tranche B Convertible
Note Il with the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in
aggregate are accounted for using split accounting as
the corresponding conversion option can be settled by
issuing a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments. They are initially recognised at fair value on
the Issue Date Il amounting to approximately
HK$923,758,000 which comprises liability component
with fair value on the Issue Date Il of approximately
HK$723,889,000 and equity component with fair value
on the Issue Date Il of approximately HK$199,869,000.
The fair value of the liability component was calculated
by Roma Appraisals using cash flows discounted at a
rate based on an equivalent market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The fair value of the
equity component was determined based on the
valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals by using option
pricing model.

The Convertible Note Il contains three components —
liability component, equity component and the
Contingent Consideration.

The Contingent Consideration is accounted for as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss under
non-current liabilities.

194 [ PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T~ Bl{ZiR B R A &

34. TTEREE »

Bzt : (&)

(o)

(%)

AR SR EERERETAR
AAFETEHEZBRATAMEN -
A& 84 H5870,000,000/8TTZA
ARSI (A TLARE) kA E
# £ ££73300,000,00078 7T 2 Bt ] #
BRERIDERADBEAAR - %%
ERERANBETRHIZAAEY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

(Continued)

The carrying values of the liability component, the equity

34. TRREE @

GEE

(o)

(&)
(%)

?‘Ef\ﬁﬁ‘%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂz—ﬁﬁﬂxKﬁHZE\

component and the Contingent Consideration of the EEH IO RKARBZER

Convertible Note Il recognised in the statement of BT :

financial position are as follows:

Liability component Equity component Contingent Consideration
EHH E&HH AARE
31 December 31 March = 31 December 31 March = 31 December 31 March
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
“E-CE —5-=f “E-CE —E--f —E-ck —E--f%
t2A=f-8 =A=f-R|t=A=f-B =A={-B [t=A=t-B =Azt-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TERT TiEn TR TEn TR TEn
Carrying amounts RaE
At beginning of the year/period £/ #4] - - - - - -
Addition at Issue Dae I RETEHIERE 723,889 - 199,869 - 48259 -
Imputed interest expenses TR ERIEFR
(note ) (note 9) GEIGE) 11,467 - - - - -
Conversion of Convertiole BATARZE
Note Il note i (W) (540,936) - (148,278) - - -
Change in fair valug recognised 4B E ﬁﬁ\z
in profit or loss (note i) DA BEE (ki) - - - - 61,514 -
At end of the periodyear /5% 194,420 - 51,591 - 109,773 -

Notes: Bt 3

0] The liability component is subsequently (i) BEINEEFEABRIEE
measured at amortised cost using effective RESER AR E - FTERAZE
interest method by applying an effective interest BRAFEFEE10.07% © [HE F
rate of 10.07% per annum. Imputed interest B X 4911,467,00078 JTLE R
expense of approximately HK$11,467,000 was  E T —=F+=—A=1+—
recognised in profit or loss for the nine months HIENBEAREZRER (BE
ended 31 December 2013 (for the year ended —E-=F=RA=+—HI#HF
31 March 2013: nil). g E) .

(i) 3,471,988,640 shares were issued upon conversion (ii) HEZT—=F+=-A=1+—
of the Convertible Note Il in total amount of EIJJ:?IJIH 3,471,988,6400%
approximately HK$867,997,000 for the nine months R e H#49867,997,000
ended 31 December 2013. At the time of conversion, ST AT AR IR IR BT o B
the proportional amounts of the convertible note W AR E RS
equity reserve, the equity component and the & XTI R A B 2R

carrying value of the liability component were
transferred to share capital and share premium as
proceeds for the shares issued (note 37(g)).

(For the nine
(BE—%
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nths ended 31 December 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMKHRRME
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

34. TTEREE »

Bzt : (&)

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) (Continued) (b) (&)

196

(i)

The Contingent Consideration is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. The Contingent Consideration is
carried as derivative financial liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position the
Tranche A Convertible Note Il is issued.

The fair value of the Contingent Consideration of
the Convertible Note Il was calculated using
Binomial valuation model with the major inputs
as follows:

(ii)

RARBRAAETE WA
REZEBHANIBEER - 3L
AREREE M BANEI
RITEM B A EARL AT RARR
RIESETT -

ABRBERBIKAREZAR
ERA-EAGEELASE
TEHGABREBEWT :

31 December

2013 Issue Date Il

—E—=fF
+=B=+-—H 1T HEN
Stock price A (B 0.029 0.315
Exercise price TEfE 0.250 0.250
Volatility ] 60.723% 62.544%
Risk free rate = 3 B I R 1.241% 1.251%

As the Binomial valuation model requires the
input of highly subjective assumptions, change
in subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate. Further details of
the principal terms and conditions regarding the
issue of the Convertible Note Il have been set
out in the circular of the Company dated 27 June
2018.

The fair value of the liability component of the
Convertible Note Il at 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately HK$199,693,000.
The fair value is calculated using cash flows
discounted at a rate based on an equivalent
market interest rate for the similar non-convertible
note, which is 9.43%.
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RRZIEAEERETRAS
ExBE2BR - EHEGA
HERE2EHIHA BN
TR ERNTE - BT
BRI 2 £ BIER R
ZHE—SF BN A AT A H
BRIE—=FXA=Z++tHZ

RZE—=H+-"A=+—
A T#RERIEESH
R A EHA199,693,0008
T e DA AT ERAELUIETR
IREE 2 R M5 51%9.43%
NIR&mEIRHETE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

35. DEFERRED INCOME

35. EEW A

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E-=F —E—=F
+=—A=+-—8H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Balance at beginning of the period/year R Hi,/ & 1) 7 #& &4 6,631 7,008
Additions through acquisition of F UM B 2 B N
subsidiaries 2,083 -
Deferred income utilised during HACSB A ZERRA
the period (830) -
Exchange realignment bE 3 52 (870) (377)
Balance at end of period/year RE TR 5% 7,014 6,631

A subsidiary in Mongolia received subsidies from the
government of Mongolia for financing the establishment
of a processing plant for smokeless fuel product. Since
the investment cost for constructing the processing plant
as well as the related government subsidies are still subject
to negotiation with the government, the received subsidies
are recognised as deferred income in non-current
liabilities.

Included in deferred income as at 31 December 2013 of
approximately HK$2,083,000 were additions through
acquisition of subsidiaries, which were designated for
certain research projects of the subsidiaries in PRC. Since
the conditions in respect of such government grants had
not yet been fulfilled, the amounts received have been
treated as deferred income.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013,
approximately HK$830,000 (year ended 31 March 2013:
nil) of deferred income were released upon the fulfillment
of the related conditions.

S —HRBARERABAR T —
MY NSERREENHE DN
THREHRES - AR ITHRERKREKA
fel 1N FE TE B AR BE BT 4 BY 2 B 15 B RS
%R - Eitt - ERBIOHEBISRIERE
BERRSETWA -

RZEBE—=F+_A=1+—HZEILEWK
ABHEEBRENBRARZAELN
2,083,000/ 7T * JiiEEARFEWE A
RIZATHRIEEL - ARZEBRSAHE
ZIEREARENK - MEEERESBHE
BIELWA o

REBEEZE—=F+-_A=+—HIA
@A - HEGMEKEMTERZEEY
A#)5830,0008 L (HE-_E—=F=
A=+—HLEE : T) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36. ELERIE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances T REEHBESRETBEERETZ
for financial information purposes: 2k il

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

—E—Z=F —E—=F

+=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE 4,010 -
Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE (115,254) (93,960)
Balance at end of period/year HER TR 2 (111,244) (93,960)
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36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBEBRERMTE
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 36. ELEFIE &)
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised in the REMBRARAERZIELERIE (B
consolidated statement of financial position and their E)BBERERFAZEBHUNT

movements during the year are as follows:

Fair value
adjustments
on exploration
and
evaluation Fair value
assets adjustment
and mining arising from
licences acquisition of
Accelerated BAR subsidiaries
tax HMEEEMR  Unrealised WHEHKEAT
depreciation ~ HEEEZ profits Efz Others Total
MERERE  ANEREE  AREUE  DAERE Hf GEl

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TATL TATL TAL

At 1 April 2012 R-Z-—FMmA-H 5,727 135,533 - - - 141,260
Credited to profit or loss HABER (2,652) (38,205) - - - (40,857)
Exchange realignment EREE 21) (6,422) - - - (6,443
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=%=8=1-H 3,054 90,906 - - - 93,960
Additions arising from KENMBAREEZRE

acquisition of subsidiaries - - (635) 482 (259) (312)
Fair value adjustment arising ~~ WENBLRAEL

from acquisition of subsidiaries 2 2\ 7 E A% - - - 82,646 - 82,646
Fliminated through disposal BRNENBARMEH

of subsidiary (4,151) - - - - (4,151)
Charge (credited) to profit or loss R EZ T (T A) 1,089 (43,360) 187 (5,633) (3.402) (51,119)
Exchange realignment AR 8 (10,432) - 645 (1) (9,780)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE-ZE+-f=1-R - 37,114 (348) 78,140 (3,662) 111,244

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 $$ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 36. ELEHIE (&)

In respect of tax losses arising in Mongolia of approximately
HK$27,805,000 (31 March 2013: HK$$22,569,000), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses arising
in Mongolia is subject to the agreement of the local tax
authority and shall be carried forward according to the
relevant provisions of Corporate Income Tax Law of Mongolia
under which the tax statement losses of Infrastructure and
Mining companies shall be deductible from taxable income
of subsequent four to eight years since the loss incurred.
The loss carry-forward period of a particular mining entity
shall be determined by the Mongolian government after
taking into consideration the investment made by the entity
in its mining operation.

In respect of tax losses arising in PRC of approximately
HK$1,983,000 (equivalent to RMB1,577,000) for the nine
months year ended 31 December 2013 (year ended 31
March 2013: nil), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets for tax loss arising in PRC of
approximately HK$10,077,000 (equivalent to
RMB7,945,000) (31 March 2013: nil). Included in the
unrecognised tax loss in PRC as at 31 December 2013,
approximately HK$8,365,000 (equivalent to
RMB6,665,000) was addition through acquisition of
subsidiaries (31 March 2013: nil).

In addition, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses arising in Macau of
approximately HK$2,357,000 as at 31 March 2013 (31
December 2013: nil) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses arising in Macau is subject to the
agreement of the local tax authority and shall be carried
forward to maximum three years since the loss incurred.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$84,843,000 as at 31 December
2013 (81 March 2013: nil), as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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MR EHEAE 2 BIIEEE 427,805,000
Br(ZE—=ZF=ZA=Z+—8:
22,569,000/ 7C) M5 * ARAKRAETRAR
KaARE - WASEEW EERELTR
BHEE REOBEMELEZMEEEAE
FEGHHEEHBHERERESHED
EMEHEAERGEEE  EEREX
ARz HEBBREAINEBEEEERNE
NERZ ERFUA R IR - FFEEE
EREBELEHERASOBEBUTEE
BRERBREREEERPIEZIRER
BT -

RREBE—ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1th
8 Az Bl ZEAE 2 BB E5 18 £91,983,000
BT (RE N AR 577,0007T) (BEZ
T—=F=ZA=+—HIFE:ZT)m
T ARKRETERRKZFIRE « A
EEVERREEHBEE -R_F—
=+ -A=+—H AEETERE
£ EaFEIMFEIEEEL10,077,000/ 7T
(HHERAAR®T 9450007T) (ZE—=
FZAZT—HB  D)RRELHEE
E-MN_E—Z=ZF+_A=+—HBk#
RZHPBEREEBERREBEBRENER
A1 & i K I8 498,365,000 7T (FE %
AK#6,665,0007T) (ZE—=F=H=
+—B8:F) -

BEAN - BRI M) A TR R - AR&E
BYEgR —_E—=F=A=1+—BR
BPEA 2 HIAEE 2,357,000 7T
(ZEBE—=FF+ZA=+—H: B)®ER
BETIREE - MRPIFMEA ZBIIRE
BEFEHB BT REKEE
ELXBREZ=FE -

BEFBECEMESRE  #ZTTNF
—A—Bi# P RMER R BRI &
FIFTER 2R EBHRTEMT - ARA
£ ERESIEH R = 58 2 B BB R -
WA B AV B RERABEPBENE
AREIRZTE—=F+ZA=+—HZRZR
51om ) FE 5 8 B Z B8 49 584,843,000
BT(CE—Z=F=F=+—8: T):
RIEEFIERME  MEREEETRET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. AR
Number of
Par value  ordinary shares Total
AfE EEREE et
HK$ HK$'000
BT AT
Authorised HE
At 1 April 2012 RZE—Z—FWA/—H 0.05 50,000,000,000 2,500,000
Share consolidation (note a) Br & b (i 7ta) N/A @A (40,000,000,000) -
At 31 March 2013, 1 April 2013 RZE—=%=F=+—H
and 31 December 2013 “T-=FpmA—H
k—E-—=F+-R=1— 0.25 10,000,000,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid BRTRAR
At 1 April 2012 RZE—Z—FWA—H 0.05 9,197,980,000 459,899
Share consolidation (note a) %104 B (Fi5ta) N/A T (7,358,384,000) -
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H
kZZE—=%MA—H 0.25 1,839,596,000 459,899
Shares issued under placing (note b) BB %17 2K (FiEb) 0.25 360,000,000 90,000
Exercise of share options (note c) L IGED) 0.25 61,580,000 15,395
Conversion of Convertible Note | REARRERI (T Ed)
(note d) 0.25 49,136,455 12,284
Conversion of Convertible Note Il RBARREE (e
(note ¢) 0.25 3,471,988,640 867,997
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=5+-A=+—H 0.25 5,782,301,095 1,445,575
Notes: BfsE -
(a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 19 (@) BER—ZE—Z=—F+—A+NLABBR

Z2—IHLERER  ROEFERE
WHRZZE—=—F+—A=ZTHEE
o BHEABARNBIRBEETRAR
BT/ AR T ARFIRE(EC.055 T
M@ A A —IRERAEE0.25
BILHE RS, ([RHED]) - ZkE
BiDAHE  ARREERBETK
B A% A5 Bl 824510,000,000,0008% K
1,839,596,000/% F X EI{H0.25/ 7L 2
AR ©

November 2012, a share consolidation was approved
with effect from 20 November 2012 in which every 5 of
the existing issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company were
consolidated into 1 consolidated share having a par value
of HK$0.25 per share (the “Share Consolidation”).
Immediately after the Share Consolidation, the authorised
and issued and fully paid share capital of the Company
comprised 10,000,000,000 and 1,839,596,000
consolidated shares of HK$0.25 each respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

202

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 15 May 2013, the Company completed a placing of
360,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.25
per share. Proceeds generated from the placing
amounted to HK$90,000,000 (before share issue
expenses of approximately HK$1,800,000). The net
proceeds of approximately HK$88,200,000 was
intended to be utilised as general working capital of the
Group. As a result of the placing, share capital has
increased by HK$90,000,000 and share premium has
decreased by HK$1,800,000.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013,
61,580,000 share options had been exercised by holders
at HK$0.25 each for the issuance of 61,580,000 shares.
As a result of the exercise of share options, cash and
cash equivalent, share capital and share premium have
increased by HK$15,395,000, HK$15,395,000 and
approximately HK$2,755,000 respectively and share
options reserve has decreased by approximately
HK$2,755,000.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the
Noteholder | converted Convertible Note | in aggregate
principal amount of HK$54,050,100 at the conversion
price of HK$1.1 per share whereby a respective total
number of 49,136,455 conversion shares were issued.
As a result of the conversion, share capital and share
premium account of the Company have increased by
approximately HK$12,284,000 and HK$56,662,000
respectively and the aggregate of which represents
proportional amounts of the equity component, the
Derivative Component and the liability component at the
time of conversion.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, the
Noteholder Il converted Convertible Note Il in aggregate
principal amount of HK$867,997,160 at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per share whereby a respective total
number of 3,471,988,640 conversion shares were
issued. As a result of the conversion, share capital of
the Company has increased by approximately
HK$867,997,000 and share premium of the Company
has decreased by approximately HK$178,783,000
respectively and the aggregate of which represents
proportional amounts of the equity component and the
liability component at the time of conversion.
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37. BA
BT -

(o)

(#&)

RZZE—=FFRF+HA  KAAR%T
iR & %0.257%8 T hd &360,000,000/%
RARFRG - RESHEELEZAE
FXIA £90,000,00078 7T (FRINK I 3
1TFISL 491,800,000/ 7T) ° FT{8 1A
S 5 #88,200,00078 T #t A E AR £
—MREBEES - ZLELHRAEMN
90,000,000/ 7t B% 1934 & BRIl >
1,800,000/ 7T °

REE-ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t
JLE A HRE - 8 ABRER0.255
JC1T1#61,580,00017 BE A% - LAJEEE
7761,580,0000% f% 19 - AR ITIE N
- RERBESEED - BRARKRD
BB 5 A IN15,395,000%8 7T
15,395,000/8 7T ;& #92,755,0007 7T *
i fe % 4 {5 8 IR 2> 492,755,000
F o

REBEE-ZT—=F+=-_A=+—H1t
JUEAEAR - ZRBE ARERA
BLZABERLREEARSE
54,050,100/ 702 AT AR 1K1 - 1t
£ B 3174 H£49,136,4550% 3 1 B%
e BRABEE  ARRBRARE
MR ERD 7 51 HN%Y 12,284,000
JT }256,662,000/8 7T + HAAFE AN ik
B R IR L DI s 2 s 2B - OTAET
ERHEEEBH 2R -

REBEE-E—=F+=-A=+—H1t
JUE A B - BHREE AIRER0.25
BILIZHBEBELIBRAEARSE
867,997,160 L 2 AT IR K1 - &
1% B 2174 $£8,471,088,6400% i 1
5 - ARBREEER - KR BIRALE
IN#1867,997,000% 7T+ AN R AL D
HEEER A #9178,783,0008 7T © H
BEARRERIR ISR 2 RS
DRAEPHZEE -



38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution of all the then
shareholders passed on 25 February 2006. The purpose
of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the eligible participants have made or
may make to the business development of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include (i) the
Company’s executive, non-executive or independent non-
executive directors or a director of an entity in which the
Group holds an interest (the “Affiliate”); (i) other employee
or officer of the Group or any Affiliate; (iii) customer,
supplier, agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder
of or contractor to the Group or any Affiliate; (iv) the trustee
of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include persons
under (i), (i) and (iii); and (v) a company beneficially owned
by any persons under (i), (i) and (iii). The principal terms
of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1) Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall
pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for
the grant.

2 The subscription price in respect of each share
under the Scheme shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares;
(i) the closing price of each share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer to the eligible participant, which must
be a day on which licensed banks are open for
business in Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange
is open for business for dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); and (iii) the average closing price
of each share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five consecutive
Trading Days immediately preceding the date of
offer to the eligible participant.

(3) An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during the
period which shall not be more than 10 years from
the business day on which the option is deemed
to have been granted. There is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

)

An option will lapse on expiry of the exercise period
of the option, on cessation of employment, or on
cessation to be customer, supplier, agent, partner,
consultant, adviser or shareholder of or contractor
to the Group or any Affiliate.

The maximum number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other
scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The Scheme
mandate limit may be refreshed by the shareholders
in general meeting from time to time provided
always that the Scheme mandate limit so refreshed
must not exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of approval of such
refreshment by the shareholders in general
meeting.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the
Scheme, the maximum number of the Company’s
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. Unless approved by the shareholders, the
maximum number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to any
eligible participants (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue from time to time.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on the date of adoption
of the Scheme, i.e. 25 February 2006.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.

Details of specific categories of options granted under

REMBRRME

T—=F+_A=+—HIN@EA

URGBHBER ZNRRES @)

REBEABREZBREZFERMFBE

the Scheme are as follows: R
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price Fair value at grant date
RHAH ERH s e REHBSAAE
Before After Before After
adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment
EEH HE% Eilg] Eiffd
(note)
(M)
25 August 2009 N/A 25 August 2009 to 31 August 2012 HK$0.385  HK$1.925  HKS0.144 HK$0.72
3 MR ZEENENAZTEA 03855 19%%T  0.144ET 0.72%T
NA-t+1A E2E-—EN\A=1-H
25 October 2010 25 Qctober 2010 to 24 April 2011 25 April 2011 to 24 October 2020 HK$O 171 HK30.855 HK$0.059 HK$0.295
“2-% “2-ZF+ACTRA ‘T——ﬁﬂﬂ 11A AT 0.855% T 0.059% T 0.205%87
+A-t%A E-E--FNAZ{EA E-ECEFTACTEA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2011 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2020 HKS0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.066 HK$0.328
“E-SETA-TIA ZE—5tAZTER 118 085587 0.086RT 082831
EZE——E+ATRA ECECTETACTRA
25 Qctober 2010 to 24 April 2012 25 April 2012 to 24 October 2020 HKS0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.071 HK$0.356
“E-SETA-TIA “Z-Z#@AZTHA 118 08558 0OTIATL 085631
E-E-"FPWACTRA E-ECTETACTEA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2012 25 October 2012 to 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.076 HK$0.381
“E-SETA-TIA :Z—ﬁﬂ% +1A 1B 0855ET 0076 0.381ET
E-E-“ETAZTEA E-ECTETACTEA
25 Qctober 2010 to 24 April 2013 25 April 2013 to 24 October 2020 HKS0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.081 HK$0.403
I S il —Z-=%#@A-1HA 1TIBT 08558 00B1AT 040831
E_F-ZEMACTRA E-ECTETACTEA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2013 25 October 2013 to 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HK$0.085 HK$0.424
ZE-2ETACTRA Z5-=EtAZTER ITIBL 085587 008581 0424371
ECE-CHETACTRA ECECTETACTEA
9 October 2012 N/A 9 October 2012 to 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25 HK$0.009 HK$0.045
“E-CE+ANE TEE “E2-—E+BABECECCETANR 0058 02581 000937  0045%T
9 October 2012 to 1 April 2013 2 April 2013 to 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25 HK$0.009 HK$0.045
-E- —HMH “%-Z4¥MmAZA 0.0587L 02581 000937  O0046%T
2F--ENA-H E-Z-CETANR
9 October 2012 to 1 QOctober 2013 2 October 2013 to 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25 HK$0.009 HK$0.046
“E-CEHAR Z3--E+AZH 0.0587 02581 000937  O0046%T
E- K——¢+ﬂ B ZIERCCETAN
Note: Upon the share consolidation becoming effective on MizE : ROEHRZZE—=F+—HA=1+H
20 November 2012, exercise price of share options has &g E%Hﬂ’?é ZIIEEBE FTIAA
been adjusted. Details of the adjustment of share options B BREABRZHFBRAAFHEH
have been disclosed in the announcement of the BZE——Ft+ALAZA BT
Company dated 9 October 2012. = o

[Furthe nine

(BEZZT =5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

206

Movements of the share options and their

38. URHBAERBZNRRS @

BRESBRESRMNEFST

weighted average exercise price fEE
Number of share options
BREZA
As at As at
1 April 31 December
2013 2013
Grantees Options grant date R-ZE-=% Granted Exercised Forfeited R-E-=%
ERA BRERERD MA—H B&EH B BEl +TZA=t-H
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
T Tk T Tk T
Directors 25 QOctober 2010 36,700 - - - 36,700
22 “Z2-ZETA-+hAE
9 October 2012 66,600 - (29,740) - 36,860
“E-_ETANA
108,300 - (29,740) - 783,560
Employees 25 October 2010 8,000 - - - 8,000
g8 “E-TETAC-TIHA
9 October 2012 22,960 - (17,440) (400) 5,120
“E-ZETANA
30,960 - (17,440) (400) 18,120
Suppliers of services 25 October 2010 13,000 - - - 13,000
or goods “Z-SF+A-+RA
REHEMLER 9 October 2012 18,000 - (14,400) - 3,600
ZE-ZFTANA
31,000 - (14,400) - 16,600
Total 165,260 - (61,580) (400) 103,280
@it
Exercisable at the end of
period 78,270
BRATE
Weighted average exercise
price (HK$ per share) 0.461 - 0.25 0.25 0.59

BRMEFHORE
(ET/H)

I PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T [E#2% 4& [R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 38. UBROBAERZNRRE @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Movements of the share options and their EBRESBHREASKRMETST
weighted average exercise price (Continued) 8 (&)
Number of share options
BREZA
As at As at
1 April 31 March
2012 Share 2013
Grantees Options grant date =~ R-Z-_%# Granted Exercised Forfeited consolidation RZZE—-=%
ERA BERERERD MA—H ERH BT 2RM B#pedt =A=1-8
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
Tk Tk T Tk Tk Tk
Directors 25 August 2009 2,600 - - (2,600) - -
% ZZENFNRZTRA
25 QOctober 2010 241,250 - - (67,750) (146,800) 36,700
ZZ-ZETACZTRA
9 October 2012 - 365,000 - (32,000) (266,400) 66,600
.......... SECSRTARR
..................... 243850 986000 - 2380 (18200 108300
Employees 25 August 2009 550 - - (550) - -
E& ZEENENAZTRA
25 October 2010 40,000 - - - (32,000) 8,000
“E2-F4TA-+hA
9 October 2012 - 115,000 - (200) (91,840) 22,960
.......... SECCETANR .
..................... 050 - Tmweooo - (0 (128840 - 30960
Suppliers of services 25 August 2009 600 - - (600) - -
or goods “ESNENAZTRA
RESERZLES 25 October 2010 65,000 - - - (52,000) 13,000
“F-TEtA-+ES
9 October 2012 - 90,000 - - (72,000) 18,000
.......... SECCETAMR
..................... 65600~ sef00 - - (6000 (124000 - 81,000
Total 350,000 570,000 - (93,700) (661,040) 165,260
L
Exercisable at the end of
year 68,400
FRATHR
Weighted average exercise
price (HKS per share) 0.173 0.050 - 0.138 N/A R A 0.461%
SHRMEFIIREE
(Br/B)
* Adjusted for the effect of Share Consolidation CRHERNEHZTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 38. URGOAERZFARRE @
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
570,000,000 share options were granted during the year HE_ZT—=F=-A=+—HILFEE
ended 31 March 2013 (nine months ended 31 December % H1570,000,000% FE AR #E (B2 =T —
2013: nil). ZEE+ZA=+—HILEAER: F) -
During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, REBZ-_T—=F+-"A=+—HIEA
400,000 unvested share options granted to employees @A - & T8 & 2 400,0000% K 57 & FE A%
(31 March 2013: 32,200,000 unvested share option and BE(ZZE—=Z=ZAHA=Z+—8H :
61,500,000 vested share option granted to director, 32,200,000 A BB #E K&
employees and suppliers) were forfeited. For the forfeiture 61,500,000k EFEBKRECS K TE
of the unvested share options, they are recorded as a = EERMEER BRI - KRGS
reversal to current year’s profit or loss account and for Rl RmE - BETIARY A
the forfeiture of vested share options during the year EIAFEZIEHE MABE-_ZT—=
ended 31 March 2013, the corresponding amount of FZA=ZFT—RHLFELRKE FBER
HK$1,636,000 was transferred from share option reserve ®mE 0 1,636,000t AESEETIB
to accumulated losses. ERERBEREREE -
The fair value of the share options granted to the directors BTEF EERSBHZBREAR
of the Company, employees and sub-contractors was EBENRERRLESIECEEZTAR
determined based on the fair value of the equity AREMEE REBRET>EEISHR
instruments measured on the date of grant. Share options BRERAEE —BERHEEEESMRE
granted to the sub-contractors are an incentive to them HEREZRBAELZER - X TE
for their continuing contribution to the Group for providing R e 2 AR A R B TR IR T iR
services similar to those rendered by its employees. The HIRBEzTEMERE -
fair value of the share options granted to the consultants
and suppliers was determined based on the market price
of the services provided.
The fair value of the share options granted were calculated EREZEREAABRRBMA IR — £
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model or Binomial RMETHAEEEENNE B HAETE
option pricing model. Detalils of the inputs to the model RAETHE - EXAWBAZRB B
are as follows: T
25 August 25 October 9 October
2009 2010 2012
—ENE —z-%F —g-—%
Inputs into the model EXWE AEE NB=+HH +A=+EHA +ARA
Exercise price 1T E HK$0.385 HK$0.171 HK$0.05
0.385/%8 7T 0.171%& 7T 0.05% 7T
Expected volatility 8 2R 8 87.04% to 102% 57.78% 51.22%
Expected life TE BREA PR 0.5 -2 year 4.8-7.2 years 7.5-7.6 years
0.5 - 2% 4.8-7.2%F 7.5-7.64F
Expected dividend vield TEHIRR B % 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free rate 42 [ B 1) == 0.16% -0.522% 2.0970% 0.7510%
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Expected volatility is determined by reference to the
historical volatility of weekly return for companies in the
same industry.

Risk-free interest rate represents the yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective terms
to maturity as at the valuation date.

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately
HK$983,000 for the period ended 31 December 2013
(year ended 31 March 2013: HK$4,252,000) in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

38.

URGBHBER ZNRRES @)

EHREL2REZEQARBEZSED
WM EE °

04 ) S 18 B BB B AN
ES B B EM K -

ANEEBRRBE_ZT—=F+=-A=1+
—H IEHMAR R B AR S T
KBEEH) 983,000 T (2= —=
“A=+—HBIFE : 4,252,000/
JL) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

39. RESERVES

(a)

Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which a dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the
aggregate share capital of subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange pursuant to the
reorganisation of the Group taken place before the
listing of Company on the Stock Exchange.

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the costs of investment in
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange
pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group taken
place before the listing of Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of
share options granted.

Capital redemption reserve represents the transfer
from retained profits of the amount equivalent to
the par value of the shares repurchased.

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, entities
established and operated in the PRC are required
to appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit (after
offsetting prior year losses) as determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

210 [ PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T EZR AR A 7
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 2 August 2013 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Group
acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Sinbo at fair
value of consideration of approximately
HK$1,222,017,000. Sinbo indirectly controls 81.15%
equity interests and voting right of Peace Map through
the Structural Agreements as disclosed in note 49(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements. This acquisition has
been accounted for using the purchase method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition
was approximately HK$660,415,000 as disclosed in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements. Sinbo Group
is engaged in GIS industry, which includes software
application, data processing and sales of cameras and
unmanned aerial vehicles. Sinbo was acquired so as to
enter the GIS industry by the Group.

mEMBEERME
T-=#t+=A=t—BIN@EA

40. WEKEBAR

R-TE—=FE N AR ([WERH]) -
NEBPAL1,222,017,0008 TR E 2 A
/L@Llézﬁ%%ﬁ% HEBITHRA - FTEE
R (WAR S B RS R 2R BT 5 49(ii)
%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ:ﬂ%Tl#w1w%h%
)SH T BINUWEE THE BB E A
cHWBEACZCEHBESELOAR
660,415,000,%7z(lzui ﬁﬁﬂ#&i‘%ﬁﬁ”}
20FTiRER) - HEEBNEHIEEE RS
EX @%@#ﬁg‘éﬁﬁ BIBERE NS
BEEREARE - TEEANEEWE
INE#EAMBEERREE -

Consideration transferred: BEAE
HK$’'000
FET
Cash Bée 250,000
Convertible Note Il issued BT RREREI 1,250,000
1,500,000
Fair value of consideration transferred: BEREZAAE:
HK$'000
FET
Cash fﬁ% 250,000
Fair value of financial liabilities at fair value =IE A ESIR
through profit or loss (note) EM‘%E (EPAANN =R iR=3) 48,259
Fair value of Convertible Note Il issued BETABEEERIZ ARLE 923,758
1,222,017

Note: The financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
is Contingent Consideration of the Tranche A Convertible
Note Il with principal amount of HK$80,000,000. If the
PAT of Sinbo Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 is less than HK$80,000,000, the consideration shall
be adjusted by deducting the sum equivalent to the
shortfall between the PAT and HK$80,000,000, subject
to a maximum deduction of the sum of HK$80,000,000.

Hiat - BRBREAREINRNABRES

ARERTIR IR = R0 2 7N 4 880,000,000
BILZHARE - WEE-T—=
+TZA=t+—HIEFEHBEEBZK
i 1% 7 B K 580,000,000/ 7T+ Bl
B AR R Fi 12 718 £280,000,000/%5
TZEBMAE  RZ AR
80,000,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. WIEKIE A E (@)
(Continued)
Fair value of consideration transferred HEKRKEZALE #)
(Continued)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately S REX 23,575,000/8 7T 2 W HE AR A AN
HK$3,575,000 have been excluded from the consideration EEMEEREINR  TRESEER
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in PERRSARZITHAX -

the current period, within the administrative expense line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised RUERHEWRBEERCER
at the date of acquisition are as follows: aEME

HK$’000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB NMEE 51,383
Other intangible assets HiEmEEE 612,489
Deferred tax assets EREBIBEE E 794
Inventories A= 14,776
Amounts due from customers of contract works JEREF & A TIERIE 83,901
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H fth fE W IR 237,883
Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder JE U FE I AR A% 3R IR 2,297
Loan receivable JEW & K 17,655
Tax recoverable B dErEE 349
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ERBERIEANBIRIMBEE 15,060
Pledged bank deposits EEMBRITER 11,114
Bank balance and cash RITEBREES 39,243
Trade and other payables 5 REMENFKIE (138,226)
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder JE AT I AR AR SR FIE (49,820)
Tax payables FET R IR (2,934)
Borrowings B (117,343)
Deferred income YA (2,083)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIARE (83,128)
Net assets acquired BWEBEEFE 693,410

212 I PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T B4 % A [ 2 &



40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. WEBKHE 2 (@)
(Continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised RUEBEHEWEEERCRR
at the date of acquisition are as follows: BEHNT &)
(Continued)
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date B o5 NkEMERZKIBRUE BB 2 AR
of acquisition amounted to approximately {E49/5237,883,000/8 7T - AUWEEH A -
HK$237,883,000. The gross contractual amounts of those ZEESNEMEWRIE Y A HRFEL
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to /249,775,000 7T o IRIZFUKEE B BRFT
approximately HK$249,775,000 at the date of acquisition. EfEME - BetEEKREB 2 &2
The best estimate at Acquisition Date of the contractual ME X A11,892,0007%8 7T ©
cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to
approximately HK$11,892,000.
The fair values of amount due from a non-controlling FEUY — 2 FEFE AR AR R AR TE M B W B R
shareholder and loan receivable at the Acquisition Date WHEBH s AR BEREBEES @ D5
approximate their gross amounts which amounted to #97%2,297,0007% 7T, 2 17,655,000/ 7T °
approximately HK$2,297,000 and HK$17,655,000 ZERWFIEHRERE - BHAKEZ
respectively. None of these receivables are impaired and it is HEeres -
expected that the full contractual amounts could be collected.
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WBREECHE
HK$’000
FET
Consideration transferred RE#EZ 1,222,017
Plus: non-controlling interests o SERERR AR 131,808
Less: net assets acquired o BB EEFE (693,410)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 20) Wi E A 2 8 ([5E20) 660,415

The non-controlling interests in subsidiaries of Sinbo
recognised at the Acquisition Date were measured by
reference to the proportionate share of net assets acquired
of the non-controlling interests and amounted to
approximately HK$131,808,000.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Sinbo because the
cost of the combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
future market development of Sinbo Group. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

(For the nine m
( =

U B RN B 2 R o
DB2ERECWEIFERERZEEF
BE5tE - 49131,808,000/ T °

HREHRAE SRR E - SR
BHERELRE - U ENAHR
BEERB2EEFESEARAKRTHRR
a2 TRIB o BRI AR A 7 BRI &Y
BEZHERIEE WSl EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

40. WEKB AR @

WEEEZ2EHE : (@

B S W3R BB TR HBE
B AT SR, o

Goodwill arising on acquisition: (Continued)

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Sinbo: WEHE 2RSSR FEE
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration paid BNRERE 250,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired i : CWHE 2R MRS EBWET (39,243)
210,757

Included in the profit for the period is approximately
HK$65,673,000 attributable to the additional business
generated by Sinbo Group. Revenue for the period

MEEEELE B ER RS EBEFE
2@7%65 673,000 7T - HHRW A BIEH
=& ETE A 149210,089,0005 7T ©

includes approximately HK$210,089,000 generated from
Sinbo Group.

WEBUWBER _ZT—=F—HF—HB5%
K EERERESLER 2 FEBRA
1 541356,461,000/8 7T © FEEEE AL
212,010,000/ 7T ° 1%%%5%41%1 f‘féﬁﬂz

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2013,
total group revenue from continuing operations for the
year would have been approximately HK$356,461,000,
and loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$212,010,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative A WEARERSKEEN_E—=F
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of —A—AEKMERSE HjZ%ﬂMﬁZm&%
revenue and results of operations of the Group that BIEE - MIERKEE 2TEA -
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition

been completed on 1 January 2013, nor is it intended to

be a projection of future results.

EEEAREBRMIHENRAFEEIC
BWE HZIWEREF - EFE

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Sinbo been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the directors have:

L calculated depreciation of plant and equipment = HEWEmE RSB ITE -
acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in %/‘%E%ﬁ%é@rzm HEHEL
the initial accounting for the business combination Z A ME - I FEULEE B B 7S R
rather than the carrying amounts recognised in the KERZREE &
pre-acquisition financial statements; and

- determined borrowing costs based on the funding -  REAKE l REKEHEZES
levels, credit ratings and debt/equity position of the 7K ¥ B RRER,BAEK
Group after the business combination. T EEEEKR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBEBRERMTE
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. HEMB A A

As referred to in note 12 to the consolidated financial ZZDi"H/\Hﬁ%iﬁi%WE\EQFﬁL REBR
statements, on 20 December 2013, the Group disposed —E—=ZF+=ZHZ= ‘I‘ HLAZRELD
of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Rich Path, and its 352,276,000/ T EE 2 ﬁf‘ﬁ%ﬂﬁj%ﬁ
subsidiaries for a total consideration of approximately EREWNBEAT - BENREAEBEH
HK$352,276,000. The consideration shall be payable by e P rﬁﬂigﬁl"ﬁﬁ@HEKE
the way of set-off in full against the outstanding principal —,—?J% MEREERTIEELEARARA
amount of the Promissory Note together with any interest RIERK B BiE R B 75 2 AT A %ZET
accruing thereon form time to time under the Promissory FTUAZR - MR EEBRACEEFRE
Note and the shareholder’s loan owing by the Company R

to the purchaser as at completion date. The net assets of
Rich Path at the date of disposal were as follows:

Consideration received: 2 WRME :
HK$’000
FHE T
Cash consideration received BlIRERE -
Transfer of Promissory Note AN RIg 352,276
Assignment of shareholder’s loan HZERRENR (194,247)
158,029
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEEFIECEEHA B
control was lost:
HK$’000
T
Property, plant and equipment W - BB NEE 43,103
Prepaid land lease payments A L E KA 137
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss BEARBEBRERINECUBEE 4,940
Inventories FE 88,320
Amounts due from customers of contract works ERERFAEHTIERIE 124,029
Trade and other receivables H5 Kk E ARG 199,469
Tax recoverable AT Y [E B 1R 77
Pledged bank deposit BIERITE R 20,070
Bank balance and cash IRITHEB LIRS 93,182
Shareholder’s loan R E (194,247)
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMENFKIE (113,344)
Borrowings BE (82,827)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBTIEAE (4,151)
Net assets disposed of BHECEEFHAE 179,458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4. HEHRBRATE @

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMBARIZEE :
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration received and receivable 2R R AE 158,029
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR e 54
Cumulative exchange differences in respect EBARE—EWEB AR ZZ R
of the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified E BaENHoBEEER B
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control RAEEFE RFTELZRE
of the subsidiary 1,188
Net assets disposed of EREZEEFE (179,458)
Loss on disposal HE BB (20,187)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEREEZRESRLFE
HK$’000
FAEL
Cash consideration RERE -
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BHREZRITESRLES (93,182)
(93,182)
The impact of Rich Path and its subsidiaries on the WERANB AR EAEEAREME KA
Group’s results and cash flows in the current and prior THRE - XERRESREERGEUH
periods is disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial RMERMIFEI2RHFE -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

42. COMMITMENTS 42, HEHE
Operating lease commitments REHEERE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental payable under BEFEI W REF A BEHL=HE MR
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and BENzxERESBELT

buildings was as follows:

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E-=F —E—=F
+=ZA=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHx FHT
Within one year —FRK 2,612 6,580
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ B -FEFHERHF
(BIEEREMSF) 1,012 4,778
3,624 11,358
The Group leases certain properties under operating AEBRBELSEMERES TYE - %
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to three EHENST AP —Z2=F(CT—=F=
years (31 March 2013: two to three years), with an option A=Z+—H WME=F) ' WAIHARE
to renew the leases and renegotiate the terms at the expiry AEREEHERENERKRRK - %F
date. The leases do not include any contingent rentals. HEY T SEMKAES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

42. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42. EIE @)
Capital expenditure commitment BB AT
At the end of the reporting periods, the Group had the RMER - XEEBFUTEARHKIE :

following capital commitments:

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—= —E—=%F
+=H=+—8H —A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Authorised but not contracted for BEBERETLY - -
Contracted for but not provided for ERTHE R B
— in respect of properties — BB 4,426 -
— in respect of plant and equipment — BEERE N 475 -
4,901 -
43. GUARANTEES 43. ER
As at the end of the reporting periods, the Company RMERR » RARER 2 E AR HE
issued the following significant financial guarantees: RAAT -
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E-=F% —F—=
+=H=+—8H —A=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Guarantees in respect of: LATIEE 2R
Credit facilities granted by banks RITETETHB AR
to certain subsidiaries ZIEE®RE - 105,352
Performance bonds issued by banks — #R17E — /& 2 A
to a subsidiary’s customer ZEPBELY ZBHRE - 181
- 105,533
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43. GUARANTEES (Continued) 43. BR @
The Company, together with certain of its subsidiaries, RARERAEE THEB AR MBRITIED
issued cross guarantees to bankers as part of the security RXER 1EER=ZE—=F=H=+
for credit facilities granted to the subsidiaries as at 31 —HARMNBARRLEERE < 2BMHE
March 2013 and subsequently release following the - WHAREE & 1% T ABRRR ©
Disposal.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the financial ARFIEERARME LA EERTE
impact arising from providing the above financial B ENTER - Bt LM%
guarantee is immaterial and accordingly, they are not BRI EFAZSTBRE
accounted for in these financial statements.
44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEFIXRS
() Transactions with related companies () EHBEERATIZXRS
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—= —E—=%F
+=B=+-—8 =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Rental expenses for office THFERERA
premises paid to Grand Z#ﬂ#/‘ﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁi (M 3%)
Media Limited (note) 709 984
Interest expense to Grand XN TERBRAA
Media Limited (note) Z BRI (i) - 24
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44. BERIRZ &)

(Continued)

() Transactions with related companies () EHEHBEQIARZRS (&)
(Continued)
Note: Mz -
The former executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen ARARRERITESRMALE - R
Chow Ming, Mr. Yuen Wai Keung and Mr. So Yiu Cheung, FEREERGRFELTERERABRA
have equity interests of 34%, 33% and 33% respectively ADRIHEAES4% ~ 33% K 33% 2 i%
in Grand Media Limited. & o

(i) Key management personnel i) FEEEBAE
Included in staff costs is key management ETRABREATSHEZETES
personnel compensation which comprises the BABRIE :

following categories:

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—EB—=F —F—=
+=A=+—A~ =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Salaries, allowances e EMEEYEF
and benefits in kind 5,875 10,428
Equity-settled share-based VAR 25 46 5 30 LARR 10 2 1
compensation ZfH1E 519 1,254
Retirement benefits scheme R FFT B
contributions 34 102
6,428 11,784
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and to
support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio, i.e. net debt to equity. Net debt includes
borrowings, convertible notes and amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders less bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares as it sees fit and
appropriate. No change was made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the nine
months ended 31 December 2013 and the year ended
31 March 2013.

45.

EAXER

AEBZEAER BERRENEERE
FERE  NmABRRRERD®R - R
REEMMDEERE MG YHERFR
EZERRBABBEERKA - LAN#E
RAKEZREMER -

AEBRERBBH R ZELEEIZHE
RIRHE - LR T RFER R A s 5T
g FEBEERR  THRERESNE
SRR A AR SR BUER T A AR S 3R 2 B
EEFRITER - BEFIABREAR
B WAR/BENEE  AREXEH
EIRN FRERZ BB REITHAD - R
BE_T—=Ft+-A=t—HLAME
ARBE_ZT—=F=A=+—HIF
BEA - AEEMEEEEANEEH
% BURSARFF ©

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—=£ —EF—=

+=A=+—H =A=+—8”

HK$°000 HK$’ 000

FET FHET

Debt &% 843,604 961,855
Less: bank balances and cash o RTTHERR IR H

and pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITER (86,456) (311,511)

Net debt FE 757,148 650,344

Capital represented by total equity BN EREEH 785,101 32,617

Gearing ratio BERBEE 96% 1,994%
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e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. 2@ T A
(@) Categories of financial instruments (@ ==@MIAER
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—_g—= —_Fg—=
+=A=+—H =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Financial assets BREE
Financial assets at fair value BERBmEAEIE
through profit or loss LG EE
- Financial asset at fair value — BREZEARBEYER
through profit or loss 2B EE - 4,940
— Derivative financial assets — TENBEE 60,851 57,755
Loan and receivables (including &k & & W 3018
bank balances and cash (BREFETESRERS
and pledged bank deposits) BB KR ERITER) 241,601 470,179
302,452 532,874
Financial liabilities HKaE
Financial liabilities LEEN AR 2 BEaE
at amortised cost 1,030,000 1,084,980
Financial liabilities at fair value  FiBEFHIL A 7 EFIER
through profit or loss 2K asE 109,773 -
1,139,773 1,084,980
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. €I A »®
(b) Financial results by financial (b) BREMIEZIZBKES
instruments
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E-=F —F—=
+=ZA=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
From Continuing operations REFELEET
Income/(expense) CRTAEMKA (FAX)
and gains/(losses) iz (BE)

on financial instruments:

Interest income/(expenses) on: A FNEEZFBUA, (F)

- Loans and receivables — B R ERFRIE 410 761
- Financial liabilities — B AR
at amortised cost 2B EaE (89,731) (93,033)

Fair value gain (loss) on the AR EBRITET AN

Derivative Component Z A B (E18)

of the Convertible Note 6,045 (5,979)
Gain on extension of non-interest & & Nt B2 & 1) Uk 55

bearing borrowings 4,365 -
Gain arising from extension ERAERES 2 W=

of Promissory Note 17,819 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F &
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mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
derivative financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loan receivable, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders, pledged bank deposits, bank
balance and cash, trade and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
borrowings, financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, and convertible notes. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Financial risk management
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rate. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk mainly
arises from bank balance, pledged bank balance,
loan receivable and borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating-rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of RMB
Benchmark Interest Rate arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated borrowings.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity to interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank balance, loan receivable, borrowings and
obligations under finance leases at the end of the
reporting periods.

If interest rates had been 50 (31 March 2013: 50)
basis points higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$221,000 for the nine months ended 31
December 2013 (year ended 31 March 2013:
HK$1,031,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank balances and secured bank borrowings.

Currency risk
The Group has certain portion of bank balances

denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

46. £RIT A @)

(d)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

226

(d)

46. £RIT A (#)

Financial risk management (Continued) (d) HERRER &)
Currency risk (Continued) B R (&)
Sensitivity analysis BB T
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TREIAEEEHBEBNEEK
to a 5% (31 March 2013: 5%) increase and HEBINE EARTBRES (ZF
decrease in functional currency against the relevant —=ZF=ZHA=+—"8H :5%) 28
foreign currencies. A 5% (31 March 2013: 5%) is REFHIE 5% (ZE—=F=H
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign =+—H :5%) JIRAETEERA
currency risk internally to key management B N E 2 RN R B B BR A 2 8K
personnel and represents management’s RELLE  WRKREEEEHING
assessment of the reasonably possible change in (ERATRESIBEB) 2 F1H - S
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis EDMERBUINETEZ K
includes only outstanding foreign currency SHHEBIEER  WRIHEHRIA
denominated monetary items and adjusts their INESTE R EF5% (ZE—=F =
translation at the end of the reporting period for a B=Z+—H8 1 5%) fEFEEXFAE -
5% (31 March 2013: 5%) change in foreign TIz FERMRBE L EEEK
currency rates. A positive number below indicates AESN (—E—=F=A=+—
an increase in post-tax profit where HK$ strengthen H:5%) K - B@HERN I
5% (31 March 2013: 5%) against the relevant me BEHEBEKIEESR (=
currency. For a 5% (31 March 2013: 5%) weakening E-=F=A=+—H :5%)
of HK$ against the relevant currency, there would W+ ¥ Bm M A3 A S E R AR
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and RE2E  BUATHESBRERAR -
the balances below would be negative.
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—EB—=F —F—=
+=A=+-—A8 =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
HKS BT 823 -
EURO & T 7 -
Price risk (XA

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or
futures cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The equity-linked deposit
investment exposes the Group to price risk.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price risk at
the end of the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective securities had been
10% (31 March 2013: 10%) higher/lower, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial asset and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss would decrease/increase
(31 March 2013: increase/decrease) by
approximately HK$4,085,000 in aggregate
(31 March 2013: HK$5,235,000 in aggregate) for
the Group as a result of the changes in fair value of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, derivative financial asset and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss for the nine
months ended 31 December 2013.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.

46. £RIT A @)

(d)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, other receivables
and loan receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on each individual receivable
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history
of making payments when due and current liability
to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the counterparties
operate. The Group mitigates its exposure to risk
relating to trade receivables by dealing with
selected government agencies with sound financial
standing. In addition, the Group and the Company
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable balance at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts
due from a shareholder, the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from default of the counter parties
are limited as the counter parties have sufficient
net assets to repay its debts and a good history of
repayment. The Group does not expect to incur a
significant loss for uncollected amounts due from
these non-controlling shareholders.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 10%
(31 March 2013: 96%) and 39% (31 March 2013:
100%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers as at 31 December 2013 respectively.

The credit risk for bank balances and pledged bank
deposit are considered minimal as such amounts
are placed in banks with high credit ratings.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

mEMBEERME
T-=#t+=A=t—BIN@EA

46. £RIT A @)

Financial risk management (Continued) (d) HHXRBRER &)
Liquidity risk MEE T A
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will nBEERBENEERERET
not be able to meet its obligations associated with HARIR G sk BB 15 & E 45
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering BEUBeERB s T AR °
cash or another financial asset. The Group’s policy AEBEHEATEHERER
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and BESFERNMEBETFTEEROZE
its compliance with lending covenants in order to o AERANEEEFARRE
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate #E - ARRETZSRIEIBES
committed lines of funding from major financial RAARFETAREERBNE
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the HrREEeFEK -
short and long term.
The liquidity policies have been followed by the AEEEBEFE AR —EHN
Group since prior years and are considered to have MEBESHR BZFEBREE
been effective in managing liquidity risk. BRESRBRLIED R
The table below analyses the remaining contractual TRIIRBEARAAEE KRR
maturities of the Group’s and the Company’s NEZ G EE TIMBEERT 4R
financial liabilities at the reporting date which are ?ﬁﬁéfﬁi\iﬁ%&$% SN
determined based on contractual undiscounted AR NRzxFAEMmE
cash flows and the earliest date the Group and the E) ZHBRTEHREB DT
Company may be required to pay:
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BAARTERSRE
Within
Weighted 1 year or Between Between
average Carrying  on demand 1and2 2and5
interest rate amount  —FRF years years
METFHRE REE BEXEE 1228 2%5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAL FAL FAL
The Group iy
As at 31 December 2013 RZB-=£+-A=t1-H
Interest-bearing bank M ERTEE (ke
borrowings (note a) \ 7.2% 37,669 38,861 - -
Interest-bearing other MELMEE (i)
loans (note a) ‘ 6% 20,039 - 22,318 -
Non-interest bearing other loans KM BHMEE 6.2% 34,238 - 38,049 -
Trade payables EHRME - 126,980 126,980 - -
Other payables and accruals AENFERESER - 59,416 59,416 - -
Amount due to a non-controlling e — & R
shareholders KRR - 39,092 39,092 - -
Non-interest bearing Convertiole %81 A=
Note - liability component - B&E#HH (o)
(note b) 10.07%-12.91% o 712.,5.66. T .61.8,4.50. o 3.02.,0(?3 .
1,030,000 264,349 678,817 302,003

[Furthe nine mo
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d)

46. €I A &
(d) MEERERRERE &)
//|L@J ,éf ﬂi

Financial risk management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) i (48)

Contractual undiscounted cash flow

EHEES Rk -
Within
Weighted 1 year or Between Between
average Carrying  on demand 1and 2 2and 5
interest rate amount  —ERE years years
MEFLGF = REE EEXREER 122% 255
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TAR
As at 31 March 2013 R-2-Z¥ZA=1-H
Interest-bearing bank M ERTEE (ke
borrowings (note a) 71%-3.2% 105,352 105,507 - -
Trade payables EHRME - 84,868 84,868 - -
Retention payables ERRBHE - 14,213 14,213 - -
Other payables and accruals AERTERESER - 24,044 24,044 - -
Non-interest bearing GERARE
Promissory Note 1.12% 342,324 350,000 - -
Non-interest bearing Convertble £ 5B ER - aE%H
Note - liability component (Fis3kb)
(note b) 12.91% 514,179 - - 672,500
1,084,980 578,632 - 672,500
Notes Bt 5T
(a) The interest on borrowings is calculated based (a) KT REBBEEZERBH -
on the amount of borrowings outstanding as at BEMEDRER-_Z—=F
31 December 2013 and 31 March 2013 at the TZA=t+—HBRZZE—=%
respective interest rates, taking into account the A=+ —HHEREEZEE
repayment dates of the respective borrowings. TRHRESBZHMEHE -
(b) For the liquidity analysis, it is assumed that the (o) RRBEESTME @ JIERK
Extension Option of Convertible Note | will not ERBE NG ISITE AR

SR ER 2 SE R HHE -

be exercised by the note holder.

As assessed by the directors of the Company, it
was not probable that the subsidiaries would
default the repayment of the bank borrowings.
In addition, it was not probable that the banks
would claim the Company for losses in respect
of the guarantee contracts due to security in
place for the bank borrowings. Accordingly, no
provision for the Company’s obligations under
the guarantees has been made.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

(e) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

U

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group'’s financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

46. £RIT A @)

() EMIRZAREE

) AEBREEEELE
ARREEZHT
BENMVBREZRA
718

REFEHR - AKEET
MBEERVBRERA
REFE - TREIEH
ZEVHEERMBAR
ZAREWAEEE CLER
PiT 58 PR B fif (B 5 1l B B A
BUB) 2 EF -

Fair value as at
Financial assets/ 31 December 2013 Fair value
financial liabilities RZE-=F hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
BHEE/ HRAE TZA=+-RARE MAEER HERGRIEZAABE
Derivative financial asset - Assets - HK$60,851,000  Level 2 Black Scholes Model was used to capture the present value
Derivative Component BE - 608510008  EZER of the expected future economic benefits that will flow in
of the Convertible Note | of the Group arising from the derivative Component
TERKEE - TAREE of the Convertible Note |, based on an appropriate
ZITETERR discount rate that reflect the risk of the counterparties (note 34)

Liabilities - HK$109,773,000 Level 2
BfE - 109,773,0008T E-ER

Financial liabilties at fair
value through profit or loss

BRLERERTR
LHBEE

ERRIR-SRAEASARETRRYT BB EEHAE
A8 NERETARRRITE AR ELARRALEE
LEARREEN 2 RE (53d) -

Discounted cash flow method was used to capture the present value
of the expected future economic benefits that will flow out
of the Group arising from the contingent consideration, based
on an appropriate discount rate that reflect the risk
of the counterparties (note 34).
FRESRERELEERBIRBREF IR BENRE
FEUERAIARBEEARBASENL ZBBAAR
BENGRE () «

There were no transfers between Level 1 and
2 in the period.

UL BRI SE — R EE —
REVE AR B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. £RIT A %)

(e) Fair value measurements of financial e) EMIAZAARETE &)

instruments (Continued) \ ‘
() AEEREEMHELE

()  Fair value of the Group’s financial RRAREFEZTE
assets and financial liabilities that are BEMMBEEZR
measured at fair value on a recurring INERG-))

basis (Continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within MBEEESBEREEME
which the financial asset or liability is BAZRAAREBERBEANZE
categorised in its entirety is based on the Ko BRERERAEFE
lowest level of input that is significant to the BEEEAERNHEREXR
fair value measurement. The financial assets ZEABE  AEBEKRK
of the Group and the Company at fair value RNARMBARAERERAAR
in the statement of financial position are B ECUBREENDER
grouped into fair value hierarchy as follows: THRRERER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-BR EZER EZER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR TR TR
31 December 2013 ZE-=f4+ZB=t-H

Derivative financial assets ~ #74BBAE
- Derivative Component ~ — TABRZE 2T AT AL H

of the Convertible Note - 60,851 - 60,851
Financial liabllities at far ~ FBBHELN 4 BEI
value through profit or loss 2 I & & & - (109,773) - (109,773)
- (48,922) - (48,922)
31 March 2013 ZE-=F=f=1-H
Financial assets at fair PRERRLAEZHKEE

value through profit or loss
- Equity-inked deposit ~ — IREHBEH - 4,940 - 4,940
Derlvative financlal assets ~ #T £ H B EE
- Derivative Component ~ — TRRER ZFTETEHH
of the Convertible Note - 57,755 - 57,755
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. £RIT A @)

(e) Fair value measurements of financial (e) &WMIAZAAREGTE #E)
instruments (Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) WIFREEMEEL
assets and financial liabilities that are NAEFTEZARSE
not measured at fair value on a VBEERYKEAR
recurring basis ZAnE
Except for those set out in other notes to Bréx G B IS sk R E An b A
the consolidated financial statements, the Fraim & LASN - RRAE
directors of the Company consider that the ERE - REHEKNARER
carrying amounts of financial assets and EMBHRINE 2T BFE
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost EXMBEEEZRAER
in the consolidated financial statements HAnERSE  LIhHER
approximate to their fair values due to their HEBREEATE -

short-term maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

47. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(a)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013,
a borrower of loan receivable provided services to
the Group with trade payable of approximately
HK$15,220,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000) as
at 31 December 2013. After negotiation with the
borrower, the Group signed a debt offset
agreement with the borrower pursuit to which the
Group and the borrower agreed to partially set off
the loan receivable of approximately HK$8,949,000
(equivalent to RMB7,056,000) and the other
receivables of approximately HK$6,271,000
(equivalent to RMB4,944,000) against the trade
payable (note 29).

On 2 August 2013, the Group acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of Sinbo at fair value of
consideration of approximately HK$1,222,017,000.
The consideration was settled by issue of
Convertible Note Il of approximately
HK$923,758,000, fair value of Contingent
Consideration of approximately HK$48,259,000
and cash of HK$250,000,000. (note 40)

On 20 December 2013, the Group disposed of its
subsidiary, Rich Path, for a total consideration of
HK$352,276,000, which is set-off in full against the
outstanding principal amount of the Promissory
Note together with any interest accruing thereon
form time to time under the Promissory Note and
shareholder’s loan owing by the Company to the
purchaser. (note 41)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013,
the Noteholder | converted Convertible Note | in
aggregate principal amount of HK$54,050,100 at
the conversion price of HK$1.1 per share whereby
a respective total number of 49,136,455 conversion
shares were issued. As a result of the conversion,
share capital and share premium account of the
Company have increased by approximately
HK$12,284,000 and HK$56,662,000 respectively and
the aggregate of which represents proportional
amounts of the equity component, the Derivative
Component and the liability component at the time
of conversion. (note 37(d))
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47.

EXRFRERS

(a)

HE—_T—=F+=-_A=+—8
HFAEAR  BREZRZEEA
MAEERERS  FTELEES
EBNARER-_ZE—=F+=-A=
+— B #)415,220,000/% 7T (}8%
A ARE12,000,0007T) © EEE
ABEE  AEEEEEARE
T—HEBERERE B
SEHEEEARZBEKEZRL
8,949,000 L (FHE R AR
7,056,0007T) & H th fE S FRIE 49
6,271,000 L (FHE R AR
4,944,0007T) B EIHE 5 e
A (F3E29) °

RZE—=FNAZH ~5E
WEHE 2 2B BITRA - &
REARBELAE1,222,017,000
TG o ZREFEBBEITAIRKRERI
#7923,758,000/8 7T * SKAKREBA
A E#48,259,0008 T IR &
250,000,000 T rT 451 o (Bt
540)

RZE—=F+-A=+H =K
SEHEENBARKE £
K 1B352,276,000/8 7T * 8 H
EAEBRMAEERNSEERE
BEALEBERARNBIERERS
2 MR E R A 2 A
FIE o (FFEE41)

REBEE—_ZT—=F+=-A=+—
H1EE A HR - BEFE AR
BRAAB Tz RBRELRE XK
€ %854,050,10078 7T 2 Al 2 f% 2=
Bl BRESBBITAEH
49,136,4550% H & H - ARE
BRI ARABERARKRMEE
BRE 2RI I14712,284,00078 7T
156,662,000/ 7T * HBE AR
g IR L ) B 2 ez =R
MTETELNHREBERN 22
B o (BF7E37(d)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

47. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 47. EXKBERF @)
(Continued)
(e)  During the nine months ended 31 December 2013, ) MEZE—Z—=F+—-A=+—H

the Noteholder Il converted Convertible Note Il in
aggregate principal amount of HK$867,997,160 at
the conversion price of HK$0.25 per share whereby
a respective total number of 3,471,988,640
conversion shares were issued. As a result of the
conversion, share capital of the Company has
increased by approximately HK$867,997,000 and
share premium of the Company has decreased by
approximately HK$178,783,000 respectively and
the aggregate of which represents proportional
amounts of the equity component and the liability
component at the time of conversion. (note 37(g))

During the nine months ended 31 December 2013,
the Group provided services to a non-controlling
shareholder resulting in amounts due form
customers of contract works of approximately
HK$44,137,000 (equivalent to RMB34,800,000)
with an amount due to the non-controlling
shareholder of approximately HK$40,001,000
(equivalent to RMB31,539,000) as at 31 October
2013. After negotiation with the non-controlling
shareholder, the Group signed a debt offset
agreement with the non-controlling shareholder
pursuit to which the Group and the non-controlling
shareholder agreed to partially set off the amounts
due form customers of contract works of
approximately HK$40,001,000 (equivalent to
RMB31,539,000) against the amount due to the
non-controlling shareholder (note 40).

IENE R - RiBFA AIREAR
0258 L2 RIRERIRE KAEEE
867,997,160/ 7T 2 AI I I -
Bt & B %174 ££8,471,988,640
MR - AR BB - K
A AP AHE hn49867,997,000/8
T AREBRDEERRD L
178,783,000/ 70 * HARE A &
ERNEREAEECESBMR
BEIMZEEE - (MFE37@E)

HE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—H
IENEAR  AEER—RZIEE
AEAE IR MRS - BRI RN T —
“E+A=Zt+—HELEFIREK
FKIBX)44,137,00078 7T (FEE R A
R #34,800,0007T) M F& {12 % A%
B FIA#)40,001,000/ 7€ (FHER
AR#31,539,0007T) ° & IE
TR REERE £ - RSB I
BREEEZSEHREHE &
It AEEEZIEERBRERE
NEWEFANIRRELY
40,001,000/ 7T (1B E R AR
31,539,0007T) 3 7 1K 55 & - FE4E
A& R% 3R 5k78 (B 5E40) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 48. KR ZEBRRE
OF THE COMPANY

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—=£F —_F—=
+=B=+—8H =A=+—8H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M FET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE () 1,222,016 368,466
Derivative financial asset PTHEBI A E — A i
— Derivative Component ERIZITET ASMHD
of the Convertible Note | 34 60,851 57,755
1,282,867 426,221
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and TR EIE K 573 928
other receivables H b e W skIE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U i B A 578 (@) 22 358,885
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 228 90,822
823 450,635
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hi B REFER 2,252 455
Amount due to a subsidiary JE BT B A R FRIR (@) 7,999 -
Borrowings == 33 - 342,324
10,251 342,779
Net current (liabilities) assets H 8 (B &) EE FE (9,428) 107,856
Total assets less current BWEEBRRBERS
liabilities 1,273,439 534,077
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value &2 R BERIEZYIEE
through profit or loss ZHBAaE 109,773 -
Convertible notes Al MR =% 34 712,566 514,179
822,339 514,179
Net assets EEFE 451,100 19,898
Equity B
Share capital B% (b) 1,445,575 459,899
Reserves s (994,475) (440,001)
Total equity MR 451,100 19,898
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mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 48. KA R ZHBRRE @)

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: Mot
(a) (a)
The Company
KA F
31 December 31 March
2013 201 3
—_E—=£F —_EF—=
+=HA=+—H :H:-i——E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARAZERE
Unlisted shares, at cost FELTRD - AR 3,030,697 2,025,514
Less: Provision for B ORUE B (B EED
impairment (note i) (1,808,681) (1,657,048)
1,222,016 368,466
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FE UK B A T 3B
(note ii) (B &Ei)
Cost BN 173,532 410,367
Less: Provision for impairment W R E R
(note iii) (B &Eiii) (173,510) (51,482)
22 358,885
Amounts due to FEAS B B 2 R FIE
subsidiaries (note ii) (B i) 7,999 -
Notes: Mot
0] For the nine months ended 31 December 2013, (i) HEZZT—=F+=-A=+

—BIEAEA  BERRK
BARZEEELBELD
151,683,000 ¢ (BE=_Z—
= =fA=+—HILFE:
196,296,000;‘%7%) CRENE
AARE S BN BB ET
ZEMBR T%%%%%ﬂﬁ
RAREERE - BENBA

%ﬁZﬁ%%%Zﬁ@%ﬁﬁ
RERE B TS RR M 7522 ©

impairment of approximately HK$151,633,000
(year ended 31 March 2013: HK$196,296,000)
was made against investment in subsidiaries
which are engaged in the coal mining business
in Mongolia. These subsidiaries are holding
mining licences which was subject to impairment
in current year. Details of the impairment of the
mining licences held by these subsidiaries are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FE W () P8 & RISRIE TH SR 4K
B RBERERESR -

(i) The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are (i)
unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 48. A&AQA T ZB#ARREK &)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) fizr : (%)
(@) (i)~ The movement in the allowance for impairment (a) (iii) FEULHI B A RIFER L, F N
of amounts due from subsidiaries during for EEORERBE  ZHOT

period/year is as follows:

The Company

KAF

31 December 31 March

2013 2013

—E—= —E—=%F

+=HA=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

At beginning of the period/year Hi, 44 51,482 51,482

(Reversal)/Allowance for B/ FAERZ

impairment recognised BB (BEE) /B

during the period/year 122,028 -

At end of the period/year H,/F R 173,510 51,482

At 31 December 2013 and 31 March 20183, RZE—=F+-_A=+—HBK

included in the allowance for impairment are
individually impaired amounts due from subsidiaries
which related to those outstanding balances that,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
recovery of these balances are remote as these
subsidiaries have been loss-making for a lengthy
period of time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 48. XA T ZHHEMRRE @
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) PiEE © ()
(o) (o)
Share Capital Convertible
Share Contributed option redemption note equity  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TEREE
RHEE gABH BRERE  EXERRE BEfk ZitEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
(note 39(a)) (note 39(c)) (note 39(d) (note 39(g)) (note 34)
(H£39(a) (H#E39(c) (Mi39(d) EREE) (Mit3d)
At 1 April 2012 RZE-2%
LA—-H 1,056,066 76,249 21,009 6,629 348,695 (1,639,634) (131,036)
Loss and total TEEEER
comprehensive expense 2ERYAE
for the year - - - - - (313.217) (313.217)
Recognition of equity-settled  HERLEERRH
share based payments BERZAR - - 4,252 - - - 4,952
Share options forfeited Rl Bk - - (1,636) - - 1636 -
At 31 March 2013 RZE-Z%
ZA=t-8 1,056,066 76,249 23,675 6,629 348,695 (1,951,215) (440,001)
Loss and total HREER
comprehensive expense 2ERYAE
for the period - - - - - (455,110) (455,110)
Share issue expenses RAEARAR
(note 371b) (za7) (1,800) - - - - - (1,800)
Shares issued upon exercise  1TRERER7H
of share options (note 37(c)  Bfp (BE37(c)) 2,755 - 2,755) - - - -
Issue of Convertible Note Il {7 AT B Z I
(note 34(o) (334t - - - - 199,869 - 199,860
Conversion of Convertble S EM AR ZEI
Note | note 37(d) GEZ) 56,662 - - - (28,017) - 28,645
Comversion of Convertible AT ARFEI
Note Il {note 37(e) (Fyx37(e) (178,783) - - - (148,278) - (327,081)
Recognition of equity-settled  EREXLE LK
share based payments BERIER - - 983 - - - 983
At 31 December 2013 R-E-Z£+-4
=1-H 934,900 76,249 21,903 6,629 372,169 (2,406,325) (994,475)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. T EMBARFE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+_A=+—RHKk=%—
and 31 March 2013 are as follows: =F=A=t—BZHEBARFEN
T
Percentage of effective equity
interest and voting right
Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
or establishment/ Issued and fully as at
Name of Company operation paid share capital BENTASAEEER Principal activities
AAER EUETNYES At BRTRAERE BRRERAZREAL IERH
31.12.2013 31.3.2013
_§—:¢ :T;—EE
tZB=1-H =A=+-A

Interests held directly:

ERRERSG

Rich Path (no el) British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Investment holding

wE (i) (‘B %7 REZK

EBRLAHS
([ZBRZES))
Brave Lion Investments Limited BVI USS1 100% 100% Investment holding
EBRLHS 157 RERK
Jichang Investments Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
AERRES %7 REBR

Interests held indirectly:

BEREESR:

Ming Hing Waterworks Hong Kong HK$68,800,000 - 100% Civil engineering
Engineering Company B 68,800,000 contracting business
Limited (note i IRIRABER

REKBEBIRERAA (i)

Ming Hing Civil Contractors Hong Kong HK$5,015,000 - 100% Civil engineering
Limited (note | B 5,015,007 contracting business

RETATRERAA (W) TAIERAEER

Ming Hing Engineering (HK) Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Provision of technical
Company Limited (note | & 10087 support services on

RATR (FA)BRAR (r3) oivl engineering

contract business
BIATRABERRRHG
ERB

Ming Yu Engineering (Macau) Macau MOP2,000,000 - 100% Renovation service
Company Limited (note | 2 2,000,002 RERB

B T2 (RFT) BRA ()

BETENERRREEE K PRC RMBA,600,000 - 9896%  Water supply business
AR (notes I vif) (M3~ vil BE AR %9,600,0007 hotel)  HKkEH

(i)
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mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. FEMERAFE @

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage of effective equity
interest and voting right

Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
or establishment/ Issued and fully as at
Name of Company operation paid share capital BENTAHBAEEER Principal activities
ARER AR/ BE 2% BRTRAERE BRRERAZREAL IEXH
31.12.2013 31.3.2013
“§-zf 5=
tZA=t-A -f-=1-f
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
BELEEE: (B
Camex Mongolia MNT12,000,000 100% 100% Mineral resources
50 12,000,005 A B ER exploration and
investment holding
REARMARRALR
Kores Mongolia LLC Mongolia MNT11,640,000 70% 70% Mineral resources
5HE 11,640, 0005 A BIRER exploration
REARER
TNE Mongolia MNT10,000,000 100% 100% Mining business in Mongolia
S0 10,000,005 & B 2R REL 2 KBS
Grand State Holdings Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Property investment
RERRES S ESE
MIG Management Services Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100% Provision of
&k 13T administrative services
in Hong Kong
EERRREERY
Sinbo BVI HK$10,821 100% - Investment holding
#E RERREST 10.821% T RELK
Beijing Peace Map Information PRC HK$60,000,000 100% - Technology and software
(notes i, v % 60,000,000% application
IRRTBESRNERAT development
(KisEi  vii) RITREHERRY
Peace Map (notes ii, vi PRC RMB29,170,000 81.15% - Data processing of
X VB (i - vil) # AR#29,170,0007C (note i geographical date,
(Ki3Eii) research and
development of GIS
HWESERENRFRR
FEGIS

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 $$ﬁ

[Furthe nine months ended 31 Decemb
{7 AT r e s AR s

241 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. FEMBRAFRE @

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage of effective equity

interest and voting right
Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
or establishment/ Issued and fully as at
Name of Company operation paid share capital BENTASAEEER Principal activities
kT RALETANE St BRARBRRA ERRERREERAL ITER
31.12.2013 31.3.2013
“E-Cf “E--F
t=A=t- -A=1-A
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
BENERER: (8)
IRXTEMARMNERAR notesi,vi) PRC RMB1,000,000 41.39% - Sales of geographical ,
FRATERAZMERAR (i - vi) RE ARH4,000,0007 (note v) data
(i) HeWEgE
RmE (R AEERRT PRC RMB15,000,000 53.56% - Dataprocessing of
BIRAF FAVIC Siwel’) (notes i, vi) B E AR 15,000,000 (note v) geographical date and
PROE (L) MEERR (B3kv) trading of aerial photo
BRAE([RmmE]) (i i) taking cameras
WESE EBERENR
BETPARER
IRBRNERFAREEAH (hotesii vi) PRC RMB10,000,000 46.45% - Provision of information
IRBNERREREEAF (i vi) PE AR #10,000,0007C (note v) technology services
(R zEv) REESRMRE
IRBRERREARAA PRC RMB2, 150,000 27.32% - Manufacturing and
(‘Beiing Langtian Botal’) (notes i, vi) ~ HE AR2,150,00070 (note vi) trading of unmamed
IRBRBRREARAR (B 3tvi) aircrafts and related
(DERBAXRER]) (B - vi) equipment
EEREEEARER
BERE
UWRETREERRTAERLA PRC RMB17,000,000 41.39% - Dataprocessing
(‘Shandong Zhengyan’) (notes il vi) B AR#47,000,0007C (note v) of geographical data
WRETHEEERTARAT (B3tv) WEREHERE
(MURET]) (ki - viD
EHEZEERERLE (otesi,vi)  PRC RMB3,000,000 81.15% - Trading of seff-
EREEERRMARLE (Wi vi) =E AR%3,000,0007 (note v) developed products
(Bt3k) BERTHYED
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mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. FEMBAAFEE ®
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage of effective equity
interest and voting right

Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
or establishment/ Issued and fully as at
Name of Company operation paid share capital BENTREAEEER Principal activities
ARER BET Ve - o BRTRAERE ERRERAZREAL ITEH
31.12.2013 31.3.2013
Z8-Z% —3-c=f

t2A=t-H  =A=1-F

Interests held indirectly: (Continued)

HEGAREE: (8)

FRAEERREARLT PRC RMB15,000,000 81.15% - Technology and software
(notes i, vi T AR%15,000,0007 (note v) application
FRBEERRRARAF (i vi) (B ) development
R LB RRRE
IR T B 85 PRC RWB5,000,000 81.15% - GIStechnology and
BRAE (notes i vil i® ARH5,000,0007 (note v) software application
IR TEMEEE R (PzEv) development
BRAR (B vi) GISH TR B4 AR
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company ERWRARREEZRAHAMME &
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, FEEEELETEXESBRAERE
principally affect the results for the period/year or formed EFEIZEBMNIARRMBAR - &
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To ER25 (MEEMKN B AR HEITEE
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of IEEHEMFIBTAN TR °

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities B A RIRE, FREZHFAEMAE
outstanding as at the end of the period/year or at any EREEAREEZEHES °

time during the period/year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

U

)

(i)

These subsidiaries were disposed of on 20 December
2013 (note 41).

These subsidiaries were acquired on 2 August 2013 (note
40).

No equity interests of Peace Map was held by the
Company. Beijing Peace Map Information, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Sinbo entered into the Structural
Agreements with Peace Map and its then shareholders
in October 2012. Notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, through the Structural Agreements, Beijing
Peace Map Information is able to exercise control over
Peace Map Group by way of controlling the voting rights
of Peace Map, governing their financial and operating
policies, appointing and removing the majority of the
members of their controlling authorities, casting the
majority of votes at meeting of such authorities and
deriving economic benefits from Peace Map Group.
Accordingly, Peace Map Group is accounted for as
subsidiaries of the Group after the acquisition of Sinbo
on 2 August 2013 (note 40). As one of the then
shareholders of Peace Map with equity interests of
18.85% was not a contracting party to the Structural
Agreements, only 81.15% of the financial results of Peace
Map Group is attributable to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBEBRERMTE
For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. FEMBAAFEE ®

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued) MieE : (&)

(iv)  This company is registered as limited liability company (iv) Ei’&ﬁjﬁﬁfﬁqj Bl AT AERESE
under the PRC law. The Group had 98.96% interest in AR AEERZER 2 M E RSP
the registered capital of the entity and was entitled to ??EﬁQB 6% - WHEEDEZERE
share 85% of the profit or loss of the entity. 2 85%18 % °

(v) These companies are subsidiaries directly owned and (v) ZERNRRRN NBEZEEE RZESl2
carolled by Peace Map. By I

(viy  This company is subsidiaries indirectly owned and viy  ZABAKXTEMEESRIZEGHZH
controlled by Peace Map. BAT] -

(vii) These entities are registered as a private limited company (vii)

EERBEPBAEFMALAR
under the PRC law. °

= Y
DR

aj

(viii)  This entity is registered as Wholly Owned Foreign Entity (vii) ZEBREFBIAEFMAIIEGEE
company under the PRC law. Ra] e
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other RBEHR - AR BEEHAERILT
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority BEAZEMKIBAT - BRZE U FH
of these subsidiaries operates in PRC, Hong Kong, BVI BRARNAFE  HE RBELHESK
and Singapore. The principal activities of these FIMEEEER - ZEMBRRIZEE
subsidiaries are summarised as follows: EBHMaT
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
TEEK TEZEMY MEARHE
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—= —E—=%F
+=—A=+—H =A=t—H
Dormant PRC - 1
BVI 1 1
REBEZHS
Mongolia 1 1
Ee
Inactive Hong Kong - 2
HIF X B
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 -
WEER BB
PRC - 1
H
BVI 2 2
RBREZHS
Singapore 1 1
%ﬁjju/i& ...........
6 9

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 $$ﬁ

[Furthe nine months ended 31 Decemb
{7 AT r e s AR s




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-_Z—=%+_-_A=+—HItNEAR

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50. MEEARFEREZZHFE2E
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL MEBARZFE
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TRAEANSEZBEERFZERERZ
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- F2EMBRRZEFIE :
controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation or Percentage of effective
establishment/ equity interest and voting right
operation attributable to the Group Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of Subsidiary BaubEE as at non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
HEAREE RUtY/Beztd FEEREEMRERREEDIL FEREGZAR (BB IR ZitkERER
31.12.2013 3132013 31.12.2013 3132013 31.12.2013 31.3.2013
Z§-zf -%-= ZE2-z& -§--f ZE-ZE -Z-°F
tZB=t-B =A=+-R +ZA=t-B ZA=f-B tZB=+-A =A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR T
Peace Map (note i) PRC 18.85% - (839) - 97,111 -
KT (R ale
AVIC Siwei (note |, i PRC 46.44% - (5,024) - 10,698 -
g (st i) hE
Beling Langtian Botai (note i, ii PRC 72.68% - (532) - 3,874 -
FRBRER (Mt i) HE
Shandong Zhengyan (note |, ii PRC 58.61% - 1,587 - 14,670 -
WEIET (B i) R

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (1,879) (159) (498) (706)
EREEAFRREENELR

(6,681) (159) 125,855 (706)
Notes: Bt 5T
() No equity interests was held by the Company. The 0] NARWEFE E (S - ARFR
Company has control over the subsidiary through the BEBUHEGAERZETNBERAF - &
Structural Agreements. Further details of the Structural BUHpEE—SHERRGEANTH
Agreements are set out in note 49(iii) to the consolidated ] 3% B 5T 49(ii) ©
financial statements.
(ii) These companies are subsidiaries directly owned and (ii) ZERNRRRKTNEEESA REHZ
controlled by Peace Map. B AT °
(iii) This company is subsidiaries indirectly owned and (iii) ZARBRTBEEES RZEH 2K
controlled by Peace Map. BAT] -
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the BEREERER AEBEWEAT
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests ZIHEERBESH N T o LTHBE
is set out below. The summarised financial information below B Z 5 & B RS0 85 2 Bl < 8088 o

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50.
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL

BEEREERERZZ2HZE
MELQ R Z2&FE @

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
31 December 31 March
2013 201 3
—_E-—=£F —_EF—=
+=HA=+—H ::H;:‘F_‘E
HK$’000 HK$’000
Peace Map XTHE FExT FAT
Current assets mENEE 376,858 -
Non-current assets IERBEE 533,990 -
Current liabilities mENE A (307,867) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (71,197) -
Equity attributable to owners RAaEE AEGER
of the Company 434,673 -
Non-controlling interests FEIE R T 97,111 -
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-ZTZ—=%F #HzEz—_ZT—=F
+=A=+—-AR =RA=+—~H
1A E A WFE
Revenue WA 162,927 -
Expenses X (167,378) -
Loss for the period/year 8 FREE (4,451) -
Loss attributable to owners RAREREB ARMLER
of the Company (3,612) -
Loss attributable to the AR R R BB
non-controlling interests (839) -
Loss for the period/year B FREE (4,451) -
Other comprehensive income KARHEE A
attributable to owners FEAGE M 2
of the Company 3,938 -
Other comprehensive income eI
attributable to the PR E Ath 2 T W S
non-controlling interests 915 -
Other comprehensive income B FREMEE R
for the period/year 4,853 -

ths ended 31 December
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50. MEEARFERERZZHEE
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL - NGIA= I - )
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—= —E—=
+=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
Peace Map (Continued) AT E(#E) FTET FHEIT
Total comprehensive income PINNEIE RN
attributable to owners G2 EmR A B
of the Company 326 -
Total comprehensive income IR R L 2 E WA LR
attributable to the
non-controlling interests 76 -
Total comprehensive income R/ FRE2ERA LT
for the period/year 402 -
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IERER 2 RE
interests = -
Net cash inflow from operating KETEB RS RAFE
activities 27,711 -
Net cash outflow from investing WEEB RS FE
activities (18,164) -
Net cash inflow from financing BMEFREFCESRAFE
activities 5,813 -
Net cash inflow BenAFRE 15,360 -

248 I PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T B4 % A B 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50. BEERFEZERERZHEE

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL i A B 2 518 (@)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—EB—=F —F—=
+t=A=+-8B =A=+-A
HK$’000 HK$’000
AVIC Siwei FR i PO 4 FERT FHET
Current assets MEEE 89,649 -
Non-current assets IEMENEEE 32,696 -
Current liabilities mEEE (84,664) -
Non-current liabilities EMENAEE - -
Equity attributable to owners RAaEE AEGER
of the Company 26,983 -
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M 10,698 -
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—=F HZE_T—=%F
+=A=+—-AR =R=+—H
1A E A WFE
Revenue A 29,103 -
Expenses FH (39,921) -
Loss for the period/year R, FREE (10,818) -
Loss attributable to owners NAREZER AELER
of the Company (5,794) -
Loss attributable to the FEVE A fE 2 PR ES 1B
non-controlling interests (5,024) -
Loss for the period/year R/ FREIER (10,818) -
Other comprehensive income KARHEE A
attributable to owners FEAGE M 2
of the Company 184 _
Other comprehensive income eI
attributable to the FE AR E Ah 2 T S
non-controlling interests 159 -
Other comprehensive income R/ FREMEE RS
for the period/year 343 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50. MEEARFEREZZHFE2E
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL i A B 2518 (@)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E-=F —F—=
+=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
AVIC Siwei (Continued) R (48) FHT FHET
Total comprehensive expense FiN/NEIE RN
attributable to owners B EE KA
of the Company (5,610) -
Total comprehensive expense JEFER R B E S AR
attributable to the
non-controlling interests (4,865) -
Total comprehensive expense R/ FRE2ESZ LA
for the period/year (10,475) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FEERER 2 R E
interests = -
Net cash outflow from operating KETEB 2B RIEFE
activities (1,858) -
Net cash inflow from investing WEEB 2B RANFE
activities 538 -
Net cash outflow REemLFRE (1,320) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50. BEERFEZERERZHEE

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL i A B 2 518 (@)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—=5F —E—=
+t=A=+-8B =A=+-A
HK$’000 HK$’000
Beijing Langtian Botai I REAXRESR FERT THETT
Current assets MBEE 18,846 -
Non-current assets IEMENEEE 10,784 -
Current liabilities mENE A (21,880) -
Non-current liabilities EMENAEE - -
Equity attributable to owners RAaEE AEGER
of the Company 3,876 -
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M 3,874 -
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-Z—=F HZE_T—=%F
+=A=+—-AR =R=+—H
1A E A WFE
Revenue WA 14,664 -
Expenses FH (15,396) -
Loss for the period/year B,/ FREE (732) -
Loss attributable to owners NARHEE AEGER
of the Company (200) -
Loss attributable to the FEVE A fE 2 PR ES 1B
non-controlling interests (532) -
Loss for the period/year R/ FREIER (732) -
Other comprehensive income KARHEE A
attributable to owners FEAGE M 2
of the Company 31 -
Other comprehensive income eI
attributable to the FE AR E Ah 2 T S
non-controlling interests 82 -
Other comprehensive income R/ FREMEE RS
for the period/year 113 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50. BEEXRFERERZHZE
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL i A B 2518 (@)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)

31 December 31 March
2013 2013
=B —= —_F—=
+=B=+—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
Beijing Langtian Botai (Continued) 1t RBAXRE % (&) FTET FHEIT
Total comprehensive expense PINNEIE RN
attributable to owners JEH 2T AARE
of the Company (169) -
Total comprehensive expense IR ERELEE S R A5
attributable to the
non-controlling interests (450) -
Total comprehensive expense R/ FR2E T hEE
for the period/year (619) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IERER 2 RE
interests - -
Net cash inflow from operating KETEB RS RAFE
activities 1,436 -
Net cash outflow from investing WEEB RS FE
activities (54) -
Net cash outflow from financing BMEEB 2SR FE
activities (1,144) -
Net cash inflow REMAFHE 238 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE-—ZT—=F+_B=+—HI- (@A

BEEREERERZZ2HEZE
MEQ R Z2&FE @

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50.
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
31 December 31 March
2013 201 3
—_E-—=£F —_EF—=
+=HA=+—H ::H;:‘F_‘E
HK$’000 HK$’000
Shandong Zhengyan IWERIETT FERT FHET
Current assets MEEE 21,313 -
Non-current assets IERBEE 13,611 -
Current liabilities mEEE (5,929) -
Non-current liabilities EMENAEE - -
Equity attributable to owners RAaEE AEGER
of the Company 14,325 -
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M 14,670 -
Nine months Year
ended ended
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
BE-ZTZ—=%F #HzEz—_ZT—=F
+=A=+—H =HA=+—H
1A E A WFE
Revenue WA 12,484 -
Expenses FH (9,776) -
Profit for the period/year R F R F 2,708 -
Profit attributable to owners AR A AEG G
of the Company 1,121 -
Profit attributable to the FE 120 A% 2 P 1 Vi 7
non-controlling interests 1,587 -
Profit for the period/year HAR R A 2,708 -
Other comprehensive income KARHEE A
attributable to owners i HE 2R
of the Company 59 -
Other comprehensive income eI
attributable to the FE AR E Ah 2 T S
non-controlling interests 84 -
Other comprehensive income R/ FREMEER
for the period/year 143 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEERME

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 HE_-—ZT—=F+_A=+—HI- @A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 50. BEERFEZERERZHEE

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL i A B 2518 (@)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)
31 December 31 March
2013 2013
—E—= —E—=
+=—A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
Shandong Zhengyan (Continued) WRETRT (&) FTET FHEIT
Total comprehensive income RAEHEB AR
attributable to owners FHEKERRE
of the Company 1,180 -
Total comprehensive income PR
attributable to the FElEEmREEEE
non-controlling interests 1,671 -
Total comprehensive income R/ FRE2E RS AR
for the period/year 2,851 -
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IERER 2 RE
interests = -
Net cash outflow from operating K TEB) IR RIFE
activities (1,383) -
Net cash outflow from investing WEEB RS FE
activities (485) -
Net cash outflow WemL F5 (1,868) -
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51.

52.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The presentation of comparative information in respect
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2013 has been restated in order to
disclose the discontinued operations separately from
continuing operations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE

(a)

On 27 December 2013, the board of directors of
the Company proposed to increase the authorised
share capital of the Company from
HK$2,500,000,000 to HK$7,500,000,000 by
creation of an additional 20,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.25 each. The ordinary resolution was
passed at the EGM held on 14 January 2014 by
shareholders.

On 26 March 2014, the board of directors of the
Company announced that the PAT related to the
acquisition of Sinbo was fulfilled without any
shortfall in PAT, and the Tranche A Convertible Note
Il with the principal amount of HK$80,000,000 was
issued. Further detail about the Convertible Note Il
was disclosed in note 34(b) to the consolidated
financial statements and the announcement of the
Company dated 26 March 2014.

51.

52.

(For the nine m
(& =

HEMBEBRERMTE
E—=F+-A=+—HItNEA

kEHF
BE-T-ZF-A=t-BHLEEZ
FABHRT  ETHRANEEHZ

Bl A ERLEKEDR IR
o AR o

WEMREER

(@ R= f*_$+—ﬂ—+tav
RAFEE G RE
20,000,000,000/% & X E{E0.25
BRLZREG - AR ANEER

A F2,5600,000,000% T =
7,500,000,000/8 7T ° 7% & i8R %
RERRN_-_T—NF—A+HM
ARITZERBHIAE LBG

(b) %: —mE=A=+,H0 ' &K
REZEZEEM - BRAWEN
BEoBRREFNEEENK - MR/H
BRETETATR  BAEE
/480,000,00078 7T 2 AL AT 32 A%
ZRIDEETT - BEJRRKRER
2 E— P BRBERERE TR
K4 R ARTBHAE T
—EFE=A - F+BZAM
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BMBHE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the LA &I 2 ARE BB E R A BERE 2 E4E A
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the REENBGEHEREAC TBEERES
published audited consolidated financial statements, is shown — B#HRE o I E W NEREBAZLL A M B ®
below. This summary does not form part of the audited &2 —3BD

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS E 5

For the

nine months

ended

31 December

HE

For the year ended 31 March +ZA=+-H

BZ=-A=t-HLEE EhEA

2010 2011 2012 2013 2013

—ZE2-F —E——F —ET——F —E—=F —E-Z=f

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FTET TET TET FTET TET

Revenue WA 675,959 874,961 935,574 856,701 210,089
Profit (loss) for the year/period A& & /HREF (F12) (17,281) (370,586)  (1,388,046) (299,994) (271,162)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at

31 December

As at 31 March ®n

R=A=+-H +=A=+-H

2010 2011 2012 2013 2013

—T-ITF —E——F —T--F —T-=F —E-=§

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000

FiEL TEL TER TET TER

Total assets BEE 568,216 3,323,955 1,433,868 1,218,580 2,053,573
Total liabilities BafE (203,948)  (1,632,971)  (1,092,944)  (1,185,963)  (1,268,472)
Total equity MR 364,268 1,690,984 340,924 32,617 785,101
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